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PSX FY 2025 at a Glance

FY 2025 has been another impressive year for stock market investors, with the restoration in economic confidence
on account of signing of Staff-Level Agreement (SLA) with the International Monetary Fund (IMF) in July 2024, thus
unlocking USD 7 bn on account of Extended Fund Facility (EFF) followed by disbursement of its second tranche and
approval of a separate USD 1.3 bn arrangement under the Resilience and Sustainability Facility (RSF). Furthermore,
upgrade in the country’s long-term foreign currency issuer default rating to B- from CCC+ by Fitch, reduction in
inflationary pressures to single digit, improvement in foreign exchange reserves, reduction in policy rate by 950 bps
to 11% and recording of current account surplus for the first time in a decade resulted in economic growth of 2.68%
in FY25.

The Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) serves as the national bourse and is extensively relied upon by investors to
gauge the country's economic strength. The broad market flagship index, KSE100, experienced a significant
bull-run, closing at 125,627 on June 30, 2025, in contrast to 78,445 on June 28, 2024. This surge resulted in a
remarkable return of 60.15% in PKR terms in the outgoing fiscal year. By the close of FY 2025, total market
capitalization reached PKR 15.2 trillion, translating in a market cap-to-GDP ratio of 13.3%.

During FY 2025, PSX approved three listing applications and prospectuses / offer for sale document of equity
securities namely; BF Biosciences Limited, Barkat Frisian Agro Limited and Zarea Limited. Moreover, five listings
took place pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, which include UDL International Limited, Big Bird Foods
Limited, DH Partners Limited, Ghani ChemWorld Limited and Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited - Class "C"
Shares. These eight securities including Class "C" shares of Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited (already a listed
company) were listed on the Main Board having a total paid up capital of PKR 11.82 Billion. Additionally, three
companies including Burj Clean Energy Modaraba, Nets International Communication Limited and The Pakistan
Credit Rating Agency Limited were also listed on the GEM Board having a total paid up capital of PKR 1.44 Billion.

Continuing with the momentum of GoP Ijarah Sukuk auctions which started in FY24, PSX conducted 13 auctions in
FY25, raising PKR 2.21 trillion for the government. The year also witnessed the issue of sovereign Green Sukuk
raising PKR 31.98 billion to finance eco-friendly projects. Furthermore, three Privately Placed Debt Securities with a
total issue size of PKR 5,050 Million and five Open End Mutual Funds with a total fund size of PKR 2,309 Million were
also listed in the outgoing fiscal year.

During the year, PSX also introduced a price return variant of the KSE100 index, namely the KSE100 Price Return
Index (KSE100PR). This index reflects the price-only performance of KSE 100 Index constituents and excludes the

impact of cash dividends.

A snapshot of the major capital market indicators is presented hereunder:

June 30, 2025 June 28, 2024

No. of Listed Companies 527 524
Listed Capital (PKR in Million) 1,638,480 1,706,197
Traded Volume — Ready Mkt + DFC (No. in Million)* 212,834 151,427
Traded Value — Ready Mkt + DFC (PKR in Million)* 9,789,755 5,390,030
Market Capitalization (PKR in Million) 15,239,540 10,374,799
KSE100 Index 125,627.31 78,444.96
KSE 30 Index 38,153.79 25,282.04

* The figures of Traded Volume and Value are for FY 2025 (July 2024 to June 2025).
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PSX Developments and Activities

Key Achievements Organization Wide

In FY 2025, Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) demonstrated significant progress across multiple strategic, operational
and regulatory dimensions, reinforcing its position as a dynamic and forward-looking institution within the capital
market ecosystem. The year was marked by innovation, enhanced investor engagement, strengthened governance
and a deepened commitment to transparency, inclusion and global alignment.

One of the key milestones was when PSX undertook a reassessment of its strategic direction, and in consultation
with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) formulated a three-year strategic plan. This plan
identifies key opportunities and challenges faced by the exchange and lays out actionable initiatives across core
strategic pillars: Market Development, Operational Excellence and Governance. By aligning its priorities with global
benchmarks and regulatory expectations, PSX reaffirms its commitment to fostering a transparent, resilient and
investor-centric capital market ecosystem.

In addition to this, the launch of the KSE100 Price Return Index (KSE100PR), a price-only benchmark that excludes
dividends and complements the existing KSE100 index was another key initiative. Backdated to April 2009, this
index provides a clearer view of market performance for products and strategies that do not reinvest dividends. This
initiative reflects PSX's commitment to offering diversified analytical tools for investors and data providers.

Simultaneously, PSX progressed its New Trading & Surveillance System (NTS), which delivered record-breaking
market volumes with seamless performance. The system'’s reliability and efficiency boosted investor confidence
and laid the groundwork for the relaunch of Cash Settled Futures and the introduction of Single Stock Options.
These developments are aligned with global best practices and cater to evolving investor needs.

In terms of listings, PSX successfully brought 11 new companies to the market with a total listed capital of PKR
13,265 million. These included IPOs, court-ordered listings, right issues and GEM Board entities. Additionally, three
Privately Placed Debt Instruments worth PKR 5,050 million and five open-end mutual funds totalling PKR 2,309
million were listed, expanding the exchange's product offerings and enhancing investor access.

To further streamline capital market operations, PSX revamped its Book Building System, initially integrating 1LINK
before transitioning to NCCPL as per SECP's guidance. This strategic shift aligns with upcoming Public Offering
Regulations and strengthens risk management. PSX also launched an online portal for Public Unlisted Companies
to submit financial statements, promoting transparency and public access. Moreover, stock split guidelines were
issued to improve liquidity and market accessibility.

PSX also introduced enhancements to facilitate Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk (GIS) trading in the secondary
market. These included real-time visibility of prices and yields, automated brokerage commission computation,
direct participant access and instant settlement for Negotiated Deal Market (NDM) transactions. The integration of
1BILL into the Book Building Application, in partnership with 1LINK (Pvt) Limited created a seamless payment
ecosystem for investors. Furthermore, PSX made notable advances in its primary auction platform for GIS and
secondary market infrastructure. Since December 2023, 23 GIS auctions raised over PKR 2.21 trillion, boosting
Shariah-compliant government securities. The launch of the first 3-year Variable Rental Rate Green Sukuk raised Rs
31.99 billion for sustainable projects. Enhancements included onboarding banks for proprietary trading, fee
reductions, extended market hours and instant settlements. Regional cooperation was strengthened through MoUs
with Colombo, Dhaka, Baku and Chinese exchanges. PSX also co-hosted an Islamic Capital Market conference to
promote knowledge sharing and product development.
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On the regulatory front, key reforms include simplified listing rules, enhanced financial disclosure via updated CM
Forms 3 and 7, mandatory gender pay gap reporting, increased CCPF disbursement limits and per-broker caps. PSX
launched an online Complaint Management System, allowed Shariah-compliant brokerage services, standardized
commissions and reduced trading fees for GIS. Listings via Scheme of Arrangement are now regulated, with
strengthened inspection, supervision and monitoring mechanisms to uphold market integrity.

Marketing and investor outreach were also central to PSX's strategy. The Battle of the Bulls competition attracted
5,200 participants and PKR 3.2 million in sponsorships, becoming Pakistan's largest stock challenge. The Investor
Education Portal saw over 5,300 registrations and issued 4,000 certifications. PSX conducted 75+ awareness
sessions, translated 600+ financial terms into Urdu and achieved a 250% increase in social media following.
Campaigns focused on ETFs, Green Sukuk and investor protection, with influencer marketing introduced for the
first time. PSX also participated in Financial Literacy Week, signed MoUs with universities and collaborated with CFA
Society Pakistan for professional development.

PSX continued to build its reputation as an employer of choice. By aligning with UN Women Empowerment
Principles and sourcing talent from top institutions like IBA, LUMS, NED and FAST, the exchange enriched its
workforce. Over 260 training nominations, including a Director’'s Training Program, underscored its focus on
leadership and continuous learning. PSX's Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion strategy led to a rise in gender diversity
from 15.7% to 20%, supported by progressive policies such as Remote Working, Daycare Reimbursement, extended
maternity leave and flexible hours for new mothers.

Together, these initiatives reflect PSX's holistic approach to market development, operational excellence and
stakeholder engagement. By integrating innovation, regulatory alignment and inclusive growth, PSX continues to
evolve as a resilient and globally competitive capital market institution.

Product Management & Research

In order to further strengthen its suite of equity market indices to support market participants, investors, and data
providers with enhanced analytical tools and performance tracking mechanisms, PSX introduced a price retum
variant of the KSE100 index, namely the KSE100 Price Return Index (KSE100PR). The KSE100PR index has been
developed to reflect the price-only performance of the KSE100 Index constituents and excludes the impact of cash
dividends. This index provides a pure price-based view of the market's performance, enabling clearer
benchmarking for products and strategies that do not reinvest dividends. To ensure a consistent historical track
record, the KSE100PR Index has been backdated to 01 April 2009, providing over 15 years of historical data for
meaningful trend analysis and comparison. The index is maintained in parallel with the existing KSE100 Benchmark
Index which incorporates dividend adjustments, offering investors two perspectives on the same market
benchmark.

After the implementation of the New Trading & Surveillance System, PSX has been working towards the relaunch
of Cash Settled Futures (CSF) along with new features which are in line with the global practices and aligned with
demands of the investors. Furthermore, PSX plans to launch the Single Stock Options in the near future as the
regulatory framework has already been approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

In the outgoing fiscal year, PSX onboarded 25 new clients, 16 international and 9 local, demonstrating continued

growth in its data vending business. The Exchange also maintained a strong and collaborative relationship with its
international strategic data vending partner, Deutsche Borse AG (DBAG).
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PSX also signed MoUs with international exchanges for strengthening cross border collaboration, knowledge
sharing and capacity building. So far, MoUs have been signed with Chinese exchanges, Dhaka Stock Exchange,
Colombo Stock Exchange and Baku Stock Exchange. Discussion sessions have also been conducted on key areas
of cooperation including facilitating dual listings, jointly developing products, sharing insights on market
operations and regulations, supporting staff secondments, and engaging in capacity-building initiatives for mutual
benefit. An MoU was also signed with the Institute of Business Administration (IBA) under which IBA Karachi will
gain access to PSX's comprehensive market information and products, enhancing the institution’'s capabilities in
market data analytics and related research. This initiative is designed to equip students and faculty with advanced
tools and resources, promoting academic excellence and providing practical insights into the Pakistan's capital
market.

Additionally, efforts were made towards implementing the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023. Concept on
Shariah Trading counter is being prepared and will be shared for SECP review. Furthermore, plan for Riba-free Stock
Exchange is also being drafted.

PSX is also committed towards the promotion of responsible investment and sustainable development, with the
aim of improving corporate performance on Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) issues. Recognizing the
importance of gender pay gap disclosures in promoting transparency, equality, and diversity within Pakistan's
corporate sector, PSX took effective measures to ensure Listed Companies’ adherence to SECP Circular No. 10 of
2024 and align with the Prime Minister's Women Empowerment Package (PM-WEP) 2024. So far, more than 370
listed companies have provided their gender pay gap data, either in annual report or on the corporate website.

Furthermore, a session was conducted for Financial Sector with LSEG on 28th April, 2025 to create ESG reporting
awareness. The Exchange also arranged a UNSSEI training on gender diversity which was held in June, 2025.

Listing

Equity Listings (Main & GEM Board)

During Financial Year 2024-25, Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) successfully listed the following ten (10) new
companies having a total listed capital of PKR 12,934 million. Out of which three (3) companies were listed through
initial public offering / offer for sale, four (4) companies were listed through court orders / scheme of arrangement,
three (3) companies were listed on the GEM Board. In addition class C shares of an already listed company, which
were subscribed by way of right issue were also listed during the FY 2024-25 with a paid-up capital of PKR 331
million.

PKR i illi
Sr. No. Name of Company / Security { in million)

Paid up Capital

1 UDL International Limited 351.205
2 Big Bird Foods Limited 2,989.058
3 BF Biosciences Limited 265.000
4 DH Partners Limited 4,812.871
5 Zarea Limited 262.500
6 Barkat Frisian Agro Limited 309.990
7 Ghani ChemWorld Limited 2,501.440
8 Burj Clean Energy Modaraba (listed on the GEM Board) 1,000.000
9 Nets International Communication Limited (listed on the GEM Board) 367.576
10 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (listed on the GEM Board) 74.529
Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited — Class “C" Ordinary Shares 330.624
13,264.793
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Debt Security Listings
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited successfully listed the following three (3) Privately Placed Debt Instruments during
FY 2024-25. The debt securities had a combined issue size of PKR 5,050 million.

PKR i illi
Sr. No. Name of Security ( - m} ion)
Issue Size
1 At-Tahur Limited (Privately Placed Sukuk) 750.000
2 Sitara Chemical Industries Limited (Privately Placed Sukuk) 2,300.000
3 Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited (Privately Placed TFC) 2,000.000
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Open-end Mutual Funds

The Exchange successfully listed the following five (5) Open-end Mutual Funds during FY 2024-25. The funds listed

during the year constituted a total fund size of PKR 2,309 million.

Sr. No. Name of Security (PKIFs{sTerg;lzl;on)
1 Atlas Islamic Cash Fund 756.002
2 NBP Mustahkum Fund - 1I 1,500.000
3 Meezan Fixed Term Fund 25.186
4 Meezan Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund 26.901
5 ABL Islamic Sovereign Fund 1.056

Number of Funds
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Revamp of Book Building System:

PSX initiated the revamp of its Book Building System with the primary objective of achieving full digital integration
and enhancing bidder convenience. Initially, this involved integrating 1LINK into the system. A comprehensive and
fully functional system was developed and made ready for deployment. However, at a later stage, the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) advised that the National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
(NCCPL) be integrated instead of 1LINK. This strategic shift aimed to align the system with the amendments to the
Public Offering Regulations and to reinforce risk management mechanisms. The ongoing initiative is focused on
eliminating existing operational bottlenecks and establishing a more efficient, transparent, and investor-friendly
Book Building process.

Portal for Uploading Financial Statements for Public Unlisted Companies:

PSX, on the directions of SECP, has developed an online portal specifically designed for Public Unlisted Companies
to submit their financial statements. This platform facilitates timely disclosure of financial statements, promoting
greater transparency. The uploaded financial statements will be accessible to the public, providing investors and
stakeholders with improved visibility into the financial health of these companies.

Stock Split Guidelines:
During the year, PSX issued comprehensive guidelines on stock splits. These guidelines are intended to assist listed
companies in executing stock splits in a structured, timely, and investor-friendly manner.

Stock splits can offer several benefits, including improved stock liquidity, enhanced market accessibility for retail
investors due to a lower per-share price, and increased investor interest. By making shares more affordable, stock
splits can also broaden the shareholder base and potentially contribute to better price discovery.

The issuance of these guidelines is part of PSX's broader effort to facilitate informed corporate actions and
strengthen investor confidence in the capital market.

Human Resource

Employer Branding & Sourcing:

The HR department has continued to work diligently towards positioning the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) as an
Employer of Choice in the market. This effort aligns with our commitment to the UN Women Empowerment
Principles (WEP), to which PSX is a proud signatory, demonstrating our dedication to gender equality and women's
empowerment while projecting a progressive image of the organization.

In pursuit of excellence, PSX actively seeks out top-tier talent from renowned institutions such as IBA, LUMS, NED,
and FAST, enriching the organization with a strong pool of skilled professionals. In line with our commitment to
fostering a culture of collaboration and continuous learning, PSX supports fresh recruits through its
Mentorship/Buddy Program. This initiative ensures that new hires receive valuable coaching and guidance during
their critical onboarding phase.

The second cohort of the “Capital Market Future Leaders Program” (CMFLP 2.0) is now in its final stage of
onboarding. This 18-month Management Trainee program includes structured rotations across the three key
institutions of the capital market ecosystem—Pakistan Stock Exchange Ltd. (PSX), Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited (CDC), and National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL). CMFLP 2.0 stands as a
testament to PSX's commitment to developing the next generation of professionals, offering them a
comprehensive understanding of the capital market and a clear pathway for long-term career growth within
Pakistan'’s financial sector.
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Learning & Development:

In line with our commitment to the continuous professional development of our employees, the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX) maintained its focus on organizing a series of comprehensive training programs. These initiatives
were carefully designed to equip our workforce with the latest industry knowledge, technical skills, and global best
practices. Spanning a broad spectrum of topics—from specialized technical training to leadership development and
innovation—these sessions aimed to empower team members to excel in their current roles and prepare for future
challenges.

Over the past year, PSX facilitated more than 260 nominations for both operational and developmental training
programs. Notably, these included a Director’s Training Program for members of the Senior Management team,
further underscoring our emphasis on leadership excellence.

Aligned with the United Nations Development Programme’s (UNDP) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs), PSX
continues to strive for sustainable growth and organizational impact by embedding these principles into its
learning and development initiatives.

Workplace Health and Well-being:

As part of our ongoing commitment to prioritizing emotional well-being and promoting a culture of healthy living,
PSX nominated employees for a variety of insightful webinars and wellness sessions. These sessions focused on key
aspects of well-being, including stress management, time optimization, sleep quality, and energy regulation. By
addressing these vital topics, the initiative aimed to empower employees to take charge of their mental and
emotional health, fostering resilience and balance in both personal and professional spheres.

Demonstrating compassion and a strong sense of community, PSX employees also came together to support a
noble cause during the Blood Donation Campaign organized by Indus Hospital. The enthusiastic participation of
staff members led to a successful drive, potentially saving lives and making a meaningful contribution to those in
need. This initiative reflects PSX's core values of empathy, responsibility, and collective impact.

In addition, PSX continues to support employee health through the “Sehat Kahani Corporate Application”—a 24/7
free online medical consultation service. This platform offers accessible, real-time medical support not only to
employees but also to their immediate family members, including parents. Whether for routine consultations or
emergencies, this initiative underscores our dedication to ensuring the holistic well-being of our workforce,
enabling them to lead healthier, more fulfilling lives.

Fostering Engagement:

In an effort to promote harmony and camaraderie among our talented workforce, PSX organized an Employee
Table Tennis and Foosball Tournament, which proved to be a resounding success. Held as part of our ongoing
commitment to employee engagement, the tournament highlighted the remarkable sporting skills and competitive
enthusiasm within the organization. Employees participated with great zeal, fostering an energetic and supportive
atmosphere that reflected PSX's dynamic and inclusive culture. The tournament culminated in a special awards
ceremony where winners and runners-up were recognized with well-deserved trophies. This initiative not only
encouraged friendly competition but also reinforced our commitment to cultivating a balanced and engaging
workplace.

Further strengthening our sense of community, PSX proudly launched the inaugural edition of the HR Newsletter.
Designed to celebrate collective achievements and promote a sense of unity across departments, the newsletter
spotlighted a variety of organizational activities, milestones, and employee accomplishments. It also served as a
platform to recognize outstanding talent and provided regular updates on HR initiatives and internal
events—contributing to a more connected, informed, and vibrant workplace culture.
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DEI Initiatives:

Over the past few years, the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) has made remarkable progress in its Diversity, Equity,
and Inclusion (DEI) initiatives, positioning itself as a pioneer in cultivating a workplace that values equality,
inclusivity, flexibility, and the richness of diverse life experiences.

At the heart of these efforts is the implementation of a comprehensive Diversity & Inclusion Policy. This policy
mandates a minimum gender diversity ratio throughout the fiscal year and serves as a foundational framework for
building an inclusive work environment. Reinforcing this commitment is a strategically aligned recruitment
approach that ensures PSX remains an equal opportunity employer. As a result of these concerted efforts, the
organization has achieved a significant increase in its gender diversity ratio—from 15.7% to an impressive 20% in a
relatively short time.

Recognizing the evolving dynamics of the moderm workplace, PSX has proactively introduced a progressive
Remote Working Policy, aimed at enhancing flexibility across the organization. This initiative is particularly
beneficial for women, enabling them to better balance professional and personal responsibilities. Additionally, the
launch of a Daycare Reimbursement Scheme further underscores PSX's dedication to supporting female employees
by alleviating common barriers to workforce participation.

To promote employee well-being and facilitate a healthy work-life balance, PSX has extended its Maternity Leave
Policy, and is set to operationalize an on-site Daycare Facility in the last quarter of the year—offering vital support
to working mothers. Going a step further, the Exchange provides an additional three months of remote work or
flexible working hours for new mothers. This forward-thinking initiative ensures a smoother transition into
parenthood, while maintaining professional continuity and connection.

In conclusion, PSX's holistic and people-centric DEI strategy spans key areas including inclusive recruitment,
gender representation, flexible work arrangements, and comprehensive family support. These initiatives not only
reflect PSX's status as a trailblazer in workplace equality but also set a benchmark for other organizations aspiring
to foster inclusive, equitable, and supportive work environments in Pakistan's evolving corporate landscape. PSX's
commitment to exceeding industry standards—through policies such as extended matemnity benefits and
enhanced workplace flexibility—exemplifies its dedication to enabling every employee to thrive, both personally
and professionally.

Information Technology

Enhancement related to GoP Ijarah Sukuk (GIS) trading in Secondary Market

PSX has successfully enhanced, developed and rolled-out services, to facilitate Sukuk trading in secondary market.
Newly introduced changes allow visibility of sukuk prices & yields on trading terminals, computation of brokerage
commission, direct access to participants, instant settlement for Negotiated Deal Market (NDM) transactions etc.

New Trading System — Smooth Trading Operations with Record Breaking Market Volumes

The stock market achieved historic milestones this year, delivering record-breaking performance. Both the trading
engine and all ancillary applications performed exceptionally well, without any lag, outage or disruption, enhancing
market participant’s confidence on recently implemented NTS.

1Link integration with Book Building Application

PSX has entered into an agreement with 1LINK (Pvt) Ltd, Pakistan's first PSO/PSP and largest switch and payment
system provider, to enhance the book building experience for investors by developing an integrated payment
collection ecosystem via 1BILL. Through this integration, PSX and 1LINK (Pvt) Ltd will leverage their extensive
networks and advanced technologies to establish a seamless and user-friendly investor payment system. Investors
participating in book building will benefit from the convenience of making payments through the book building
platform. All the development work at PSX end has been performed by PSX in-house team:s.
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Development of Unlisted Companies Portal

As per the SECP directive, PSX ITD developed Unlisted Companies Portal where companies currently not listed at
PSX will utilize this portal to submit their financial reports online for public access on the PSX website. This
streamlined process ensures transparency and accountability, making it easier for investors and stakeholders to
access crucial financial information and fostering trust within the market.

Disaster Recovery (DR) Drill

PSXITD successfully conducted DR drill to validate smooth recovery of PSX's core operations during a disaster. Both
PSX's internal business users and market participants including TRECHs, NCCPL, EClear and CDC participated in the
drill. Due to close coordination both internally and with market participants, most of the TRECHSs participated in the
drill. In comparison with last year's drill where 44 brokers tested their systems and connectivity, 117 brokers joined
this year's drill.

Marketing & Corporate Communications Department

During FY 2025, the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) executed a series of impactful marketing and investor outreach
initiatives aimed at enhancing financial literacy, expanding market participation, increasing UINs and strengthening
brand visibility.

The flagship campaign, Battle of the Bulls Stock Challenge Competition, launched in May 2025, became Pakistan's
largest stock competition to date, attracting 5,200 participants from universities and the general public. Supported
by SECP, CDC, NCCPL, and various brokerage houses, the initiative secured PKR 3.2 million in sponsorships.

To engage Gen-Z investors, PSX introduced an enhanced Investor Education Portal, designed to provide accessible
and interactive financial learning. During its soft launch, the portal attracted over 5,300 unique registrations, with
participants enrolling in courses more than 6,000 times. This strong engagement led to the awarding of 4,000
certifications, highlighting the initiative's early success in promoting financial literacy among younger audiences.

PSX also actively participated in Pakistan Financial Literacy Week 2025, organizing a nationwide series of events in
collaboration with CDC, NCCPL, SBP, and SECP. Simultaneously, outreach letters were sent to over 30 universities
to initiate MoUs focused on investor education, with several agreements already signed and others nearing
finalization.

Throughout the year, PSX conducted more than 75 investor awareness sessions and workshops across institutions,
supported by a robust digital education strategy. This included webinars on topics such as Shariah-Compliant
investments, Sahulat Accounts, REITs, Sukuk, greenwashing awareness, and financial planning. Additionally, two
professional development sessions were held in collaboration with CFA Society Pakistan, as part of the ongoing
speaker series.

To support industry-specific learning, PSX's glossary of over 600 financial terms was translated into Urdu, ensuring
accessibility for mass audiences. On the digital front, PSX achieved a 250% increase in social media following across
platforms including Facebook, LinkedIn, YouTube, and Instagram. Strategic campaigns were launched on key
topics such as ETFs, RDA Roshan Equity Investment Accounts, Green Sukuk, EIPO promotions, and investor
protection under the #KhyalRakhyn banner.

Notably, influencer-led marketing was introduced for the first time for Battle of the Bulls, alongside video content
featuring the testimonial of Dr. Shamshad Akhtar, Chairperson PSX and a prominent figure in Pakistan'’s financial
landscape on Green Sukuk. Tutorials on Sukuk auctions, and post-IPO case studies were also produced to enhance
awareness & public participation.
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Press and media engagement remained strong, with 36 press releases, 4 articles, and 12 interviews conducted with
national outlets at zero cost, resulting in PR savings of PKR 10.755 million.

PSX also fulfilled its CSR commitments through collaborations with prestigious institutions. The CSR program
supported initiatives in education, healthcare, and social welfare, contributing to the well-being and development
of society.

High-level gong ceremonies and visits were organized, including those by the Prime Minister, Finance Minister,
Mayor Karachi, and delegations from Malaysia, as well as events commemorating International Women's Day and
new listings.

These initiatives reflect PSX's unwavering commitment to advancing financial inclusion, deepening investor
engagement, and driving holistic growth across the capital market ecosystem.

Initiatives by Regulatory Affairs Division [RAD]

The core functions of RAD are to frame and update PSX Regulations, devise policies, monitor compliance, take
enforcement actions against non-compliant securities brokers and listed companies, and ensure investor
education and advocacy. Moreover, RAD provides a platform for investors to lodge their complaints for efficient
redressal through arbitration and appeal forums. The Chief Regulatory Officer (CRO) heads the RAD.

During the year 2024-25, RAD took various reform measures with an aim to simplify PSX Regulations, promote
Shariah compliant framework, revamp the listings at PSX, promote greater disclosures, improve transparency &
reporting, enhance strong culture of compliance in the regulated sector and strengthen investor protection
measures while duly taking into account the international best practices. The significant measures taken by RAD
are described below:

Rationalization and Simpilification of Listing Regulations Pertaining to Public Offering of Equity and Debt
Securities:

In light of suggestions given by PSX and feedback received by SECP on its consultation paper on “Improvement in
the Public Offering Regime”, RAD has proposed amendments to its listing regulations governing public offering of
equity and debt securities to rationalize and simplify various requirements pertaining to incorporation of financial
statements in the Prospectus, credit rating requirement and listing approval timelines for debt securities and
submission of various documents with listing application due to the coverage already available in the Public
Offering Regulations, 2017 of the SECP.

Enhancement of Form 3 and 7 of The Correspondence Manual (CM) Regarding Dissemination of Additional
Financial Information While Releasing Annual and Quarterly Financial Statements by a Listed Company:

In order to ensure greater transparency and to provide minority shareholders access to complete financial
information, RAD has enhanced the scope of Forms 3 and 7 of the CM with the approval of the SECP. The
enhancement mandates additional disclosures by listed companies, including dissemination of statements of
financial position, changes in equity, cash flows and statement of profit or loss, along with the quarterly and annual
financial results, all duly approved by the Board of Directors. Additionally, the listed companies are also encouraged
to disseminate “Directors’ Report” along with the aforementioned results.

These measures ensure access to accurate, comprehensive information for informed decision making by the
investors and allows PSX to reinforces its role in promoting market faimess and accountability.
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Compliance With SECP’s Circular on Gender Pay Gap Disclosure by Listed Companies:

In alignment with the SECP’s directive and the Prime Minister's Women Empowerment Package (PM-WEP) 2024,
PSX has been actively assisting SECP in ensuring compliance with SECP Circular No. 10 of 2024, dated April 17, 2024,
by the listed companies. Recognizing the significance of gender pay gap disclosure in fostering transparency,
gender equality, and diversity in corporate sector of Pakistan, RAD has implemented robust and effective
compliance measures including, conducting surveys, issuing monthly reminder notices, and sending targeted
reminder emails to listed companies.

Through these concerted efforts, PSX has effectively supported the SECP in achieving adherence to the SECP's
Circular, reinforcing a shared commitment to promote transparency and inclusivity across the capital market.

Enhancement of Per-Claimant Disbursement Limit and Introduction of Per-Broker Limit Under Centralized
Customers Protection Compensation Fund (CCPF) Regulations of PSX:

In order to ensure maximum settlement of claims of approved claimants, RAD has introduced a hybrid model,
whereby, in addition to the per-customer limit, the per-broker limit was introduced in the interest of the claimants
of the defaulted securities broker. As per approved CCPF Regulations, the per-customer limit i.e. PKR 1 million
would be applied at first and where the aggregate per-customer disbursement remains below than PKR 35 million,
the differential amount would also be disbursed to the admitted claimants. If the customers’ claims are not fully
settled then claimants shall be paid on a pro-rata basis. However, the per-broker limit of PKR 35 million would not
be applicable if the aggregate per-customer disbursement exceeds the specified broker limit.

Introduction of Online Portal “Complaint Management System”:

As part of PSX's ongoing drive to promote digitization and to facilitate investors in lodging trade-related complaints
against the securities brokers and tracking the status thereof, RAD introduced an upgraded version of the
Complaint Management System.

This digital portal is introduced in the first phase for investors to enhance user experience through streamlined
workflows. The portal shall enable investors to lodge complaints, upload supporting documents, track the status of
their complaints, maintain records of correspondence, raise queries directly within the portal in case of any
clarification or assistance is required.

Allowing Securities Brokers to Offer Shariah-Compliant Brokerage Services:

As markets and industries of Pakistan are gradually transitioning towards fully Shariah compliant mode of financing,
investments and banking, PSX is also taking various steps for transitioning of the capital market of Pakistan to
Shariah compliant mode.

In this regard, CDC in coordination with the PSX and with the support of Shariah Focus Group of PSX, has prescribed
new forms for SECP's approval to be exclusively adopted by the Shariah compliant securities brokers in opening
accounts of their customers. This step is done subsequent to the proposed amendments in PSX Regulations to
provide coverage and visibility to Shariah compliant brokerage services after SECP has notified amendments in the
Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016.

Implementation of new account opening forms for Shariah compliant securities broker would serve as the stepping
stones for securities brokerage business in Pakistan to meet full Shariah compliance.

Standardization of Brokerage Commission and Reduction In PSX Trading Fee for Secondary Market Trading
of Government of Pakistan Ijarah Sukuk (GIS):

With an aim to create secondary market for GIS more attractive and competitive for securities brokers, banks,
mutual funds and bring the trading activity on par with the OTC Market of SBP, PSX Regulations have been
amended to introduce standardized brokerage commission structure for GIS. Further, PSX trading fee and SECP levy
for GIS have also been reduced.
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As a result of standardization effective from December 18, 2024, PSX witnessed a substantial increase of 8.1 times
of increase in the trading volume in GIS:

L Trading volume during July — December 2024: PKR 56.44 billion
IL. Trading volume during January — June 2025: PKR 456.91 billion

Regulating Listings by Way of Scheme of Arrangement:
Regulations governing the listing of companies pursuant to approval of Scheme of Arrangement have been
inserted in PSX Regulations as Clause 5.4A, which prescribes separate requirements relating to the following:

L Listed company whose Operating Business Segment is being demerged; and
IL. Unlisted company to be listed through the Scheme of Arrangement.

In view of above, it is stipulated that "no unlisted company can list or attain the listing status through the Scheme
of Arrangement, except in case of demerger of Operating Business Segment of a listed company into an unlisted
company and shares of unlisted company are issued to the shareholders of the listed company”.

In the interest of transparency and minority shareholders, public dissemination of the opening price of the shares
on the first trading day has been required within five working days from the dissemination of certified true copy of
the Order of the relevant competent authority sanctioning the Scheme, but not later than the announcement of the
final date of book closure by the listed company.

Inspection, Reviews, Supervision and Monitoring:

L RAD conducted surveillance activities in the areas including but not limited to blank sale in ready market,
non-reporting of trades executed by substantial shareholders and other Directors of Securities Broker
through another Securities Brokers, blank sale through normal sale order window in futures market, unusual
deals in NDM and Market Misconducts etc. During the year, RAD referred potential cases of Market
Misconduct to SECP for further actions as per the relevant laws.

IL. In Audit and Inspection, RAD performed the following activities:

(1) Received reports through the following sources and took appropriate enforcement actions against
non-compliant securities brokers:

(a) System Audit;
(b) Joint Inspection; and
(c) Intermet-Based Trading Services (IBTS) Audit.

(ii) Performed thematic reviews to ascertain the compliance status of the securities brokers in the following
high-priority areas of PSX Regulations and Securities Broker (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016:

(a) Maintenance of a functional and accessible website by securities brokers;

(b) Distribution of profits to customers on unutilized funds [PSX Regulation 4.17];

(c) Clients' Assets Segregation [Clause 4.17 of PSX Regulations];

(d) Registration and trading of employees of securities brokers; [PSX Regulation 4.20],

(e) Trade Confirmation; [Clause 4.18 of PSX Regulations],

(f) Mandatory Requirement of IFMP Certifications [Clause 4(k) of Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations)

Regulations, 2016].
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(iii)  Performed off-site monitoring of the following periodic reports filed by securities brokers:

(a) Annual Verified Clients Assets Segregation Statements (CASS);

(b) Monthly and Reviewed Liquid Capital Statements;

(c) Fortnightly CASS Reporting;

(d) Monthly net worth statements;

(e) Quarterly compliance report of the functional and accessible website;
(f) Quarterly customer grievances details; and

(9) Mandatory submission of financial statements.

Joint Inspection:

As per the Annual Inspection Plan of Inspections to be conducted by Joint Inspection Team (JIT) during the year
2024-25, the JIT completed inspections of 68 securities brokers and submitted finding reports to the SECP and
SROs for taking enforcement actions.

The brief of the Inspections performed by JIT as per the Annual Inspection Plan for the year 2024-25 is mentioned
hereunder:

Inspections Inspections
Sr. #| Inspection Type Completed in Process
No. of Securities Brokers
i Joint Inspection of Securities Brokers 35 5
it | Thematic Review on key areas of AML/ CFT / CPF Regulations 22 -
iii | Full Scope Thematic Review of AML/ CFT /CPF Regulations 1 1
iv | Follow-Up inspection of AML/ CFT / CPF Regulations 10 -
v | PCM Inspection -
Total 68 7

Investor Education and Regulatory Awareness:

As part of RAD's efforts to enhance investor education and regulatory awareness, various market notifications have
been issued to educate the listed companies and others concerned to ensure compliance with the disclosure and
reporting requirements under the PSX Regulations. RAD also issued investors bulletins to educate investors on
“Precautions for investors appointing other individuals as authorized persons to trade on their behalf”, “Publication
of Updated Investor Awareness Guide” and “Fraudulent Social Media Investment Groups on the Rise”.

The important awareness notices for the listed companies and investors bulletin issued during the period are as
follows:

Sr. # ‘ Investor’s Alert / Bulletin

i Precautions for investors appointing other individuals as authorized persons to trade on their behalf.

ii Investor Alert - Fraudulent Social Media Investment Groups on the Rise

i Publication of Updated Investor Awareness Guide
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Sr. # | Notices

i Requirement to disclose cumulative shareholding by the relevant persons of listed companies while

disclosing their change of interest.

ii Enhancement of Forms 3 and 7 of the Correspondence Manual of PSX to require dissemination of addi-

tional information along with the quarterly and annual financial results.

iii Payment of annual listing fee and supervisory fee of SECP for FY 2024-25.

v Mandatory disclosure of gender pay gap data in the annual report and on the company’s website.

\% Compliance with trade disclosure and reporting obligations under PSX Regulation 5.6.4 and Section 101 of
the Securities Act, 2015.

vi Timely compliance with the reporting and disclosure obligations under PSX Regulations.

Sr. # | Awareness & Consultation Sessions

i Awareness session for the market participants on important area of Market Misconducts/ Abuses
prescribed under Chapter 7A of PSX Rulebook to provide a detailed insight on the legal frameworks
governing market abuses and the various forms of market abuses which are prohibited and tantamount

to criminal offenses if committed by any person.

ii Consultation sessions with PSBA and stakeholders on regulatory amendments notified for seeking public
comments to demonstrate the objectives and market impact of such amendments such as reforms in

GEM Regulations and strengthening of oversight on the employees of securities brokers.

iii Consultation sessions for stakeholders through the platform of Pakistan Institute of Corporate

Governance.

Trading & TREC Affairs Department

Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) continued to make significant progress in the development of its primary auction
platform for GoP Ijarah Sukuk (GIS) as well as its secondary market infrastructure.

A total of 23 GIS Auctions have been conducted successfully since December 8, 2023, till the end of FY25 through
which PSX has raised over PKR 2.21 Trillion for the Ministry of Finance (MoF), marking a significant achievement for
both PSX and the Capital Market Eco-system at large. GIS auctions witnessed strong participation from commercial
banks, mutual funds and brokerage firms. Each of the auction contributed to the development of Shariah compliant
Government Securities market.

The Debt Management Office (DMO) of Ministry of Finance (MoF), in collaboration with Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX) has successfully launched its first 3-Years Variable Rental Rate GoP Ijarah Green Sukuk under the
Sustainable Investment Sukuk (SI Sukuk) Framework. The Green Sukuk is structured in compliance with the Shariah
Principles. The MoF has successfully raised Rs 31.99 billion through the issuance of a green sukuk on the Pakistan
Stock Exchange (PSX). The funds raised will be used to finance green infrastructure projects, including dams and
hydropower projects.

Availability of GIS Auction Calendar and GIS Auction Results under London Stock Exchange Group (LSEG) - Refinitiv
workspace is also a key achievement of PSX during the FY25.

Building on the success of initiatives taken previously, GIS has continued to gain traction in both primary &
secondary markets leading to improvement in liquidity and supporting the GoP in raising funds.
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PSX has also continued to implement various liquidity enhancement measures for the GIS secondary market, that
included:

1. Onboarding of Commercial Banks & Mutual Funds as Trading Participants for proprietary GIS trading.

il. Reduction in PSX Trading fee for GIS in order to increase liquidity in the secondary market.

ii. Implementation of a GIS revaluation mechanism similar to the Over-The-Counter (OTC) market as per market
participants’ requirement.

iv. Extension of market timings for GIS trading.

v. Same-day (T+0) instant settlement mechanism for GIS trades executed through the Negotiated Deals Market
(NDM) counter.

vi. In addition to the aforementioned process improvements and initiatives, various improvements have also been
made to the PSX Data Portal and ancillary applications to increase GIS visibility, that includes: Visibility of Yield
% against Last Traded Price column on Market Watch and for both Bid and Offer on the DPS Trading Panel,
Visibility of Yield % on the Jade Trading Terminal (JTT), addition of a dedicated section for GIS reporting within
the Daily Quotation report, Consolidated Auction Results summary, separate section for GIS to display
necessary details required by the investors/market participants.

Another key area of development during the period includes the induction of the first Online Only Broker inducted
through the Online Only Licensing Regime, that offered one-window digital platform enabling any public or private
company including a ‘Single Member Company’ to provide Online-only brokerage services.

Record volumes were handled through an efficient trading system and processes capable of dealing with any
unforeseen circumstances whether it was the effect of market halt or geo-political events such as US Tariff issue,
Pakistan-India conflict or Iran-Israel conflict testified to the resilient strength of the systems and its processes,
dealing with major fluctuation that were managed efficiently and orderly — further endorsing the strength and
effectiveness of procedures and controls at Pakistan Stock Exchange.

Productive engagements with regional peers for mutual learning and collaboration led to a landmark move in
strengthening regional capital market cooperation, Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) entered into a tripartite
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Colombo Stock Exchange (CSE) and Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE). The
agreement was signed in Colombo, aimed to create an exchange forum to facilitate technological development,
sharing human resource, product development, regulatory collaboration, investor protection, and knowledge
exchange, fostering a continuing relationship across the three markets.

Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) also signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Baku Stock Exchange,
marking a significant step towards increasing bilateral collaboration between Pakistani-Azeri Capital Markets. The
MOU aims to establish robust communication channels and strengthen the relationship between the capital
markets of Pakistan & Azerbaijan, fostering mutual growth and development in the financial services sectors
between both countries.

Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) participated in co-hosting 2nd International Islamic Capital Market Conference &
Expo 2024, themed "From Tech Transformation to Realizing Sustainability: Building an Inclusive Islamic Capital
Market. Delegates of the Conference were welcomed at PSX with a Gong Ceremony.

PSX has seen renewed interest in stock splits, with leading names leveraging this strategy to increase market
participation. To facilitate this process Guidelines on Stock Split for listed companies were issued by Pakistan Stock
Exchange. These Guidelines aim to promote stock splits as a viable financial strategy for the capital market,
especially with high share prices. Benefits of stock split include; Increased market accessibility; wider market reach;
signaling positive information to investors; & Increased liquidity. Stock Split Guidelines include detailed information
regarding the legal & procedural aspects of stock splits, overall process flow, real-world case studies, etc.
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Legal & Corporate Affairs Department

The Legal and Corporate Affairs Department of the Exchange continued to play a pivotal role in ensuring sound
governance, legal compliance, and corporate stewardship at the Exchange.

The Department ensured timely and effective conduct of meetings of the Board of Directors, its Committees, and
the General Body in compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and internal protocols. Statutory filings and
corporate disclosures were submitted in a timely and accurate manner, and shareholder queries and matters,
particularly those concerning shareholding, were addressed with due diligence. Substantive comments and inputs
were submitted to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on various regulatory consultations,
reflecting PSX's considered position on proposed amendments within the legal framework. The Department also
engaged with SECP and other stakeholders by contributing to submitting recommendations on evolving legal and
regulatory matters.

Under the guidance of the Board, the Department successfully managed the process for the appointment of PSX's
Chief Executive Officer in line with the Securities Exchanges (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016, together
with requisite evaluation in the light of applicable ‘Fit & Proper Criteria’ in a timely manner. The Department also led
the legal and corporate governance aspects of the election process at associated and connected companies,
enabling PSX to continue securing representation on their Boards.

The Department provided proactive legal counsel to protect the interests of the Exchange in its business
engagements, contractual relationships, and operational activities. Legal opinions were rendered promptly to the
Board, Committees, and relevant departments, ensuring that decisions were taken with full awareness of legal
implications. A significant portion of legal matters was handled in-house, resulting in considerable cost savings
while maintaining quality and timeliness. All legal documentation was thoroughly reviewed, and necessary advice
or revisions were communicated within prescribed timelines.

The Secretariat function continued to maintain high standards in managing corporate records, statutory registers,
and governance documents in compliance with applicable corporate laws. Meeting minutes, resolutions, and
decisions of the Board and Committees were accurately documented and preserved. The Department ensured the
seamless flow of information and coordination between the Board, Management, and regulatory authorities.
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Products and Services

PSX Products

e Equity Segments (Main Board & GEM Board)
e Ready / Regular Market (T+2)
e (Odd lot Market
e Square up Market
e Bills & Bonds Market
o Govermment Debt Securities (Primary Market Auction of GOP ljarah Sukuk)
e Corporate Debt Securities
e Futures Counter
e Deliverable Futures Contract (DFC)
e Stock Index Futures Contract (SIFC)
e Negotiated Deal Market
e Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs)
e Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT)

Investor Services

e Automated Trading (through TRECHS)

e« EIPO

e PSX Corporate Website (www.psx.com.pk)

o PSX Data Portal (dps.psx.com.pk)

e Market Data (through Data Vendors)

e Book Building (through Book Runners)

e Government Debt Securities (GDS) Auction System

Upcoming Products and Services
o Additional ETFs / Indices

e Revival of Cash Settled Futures (CSF)
* Single Stock Options
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Highlights

Key Financial Highlights (Six Years at a Glance)

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Share Capital 8,015 8,015 8,015 8,015 8,015 8,015
Reserves 232 954 1,217 1,448 2,523 3,193
Surplus on Revaluation of Assets - Net of Tax 815 762 968 933 901 871
Total Equity 9,062 9,730 10,200 10,396 11,439 12,079
Long Term Liabilities 640 578 836 604 509 627
Current Liabilities 1,610 1,685 1,613 2,036 2,241 2,295
Liabilities related to assets held for

distribution to shareholders / disposal 323 - - - - -
Total Liabilities 2,573 2,263 2,449 2,640 2,750 2,922
Fixed Assets 1,000 4,987 5,861 5,823 6,008 5,861
Other Long Term Assets 3,139 3,942 3,531 3,707 4,437 5,318
Current Assets 2,767 3,064 3,257 3,506 3,744 3,822
Assets held for distribution to shareholders / disposal 4,729 = = = = =
Total Assets 11,634 11,993 12,648 13,036 14,189 15,001

Operational Results

Total Income 1,373 2,095 1,887 1,824 3,114 3,989
Total Expenses 1,182 1,372 1,427 1,574 2,004 2,061
Profit Before Tax 191 723 460 250 1,110 1,928
Profit After Tax 194 696 399 220 1,028 1,521
Ratios

Current Ratio 1.49 181 2.02 172 1.67 1.67
Quick Ratio 112 1.80 2.01 171 1.66 1.65
Net Profit Margin 14% 33% 21% 12% 33% 38%
Expenses as a percentage of Revenue 86% 66% 76% 86% 64% 52%
Profit Before Tax as a percentage of Revenue 14% 34% 24% 14% 36% 48%
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Summary of Trading Right Entitlement (TRE)
Certificate Holders of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX)

Status of TRE Certificate During the Period from July 01, 2024 to June 30, 2025
Location TREC Holders as | Issuance/Auction of Forfeited / Lapsed Relinquished TREC Holders as
of July 01, 2024 TRE Certificate | Expelled/Cancelled /Surrendered of June 30, 2025

Karachi 0

Lahore 78 O O 0 O 78
[slamabad 43 1 0 0 0 44
Total 269 10 0 0 3 276

Month-wise Traded Volumes & Value in
Each Market Segment

Traded Volume Traded Value No. of |Avg.Daily Traded| Avg. Daily Traded
Month (No. Mn) (PKR Mn) Traciing Volume (Mn) Value (PKR Mn)

Days _

8,538 2,985 405,325 152,576 21 19,301 7,266
Aug 11,309 4,019 391,894 161,658 21 539 191 18,662 7,698
Sep 10,542 3,601 321,471 135,949 20 527 185 16,074 6,797
Oct 11,930 3,725 584,591 197,498 23 519 162 25,417 8,587
Nov 18,380 4,594 690,976 205,016 21 875 219 32,904 9,763
Dec 26,467 6,633 1,120,272 312,805 21 1260 316 53,346 14,895
Jan 15,608 4,800 763,949 253,647 23 679 209 33,215 11,028
Feb 9,790 3,595 462,077 194,550 19 515 189 24,320 10,239
Mar 6,948 3,087 456,414 213,884 19 366 162 24,022 11,257
Apr 10,363 3,568 631,735 241,996 20 518 178 31,587 12,100
May 11,317 3,601 562,329 233,387 20 566 185 28,116 11,669
Jun 15,204 4,134 562,897 203,062 19 800 218 29,626 10,687
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Foreign Investors Net Inflows / Outflows (USD in Million)
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Average Daily Traded Value (Ready + Futures) - PKR in Billion
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Summary of Customer Compensation Fund

Summary of Centralized Customers Protection Compensation Fund
As at June 30, 2025 (unaudited)

Opening Balance July 2024 6,861,646,301
Contribution during the year 1,232,302,460
Amounts Utilized during the year (21,213,055)
Audit Fee (363,000)
Others (6,251,400)
Fund position as at June 30, 2025 8,066,121,306
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Summary Of Enforcement Actions Taken During the Year 2024-25

Enforcement Actions Against Non-Compliant Securities Brokers:
A summary of actions taken against the non-compliant securities brokers identified during the Primary Audits /
Thematic Reviews conducted during the year and carried forwarded from previous year is tabulated below:

Summary of Enforcement Actions Taken During Year 2024-2025
Type of Enforcement Action

No. of

Sr.#| Activities ; Restriction
Hearings/ No. of No. of : .
Explanation Actions Warning/ h{%gg:‘;‘&e Imp'?‘:ig{ilg?:lmg
clte Suspended
i System Audit 02 05 02 02 1
it | IBTS Audit 02 02 02 0 0
iit | Joint Inspection 40 38 17 21 0
iv | Thematic Reviews 19 25 17 08 0
v | Off-Site Monitoring 0 09 0 0 9
vi | On-Site branch review 0 01 0 01 0
vii | Client Assets Segregation 01 01 0 01 0
viii | Blank Sale under Ready Market 12 10 0 10 0
ix | Trade related disclosures by
substantial shareholders and other
directors of a securities broker 9 8 2 6 0
Total 85 99 40 49 10
Note:

(i) An aggregate fine of PKR 33,235,951/- was imposed by CRO on securities brokers.
(i) The trading terminals of 10 securities brokers were suspended due to non-submission of monthly LC, a shortfall
in LC, non-submission of annual audited financial statements and violation of branch office regulations.

Enforcement Actions Against Non-Compliant Listed Companies:
A summary of enforcement actions taken against the non-compliant listed companies during the year is tabulated below:

Enforcement Actions Taken Against Listed Companies

S.# Description No. of Companies

i Placement of listed companies in the Non-Compliant Segment 8
ii Placement of listed companies in the Winding-up Segment 1
il Freezing of shareholdings of Sponsors, Directors and Senior Management
of listed companies placed on the Non-Compliant or Winding-up
Segments as well as restriction in transfer of shares in physical form 9
v Issuance of Risk Warning Alert 13
\% Suspension of trading in shares 5
Vi Shifted to Normal Counter upon rectification of default(s) 8
vil Restoration of trading in the shares of listed companies quoted in
the Non-Compliant Segment 1
viii Issuance of Continuous Suspension Notices 190
X Addition or rectification of non-compliances in listed companies
already Quoted in Non-Compliant or Winding-up Segments 54
X Issuance of Compulsory buy-back direction 12
xi Forwarding of Cases to SECP for initiating winding-up petition under
Companies Act, 2017 21

Note: An aggregate fine of PKR 26,193,377/- was imposed by CRO against listed companies during 2024-25.
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Summary of Penalties Imposed During the Year 2024-2025:

Fine imposed on securities brokers PKR 33,235,951

Fine imposed on listed companies PKR 26,193,377

Claims Received & Verified Against Former TREC Holders:

RAD made a significant contribution to protect the rights and interests of the claimants of two (02) former TRE
Certificate Holders, whose TRE Certificates were earlier forfeited. PSX disbursed the funds amounting to PKR 86.2
Million among 540 admitted claimants of these former TRE Certificate Holders. In one of the cases, PSX, in
collaboration with the SECP and other SROs, ensured that full settlement be made to the claimants of the former
TRE Certificate Holder through continuous deliberations with that former TRE Certificate Holder for arranging
additional funds from its resources. As a result, all admitted claims were successfully settled in full.

Moreover, on direction of the Hon'ble Sindh High Court, RAD also settled claims of one (01) suspended TRE
Certificate Holder amounting to PKR 138.5 Million among 81 admitted claimants. All the admitted claimants were
paid the full amount in satisfaction of their claims.

RAD is fully committed to settle in full the old cases of defaulted TRE Certificate Holders, provided the requisite
clearances are received from the relevant competent authorities.

Referral Of Potential Cases Of Market Misconduct/Abuse To SECP:

During the year Market Surveillance (MS) of RAD thoroughly assessed 42 potential cases of Market Misconduct, out
of which 11 cases involving prima facie Insider Trading and Market Manipulation were referred to SECP for further
action under the governing laws.

The summary is provided in table below:

Assessment In Relation To Potential Cases Of Market Misconduct

No. of Cases with
No-of cases thor<?ughly No. of cases concluded ACHEEOI RS No. of cases
assessed in relation to

with Nil Adverse Findings Cases referred Reports under under assessment

to SECP review

Market Misconduct
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Complaints Against Securities Brokers And Listed Companies:

L A summary of the number of complaints registered against active securities brokers during the aforesaid
period is given below:

Opening Complaints Resolved Complaints

. Complaints
no. of received through settled through outstanding
complaints during the year mediation arbitration
20 202 180 14 28
II. A summary of complaints received on the PMDU Portal and resolved during the review period is given below:

Opening Received Resolved Complaints

outstanding

I1L. RAD also addressed 23 complaints received from different sources regarding various matters of the listed
companies placed in the Non-Compliant or Winding-up Segments.
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Market Performance

Performance of Top 10 Sectors by Market Cap

Market Capitalization (PKR)

No. of Companies

Sectors in KSE 100

% of Total 28-Jun-24

30-Jun-25 Growth (%)

MCAP

Commercial Banks 3,285,948,581,995 22% 2,173,352,889,025 51% 13
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies | 2,331,820,821,300 15% 1,401,774,093,558 66% 4
Cement 1,365,269,165,044 9% 708,467,100,092 93% 8
Food & Personal Care Products | 1,322,378,620,901 9% 1,107,522,119,298 19% 8
Fertilizer 1,093,088,825,601 7% 782,365,732,825 40% 3
Pharmaceuticals 577,046,490,197 4% 286,419,258,972 101% 6
Automobile Assembler 572,869,579,421 4% 452,137,166,100 27% 5
Inv. Banks / Inv. Cos.

/ Securities Cos. 507,614,500,301 3% 234,113,959,941 117% 2
Power Generation & Distribution | 472,733,900,355 3% 472,302,072,021 0.1%

Technology & Communication 432,397,170,934 3% 311,295,537,711 39% 6
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Market Highlights

Description

Total Listed Companies
Total Listed Capital (PKR in million)
Total Market Capitalization (PKR in million)

New Companies Listed
Listed Capital of New Companies
(PKR in million)

New GEM Companies Listed
Listed Capital of New Companies
(PKR in million)

New Debt Instruments Listed
Total Issue Size of New Debt Instruments
(PKR in million)

Total Shares Volume — Ready Market
(shares in million)

Average Daily Share Volume — Ready Market
(shares in million)

Average Daily Trade Value — Ready Market
(PKR in million)

KSE Indices

KSE — 100 Index
Year End

High

Low

KSE — All Share Index
Year End

High

Low

KSE — 30 Index
Year End

High

Low

KMI - 30 Index
Year End

High

Low

2021

532
1,442,639
8,297,305
5

17,642

6

251,967

137,341

552

19,201

47356.02
48726.08
34889.41

32479.82
33103.22
24959.44

18961.90
19731.43
1512175

76621.54
80168.03
56459.32

2022

530
1,525,899
6,956,508
5

15,209

1,597

11,600

76,908

309

9,662

41540.83
48112.21
40879.93

28582.29
3282175
28110.70

15805.04
19365.90
15567.96

68766.37
78521.49
66851.15

2023
524
1,627,167
6,369,473
4

8,664

10

54,173

51,806

211

6,117

41452.69
43888.23
38135.53

28111.03
30102.48
25881.24

14636.72
16646.37
14029.75

70748.13
73985.43
64519.84

2024

524
1,706,197
10,374,799
11

103,301

1

1,941

4

8,558

117,589

482

15,729

78444.96
80059.87
41452.68

49683.75
50468.50
28111.03

25282.04
25918.60
14636.72

126424.27
128465.34
70748.12

2025

527
1,638,480
15,239,540
7

11,823

1,443
3

5,050

164,801

667

28,059

125627.31
126718.28
76943.24

78584.71
78716.99
49141.20

38153.79
38367.89
24612.86

184886.50
189534.87
121444.36
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NOTES:

(iif)

(vi)

The figures are from July to June.

The total number of listed companies have been stated after 2 companies delisted in 2021, 3 companies
delisted in 2022, 5 companies delisted in 2023 and 3 companies delisted in 2024 and 1 company merged in
2021, 4 companies merged in 2022, 5 companies merged in 2023, 8 companies merged in 2024 and 4
companies merged in 2025.

The total listed capital has been stated after adjustment of capital of companies by way of merger, bifurcation
and de-listing, etc.

The KSE 100 Index was started in November 1991 with a base of 1000 points and it is recomposed
semi-annually and was last re-composed on February 28, 2025 closing statistics.

The KSE All Share Index based on the prices of August 29, 1995 = 1000, commenced w.e.f. September 18, 1995.

The KSE - 30 Index based on the prices of June 30, 2005 = 10000, introduced w.e.f. September 01, 2006.

(vil) The KMI - 30 Index introduced w.e.f. September 01, 2008.
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Indices Performance

KSE100 Index FY2016 TO FY2025
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KMI30 Index FY2016 TO FY2025

190,000

170,000

150,000

130,000

110,000

90,000

70,000

50,000

30,000

Jun-15 Jun-16 Jun-17 Jun-18 Jun-19 Jun-20 Jun-21 Jun-22 Jun-23 Jun-24 Jun-25

© |45




Pakistan Stock Exchange

BKTI - Banking Tradable Index*
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*BKTI is a price return index

OGTI - Oil & Gas Tradable Index*
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*OGTl is a price return index

PSXDIV20 - PSX Dividend 20 Index
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NITPGI - NIT Pakistan Gateway Index
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UPP9 - UBL Pakistan Enterprise Index
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NBPPGI - NBP Pakistan Growth Index
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MZNPI - Meezan Pakistan Index
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JSMFI - JS Momentum Factor Index
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ACI - Alfalah Consumer Index
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JSGBKTI - JS Global Banking Sector Index
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MII30 - Mahaana Islamic Index
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Statistics

(Since July 2024 to June 2025)

Listing of New Companies — Equity

PKR in million

Total Amount Offered Subscription Received
Sr.No. | Name of Company Date of Paid up (Including Premium) (Including Premium)
Listing Capital | Book Building | General Public |Book Building | General Public

1 UDL International Limited 10-Jul-2024 351 - - - -

Big Bird Foods Limited 05-Aug-2024 2,989 - - - -

BF Biosciences Limited

(At a premium of PKR 74 per share) 21-Oct-2024 265 1,444 481 4,670 487
4 DH Partners Limited 03-Feb-2025 4,813 - - - -
5 Zarea Limited

(At a premium of PKR 15.50 per share) |28-Feb-2025 263 773 258 1,950 357
6 Barkat Frisian Agro Limited

(At a premium of PKR 17.20 per share) |07-Mar-2025 310 925 308 14,248 1,200
7 Ghani ChemWorld Limited 24-Apr-2025 2,501 - - - -

Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited —

Class “C" Ordinary Shares 17-Jun-2025 331 - - - -

TOTAL 11,823 3,142 1,047 20,868 2,044

UDL International Limited (UDLI): UDLI was listed without public offering pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement for Merger
/ Amalgamation of First UDL Modaraba (FUDLM) with and into UDL International Limited (UDLI). As per the swap ratio, the
certificate holders of FUDLM has been allotted 1 share of UDLI against 1 certificate of FUDLM.

Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL): BBFL was listed without public offering pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement for Merger /
Amalgamation of MetaTech Trading Limited (META) with and into Big Bird Foods Limited (BBFL). As per the swap ratio, the
shareholders of META has been allotted 0.24 share of BBFL against 1 share of META.

DH Partners Limited (DHPL): DHPL was listed without public offering pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement under which, Engro
Holdings Limited (ENGROH) formerly: Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited has been demerged into two legal entities
whereby all its assets, liabilities and obligations other than its investment in shares of Engro Corporation Limited as specified in
the Scheme have been vested into DHPL. As per the swap ratio, the shareholders of ENGROH have been allotted 1 share of DHPL
against 1 share of ENGROH.

Zarea Limited (ZAL): Zarea had offered shares to the General Public at PKR 16.00 per share (3.03% discount to strike price of PKR
16.50) against the subscription of 500, 1,000, 1,500 and 2,000 shares. Subscription above 2,000 shares was issued at the Strike
Price of PKR 16.50.

Ghani ChemWorld Limited (GCWL): GCWL was listed without public offering pursuant to Scheme of Arrangement under
which, complete business and undertaking of Calcium Carbide Project of Ghani Chemical Industries Limited (GCIL) has been
transferred with and into GCWL. As per the swap ratio, the shareholders of GCIL have been issued 1 share of GCWL against every
2 shares of GCIL.

Mughal Iron & Steel Industries Limited (MUGHALC): MUGHALC was listed without public offering by way of Right Issue of
9.85% Ordinary Class - "C" shares against every 100 shares issuance to existing ordinary shareholders of the Company.
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PKR in million

Total Amount Offered Subscription Received
Sr.No.| Name of Company Date of Paid up (Including Premium) (Including Premium)
Listing Capital |gook Building | General Public |Book Building | General Public
1 | Burj Clean Energy Modaraba 10-Oct-2024| 1,000 - 100 - 102
2 | Nets Interational Communication
Limited 26-May-2025| 368 - 37 - 46
3 | The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency
Limited
(At a premium of PKR 14.05 per share) |30-Jun-2025 75 112 - 396 -
TOTAL 1,443 112 137 396 148
Listing of New Debt Instruments
Privately Placed PKR in million
Sr. No. | Name of Securities Type of Issue Date of Listing Amount Listed
1 At-Tahur Limited Sukuk 27-Feb-2025 750
2 Sitara Chemicals Industries Limited Sukuk 16-May-2025 2,300
3 Mobilink Microfinance Bank Limited TFC 22-May-2025 2,000
TOTAL 5,050

Listing of Open—end Mutual Fund

PKR in million

Sr. No. | Name of Fund Date of Listing Total Fund Size
1 Atlas Islamic Cash Fund 19-Jul-2024 756
2 NBP Mustahkum Fund - II 16-Aug-2024 1,500
3 Meezan Fixed Term Fund 02-Sep-2024 25
4 Meezan Dynamic Asset Allocation Fund 01-Oct-2024 27
5 ABL Islamic Sovereign Fund 09-Apr-2025 1
TOTAL 2,309

Delisting of Companies

PKR in million

Sr. No.

1 Pak Elektron Limited — Preference Shares

Date of De-Listing
29-Apr-2025

Name of Company

Paid up Capital

450

Merger of Companies

Sr. No. | Name of Company Merged with Date of Merger
1 MetaTech Trading Limited | Big Bird Foods Limited 05-Aug-2024
2 Fuji Fertilizer Bin Qasim
Limited Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 31-Dec-2024
3 Engro Corporation Limited | Engro Holdings Limited 14-Jan-2025
SilkBank Limited United Bank Limited 07-Apr-2025

PKR in million
Paid up Capital
74

12,913
5,366
90,819
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Delisting of Debt Securities

Name of Security Date of De-Listing
1 At-Tahur Limited — Sukuk (PREMASC) 27-Jun-2025

Delisting of Open-end Funds

Name of Security Date of De-Listing
1 NAFA Islamic Active Allocation Fund -1 22-Apr-2025
NAFA Islamic Active Allocation Fund - II 22-Apr-2025
3 NAFA Islamic Active Allocation Fund — III 22-Apr-2025

Change of Name of Companies

Sr. No.| Old Name New Name Effective Date
1 EFG Hermes Pakistan Limited Intermarket Securities Limited 25-Nov-2024
2 Landmark Spinning Industries Limited Liven Pharma Limited 18-Dec-2024
3 Dar-Es-Salaam Textile Mills Limited TPL Life Insurance Limited 30-Dec-2024
4 Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited | Engro Holdings Limited 06-Jan-2025
5 Saudi Pak Leasing Company Limited Saudi Pak Consultancy Company

Limited 16-Jan-2025
6 Hallmark Company Limited Supernet Technologies Limited 16-Jan-2025
7 Mari Petroleum Company Limited Mari Energies Limited 21-Jan-2025
8 Shell Pakistan Limited Wafi Energy Pakistan Limited 03-Mar-2025
9 Synthetic Products Enterprises Limited SPEL Limited 25-Apr-2025
10 D.M. Textile Mills Limited D.M. Corporation Limited 12-Jun-2025

Break-up of Listed Capital
2022 m2023 m2024 m2025

120,000 +
105,244
100,000 A
80,000 +
60,000 -

40,000 +

200001 o one
209 o oo 12860 11600

8558 5,050 L5t 7,203 3448

O -
Listed Capital of New  Listed Amount of New Bonus Issues Right Issues Otherwise than Right
Companies Debt Instruments Issues
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Average Monthly Turnover of Shares (Ready) (Shares in million)
2022 2023 2024 2025
July 497.379 151.866 399.242 431.200
August 372.137 338.810 309.751 552.287
September 435.700 188.634 172.387 544923
October 288.461 285.805 382.037 615.928
November 326.320 224.024 669.354 891.889
December 254.120 208.761 1,058.283 1,280.350
January 277.336 194.357 510.323 726.145
February 233.048 190.306 378.426 529.652
March 221488 189.067 365.390 396.983
April 312.570 145.681 509.847 539.430
May 264.487 183.314 577.556 592.552
June 239.400 205.412 459.336 869.417

3,722.448 2,506.036 5,791.930 7,970.754

8,000
7,500
7000
6,500
6,000 5,792
5,500
5,000 +
4,500
4,000 3722
3,500 -
3,000 H
2,500 —
2,000
1,500 4
1,000

2,506

2022 2023 2024 2025
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Average Monthly Turnover of Shares (Futures Counter)

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April

May

June
Total

2,700
2,500
2,300 +
2,100
1,900 +
1,700
1,500 +
1,300
1,100 H

900

700

500

300

1000 L |

1,399

2022

2023

2022
129.406
147.176
166.610
120.564
118.387
106.438
104.313
101.648
91.096
118.226
107.500
87.198
1,398.561

1,867

2024

2023
78.035
112.743
80.024
103.179
83.208
60.146
75.639
76.945
68.706
62.514
70.299
82.405
953.844

2024
125.064
114.142
81.096
115.081
175.555
267.365
181.199
151.808
146.684
172.055
179.847
157.554
1,867.451

2,368

2025

(Shares in million)

2025
142.140
191.360
184.559
178.621
218.745
314.203
206.663
189.214
162.476
178.409
184.540
217.564

2,368.493




Ready Market Trades

Month

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April

May

June

44,822,789

73,288,208

2025

230,162
244,559
226,531
267,172
348,635
471,121
335,782
261,882
220,688
309,742
293,609
340,514

2024
2Ly
3,006,773 150,339 4,833,409
3,048,803 138,582 5,135,742
1,814,145 90,707 4,530,625
3,313,130 150,597 6,144,957
4,924,803 234,514 7,321,332
5,495,995 274,800 9,893,546
4,269,146 185,615 7,722,979
3,122,828 164,359 4,975,757
3,220,039 153,335 4,193,078
3,966,041 220,336 6,194,838
5,051,912 240,567 5,872,184
3,589,174 211,128 6,469,761
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Sector-wise Capital Listed on the Exchange

Sector Name
Close-End Mutual Fund
Modarabas

Leasing Companies

Commercial Banks

Insurance

Real Estate Investment Trust
Textile Spinning

Textile Weaving

Textile Composite

Woollen

Synthetic & Rayon

Jute

Sugar & Allied Industries
Cement

Property

Tobacco

Refinery

Power Generation & Distribution
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies
Engineering

Automobile Assembler
Automobile Parts & Accessories
Cable & Electrical Goods
Transport

Technology & Communication
Fertilizer

Pharmaceuticals

Chemical

Paper, Board & Packaging
Vanaspati & Allied Industries
Leather & Tanneries

Food & Personal Care Products
Glass & Ceramics
Miscellaneous

Growth Enterprise Market (GEM)
Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs)

Inv. Banks / Inv. Cos / Securities Cos

PKR in million

June 30, 2025

No. of Companies

5
22
7
36
19
30
3
60
9
50
1
10
2
28
19
5
3

15
9
4

16

10

11
7
5

17
5

14

25

12
3
6

27

Paid up Capital

5,886.250
9,235.761
2,430.805
128,343.498
358,682.789
45,964.033
41,987.000
23,226.864
3,237.096
57,572.733
95.063
13,174.349
280.963
11,877.644
95,074.026
13,265.088
3,239.965
63,100.305
146,237.169
35,338.614
85,063.879
37,436.869
8,975.795
15,652.939
21,994.990
25,830.222
131,336.737
58,791.903
19,226.013
50,065.863
18,157.714
143.790
2,720.039
68,858.230
23,797.194
10,487.691
5,215.309
2,376.735

1,644,381.927

56|




Annual Report 2025

Sector-wise Performance of Companies Listed on the Exchange - 2024
2024

Name of Sector Number of |Companies that |Dividend Paying| Profit Making Profit
Companies Announced Companies | Companies that Making
Annual Results Omitted Dividend | Companies | Companies
5 1 3 -

Close-End Mutual Fund 1 -
Modarabas 22 20 9 7 16 4
Leasing Companies 7 4 - 4 4 -
Inv. Banks / Inv. Cos. / Securities Cos. 35 31 12 14 26 5
Commercial Banks 20 20 16 2 18 2
Insurance 29 25 15 9 24 1
Real Estate Investment Trust 3 3 2 1 3 -
Textile Spinning 62 54 5 12 17 37
Textile Weaving 9 6 2 1 3 3
Textile Composite 50 43 10 14 24 19
Woollen 1 1 - 1 1 -
Synthetic & Rayon 10 9 - 5 5 4
Jute 2 2 - - - 2
Sugar & Allied Industries 28 28 6 5 11 17
Cement 19 18 8 8 16 2
Property 5 5 2 2 4 1
Tobacco 3 3 1 1 2 1
Refinery 4 4 2 1 3 1
Power Generation & Distribution 15 14 9 3 12 2
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies 9 8 4 1 5 3
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies 4 4 4 - 4 -
Engineering 16 14 3 3 6 8
Automobile Assembler 10 10 5 2 7 3
Automobile Parts & Accessories 11 11 5 2 7 4
Cable & Electrical Goods 7 7 2 4 6 1
Transport 5 5 2 3 5 -
Technology & Communication 16 16 5 7 12 4
Fertilizer 5 4 5 - 4 -
Pharmaceuticals 13 12 9 1 10 2
Chemical 25 25 12 7 19 6
Paper, Board & Packaging 12 11 7 2 9 2
Vanaspati & Allied Industries 3 2 - - 2
Leather & Tanneries 6 6 3 2 5 1
Food & Personal Care Products 26 24 10 7 17 7
Glass & Ceramics 9 8 3 2 5 3
Miscellaneous 19 18 5 7 12 6
Growth Enterprise Market (GEM) 5 4 - 3 3 1

PERCENTAGE | o057% 35.09% 26.42% 61.51% | 29.06%
PERCENTAGE 92.79% 39.85% 22.77% 62.62% | 30.17%
Notes:
1 Based on the financial results of the companies up to December 31, 2024.
2 Companies omitted dividends are those companies, which have shown profit during the year but not declared dividend.
3 Dividend includes Cash / Stock Dividend.
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Number of Listed Companies

600

575

550 - 532 =0

525
500
475
450 -
425 +
400
375 H
350
325
300

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Percentage of Companies Making Profit

70% .

30%
20%

10%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

58|



Annual Report 2025

Percentage of Companies Paying Dividends

60%

46%

40% 35%
40%

34%
30%

20% —

10%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Percentage of Companies that Announced Annual Results

o 90% 91% oo 91% 91%
90%
80% o
70%
60%
50% o
40% -
30%
20%

10% -

0%

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

159




Pakistan Stock Exchange

Performance of Global Stock Indices in USD during July 2024 - June 2025
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r---- Highest Index Points Reached:
KSE-100 125,627.31

Date: 30 June, 2025.

Closing Value on

June 30, 2025: 125,627.31
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Dr. Shamshad Akhtar served twice as the Federal Finance
Minister of Pakistan (2018 and 2023-2024) holding multiple
economic portfolios in the caretaker governments. She
served as the Governor, State Bank of Pakistan.

At global level, Dr. Akhtar served as the Under-Secretary
General of the Economic and Social Commission of the
Asia and Pacific (UNESCAP) and prior to that as the United
Nations (UN) Secretary General's Senior Special Advisor on
Economics and Finance/UN DESA and UN Secretary
General's G20 Sherpa for the Development track, while
pursuing Finance and Central Bank tracks. During her term
at UN, among others, she was closely involved in the
development and implementation of the 2030 Sustainable
Development Agenda (SDG), the Addis Ababa Financing
frameworks and work on the Paris Climate Accord and
ensured closer alignment of G20 development agenda with
the 2030 SDG agenda.

Dr. Akhtar served as the Vice President, Middle East and
North Africa at the World Bank, the Director General of
Asian Development Bank (ADB) and served as the Special
Sr. Advisor to the President of ADB.

She has done Ph.D. from University of Sussex and

Completed Post Doctorate (Fulbright) from Harvard
University.
On 239 March, 2024 she has been awarded the

Nishan-e-Imtiaz (Highest Civil Award of Pakistan).

Dr. Akhtar is recipient of Asia’s Best Central Bank Governor
from Emerging Markets and the Banker's Trust. In 2008, The
WALL STREET JOURNAL ASIA recognized her as one of

Dr. Shamshad
Akhtar

Chairperson &
Independent Director

Asia’s top ten professional women. She is recipient of
Medals from the President of Kazakhstan and
Turkmenistan. She has been awarded the HUM Women's
Leadership Global Award.

Dr. Akhtar is now serving as the Chairperson of few Boards in
Pakistan: the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, the Board of
Sui Southern Gas Transmission and Distribution Company,
the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, Advisor on
Pakistan Environment Trust Fund, Director Board of
Governors Karachi Grammar School and the National
University for Medical Sciences and also independent director
on Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited and BankIslami Pakistan
Limited. Earlier, she served as the Chairperson of the
Karandaaz and as an Independent Director at the Engro
Fertilizer Company.

Since 2019, she has served as one of the 12 Global Advisors
to the Ministry of Foreign Affairs on China on Belt and Road
and Policy Sherpa at the Boao Forum for Asia, while is now
the Council of Advisor for this. Dr. Akhtar is Member of the
Advisory Council of the Sustainable Finance Centre at the
SOAS at London University, Member of UN Global Women
Leaders Group, served on G20 Task Force member of the
Think Tank on Infrastructure during the Presidency of
Japan, Saudi and Italian Government and as an Advisor of
SG Food Security and Financing for Development Group.

She has conducted analytical work on Pakistan economy
on different subjects as Chair of the Pakistan Reform
Insurance Committee, Capital Markets reforms and the
Special Economic Zones etc.
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Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari has spent more than 25 years in the
Investment banking business in senior management positions
both locally and abroad. He has previously served as CEO and MD
of KASB Securities (local partner of BoA Merrill Lynch); BMA
Capital and Country Head for CLSA Emerging Markets in Pakistan.
His time abroad includes stints at CLSA Emerging Markets in NY
USA, where he was VP sub-continent sales and at Credit Suisse in
Indonesia and Singapore — where he spent seven years looking at
both APAC and Frontier Markets as Director Equities sales. He
has also served as Chairman (December 18-August 19) and
Commissioner of SECP (Securities and Exchange Commission
of Pakistan) from 2018 to 2021, a job he took up on his return
to Pakistan.

Some key initiatives during his three year term at SECP included
the introduction of a comprehensive KYC/AML reporting
mechanism for regulated entitiess in line with FATF
recommendations, the launch of ETFs in Pakistan, the revamp of
REITs regulations that has helped unleash a renewed wave of
interest in the sector, the setting up of Emlaak — a one-stop shop
for Mutual Fund Investments in the country and the introduction
of Stewardship guidelines for institutional investors to encourage
improved capital allocation through effective implementation of
the corporate governance framework.

Mr. Sabzwari was a proposed Director on the board of Hugobank
— a Getz Group entity that he had been associated with from 2022
to 2024- one of the five Digital Banking consortiums that were
awarded banking licences by the SBP in January 2023. He is
currently serving as the Chairman of the Institute of Financial
Markets of Pakistan since October 2024 and a co-opted member
of the Capital Markets Advisory Council (CMAC) set up in
November 2023. He has capital market certifications from various
jurisdictions including Singapore, Indonesia and NY and is an
alumni of the IBA in Karachi, where he graduated with an MBA in
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December 1992. To enhance his knowledge and understanding of
the Fintech space, he undertook a three month Fintech course in
Innovation and Transformation in Financial Services from the
NUS in Singapore in June 2022.
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Mr. Adnan
Asad

Independent Director

Mr. Adnan Asad is the CEO of the Venus group of
companies. Educated from Aitchison College he has a
Bachelors and Masters from Florida USA. He is also the
President of the Sindh Squash Association.

Venus Group operates in 6 countries namely USA, Pakistan,
Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Afghanistan and UAE. The Group is
involved in several fully integrated activities from
Consolidation and Freight Forwarding in USA, Clearing and
Forwarding in Pakistan, Bonded Warehouse, Intercity Logistics
Warehouses in 7 major Cities, and Direct Distribution to end
users in the Food Service Sector.

Venus Group is also the exclusive logistic partners of
McDonald’'s Pakistan and manufactures desserts, creams,
produces both dairy and non-dairy ice cream, tissue
products, packaged ice cubes, paper cups, jams and
chocolate coating. The Group has franchisees for Cold
Stone and Texas Chicken.

The Group is also constructing a resort/convention centre
on Shimla Hill Abbottabad. Future plans include having a
gold Private jet service centre in Karachi. The company has
a licensee for Eclipse Jets in the region.
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Mr. Nihal
Cassim

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Nihal is an MBA (Finance & MIS) from McGill University.
He takes particular interest in facilitating the development
of the capital market, governance of public companies and
building shareholder value.

He is currently a Director on the Boards of Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, International Steels Limited, Crescent
Steel & Allied Products Limited, The Organic Meat Company
Limited, National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited,
NIFT and Ubiquity Trading Limited. He has also served on
the Boards of Pakistan Oilfields Limited (for 9 years) and
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited (for 15 years). Mr. Nihal has
served two terms as a director on the Board of the Mutual
Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP).

Mr. Nihal's focus has expanded to philanthropic activities as
a donor and as a member/trustee of The Citizens
Foundation, the Patient Aid Foundation and The Jinnah
Foundation.
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Mr. Fu
Chaoqing

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Fu Chaoging (CFA) has been serving at Pak China
Investment Company Limited (PCICL) since August 2021.
He has 18 years of work experience in financial sector,
including his employment at China Development Bank
(CDB) since 2007 His last assignment at CDB was
Divisional Head, Assets Quality Management Division,
International Credit Management Department and as
Deputy Division Chief of Assets Quality Management
Division. Mr. Fu holds degree of Master of Management
from Fudan University and Bachelor of Management
from Hefei University of Technology.
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Mr. Ahmed

Chinoy, H.L, S.I.

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy, H.I, S.I. is an elected Director on the
Board of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). He is the
Managing Partner of Arch Group of Companies and is
engaged in overseeing various businesses such as
security investments, textiles, real estate and poultry
farming.

Mr. Chinoy is qualified from Institute of Cost &
Management Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and holds
a graduate degree in Commerce from University of
Karachi. He is also a certified director from Pakistan
Institute of Corporate Governance.

Mr. Chinoy is a prominent business and social figure in
Pakistan. He has served the society in different capacities in
the areas of business, education, health, crime prevention
and other social services and has rendered invaluable
services to the nation in these fields. He has successfully
served as Chief of Citizen Police Liaison Committee, Sindh
(a citizens' body for prevention of crimes) from the year
2010 to 2015. He has also been actively serving on the
Boards of various hospitals and educational institutions and
has been heading the Memon Community as the President
of All Pakistan Memon Federation. He has also served
several times on the Managing Committee of Federation of
Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry and is also the
Chairman of Pakistan Cloth Merchants’ Association (the
apex body of textile exporters). For his services to the people
of Pakistan, he has been awarded prestigious national
awards of Hilal-e-Imtiaz (H.I.) and Sitara-e-Imtiaz (S.I).

Mr. Chinoy is nominated by PSX to serve as Director on
the Boards of Central Depository Company of Pakistan
Limited, National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited
and Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited.

Additionally, Mr. Chinoy is serving as Director of Creek
Developers (Private) Limited, AKD REIT Management
Company Limited, Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited, CDC
Share Registrar Services Limited, LT Minds Limited, Insijam
(Private) Limited, NCEL Building Management Limited, and
Sir Adamjee Institute. Moreover, he is the Chairman of
Global Commodity Trading Platform (GCTP), Kutiyana
Memon Hospital, & Pakistan Cloth Merchants Association,
and Member M.C of the Federation of Pakistan Chambers of
Commerce & Industry. Mr. Chinoy is also serving as a
Managing Partner at Arch Sons, Arch Industries & Lotus
Properties, and Partner at Golden Livestocks, Al-Karam
Builders & Developers, & Al-Karam Lagoons, and Managing
Trustee at COMMECS Educational trust. He is also an
Executive Director of Virtuosoft (Private) Limited.
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Mr. You Hang is serving as Non-Executive Director on the
Board of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX), being a
nominee of China Financial Futures Exchange (CFFEX).

Mr. You, being one of the inaugurators of CFFEX, is currently
serving as the Chief Representative of CFFEX in Pakistan. He
also held the position of Deputy Managing Director of PSX
from August 2017 to August 2018. He is a seasoned expert
who has strategically fulfilled the responsibility of domestic
and international financials, marketing and operational
functions. He is specialized in Exchange operations,
designing/management of financial derivatives as well as
data marketing. He has solid experience in equity, fixed
income, and FX derivatives and possess strong quantitative
and analytical skills. He also has a diplomat experience with
superior communication, organizational and interpersonal
skills with fluency in English as well as in his mother tongue
Mandarin.

Mr. You Hang has completed his Master of Public Policy
concentrated in Finance on Dean's Fellowship from The
University of Chicago, USA and Bachelor of Engineering
from East China University of Technology, Shanghai,
from where he graduated with honors.

o,

Mr. You
Hang

Non-Executive Director

Mr. You Hang is currently associated with CFFEX for last
19 years and has served it in the capacity of Chief
Representative in  Pakistan, Managing Director,
International Business Development Department /
Executive office / Equity Index Derivatives Department /
FX Derivatives Department and Executive Director-
Market Data Department.

Additionally, Mr. You is presently serving as Managing
Director of CFFEX's Executive Office, and Nominee
Director of PSX on the boards of National Clearing
Company of Pakistan Limited and Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited.




Dr. FU Hao

Non-Executive Director

Dr. FU is Vice Chair of Global Business Committee and
Managing Director of Market Development Department,
Shanghai Stock Exchange. He is responsible for overseeing
SSE's international cooperation, global market promotion
and overseas projects. Prior to joining Shanghai Stock
Exchange, Dr. FU worked in Jun An Securities Co. and
Orient Securities Co. He graduated from Fudan University in
1998, where he earned a Ph.D Degree in Finance. Dr. FU
published a lot of papers and articles in major Chinese
finance journals. He has served as the Chairman of Working
Committee of Asia Oceanic Stock Exchange Federation
from 2014 to 2016. He was awarded as “Shanghai Financial
Innovative Figure” in 2014, "Shanghai Financial Leading
Talent” in 2017 Under his leadership, Global Business
Development Department was honored as “Shanghai May
1t Labor Medal Collective Award” in 2017 and “National
Worker Pioneer” in 2019.
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Ms. Gu
Junmeil

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Gu Junmei possesses over 20 years of experience in
financial information technology, and she is an expert in
trading system development, testing and quality control.

Ms. Junmei is currently serving as Deputy Director in the
information technology department of Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (SZSE). She has held position of Executive
Manager in SZSE's technology strategy and planning
department, and in the said role, she oversaw the information
technology system quality management, and managed
information technology team of 170 people.

Ms. Junmeit is also serving as Senior Management Member
of SZSE's Technology Management Committee which
outlines SZSE's information technology development
strategy. Moreover, she is an Expert Member of China
Securities Industry Standardization Technical Committee.
Ms. Junmei received her Masters’ degree from Wuhan
University in 2003.
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Mr. Ruhail
Muhammad

Independent Director

Mr. Ruhail Muhammad's career spans over 35 years in
general management, business development, strategy,
financial planning, and people development. He has held
various C-suite positions in companies focusing on a
diverse range of activities from Chemicals to Energy. He is
currently CEO of Lucky Electric Power Company Limited, a
660 MW IPP subsidiary of Lucky Cement. Prior to this, he
was CEO of Hub Power Holdings Ltd. a subsidiary of
HUBCO, Pakistan's largest IPP. He was responsible for
managing the growing portfolio of HUBCO, evaluating
onshore & offshore acquisitions, project financing,
economic evaluation of all growth projects, and financial
re-engineering to support the growth vision of the
Company. Prior to HUBCO, he was the CEO of Engro
Fertilizers from 2012-2018.

He has served on the Boards of Engro Corp, various Engro
subsidiaries, K-Electric, NBP Funds, Pakistan Institute of
Corporate Governance, British Overseas School, KP Energy
Board (PEDO), and as Chairman of Pakistan Mercantile
Exchange Limited. Currently, he is serving on the boards of
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited and other Lucky
Group entities, Network of Organizations Working For
People With Disabilities in Pakistan (NOWPDP-NGO), EFU
Life Assurance, Pakistan Stock Exchange and as Chairman
of Dawood Lawrencepur Limited. He is a CFA Charter
Holder and holds an MBA degree from the Institute of
Business Administration, Pakistan. He has attended the
Advanced Management Program at INSEAD as well as an
Agri-Business certification from the Harvard Business
School.
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Mr. Nadeem Naqvi is a non-executive director of Pakistan Stock
Exchange at PMEX. Mr. Nagvi holds the degrees of MBA in Finance
and B.Sc. Honors in Banking and International Finance from the
City University Business School in London, United Kingdom. He
brings with him over 44 years of work experience in global
financial services, operating in diverse environments of North
America, Europe and the Middle East, besides that of Pakistan. He
was the CEO of Habib University Foundation, Karachi from
September 2022 to September 2024.

Mr. Nagvi was Managing Director of Pakistan Stock Exchange
(PSX) from 2011 till 2017, when he took early retirement and
resettled in Toronto, Canada. During his tenure at PSX he oversaw
and guided massive transformation of the Stock Exchange and
Pakistan's Capital Market. Some of his key accomplishments
included: implementation of demutualization of the Stock
Exchange; integration of three Stock Exchanges of Karachi,
Lahore and Islamabad and emergence of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange as the single capital market in the country; launch of
internet/wireless trading platform; advocating with MSCI and
intermational portfolio investors for Pakistan inclusion into MSCI
Emerging Market Index and successfully managing the process;
playing a key role in divestment of 40% equity stake of PSX to
institutional foreign investors. Under his tenure revenue and profit
of the Exchange grew by 110% and 5.5 times, respectively.

During this period, he was also the Chairman of the National
Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) and guided the
transformation of NCCPL into a full Central Counter Party (CCP)
with its own risk management capability as well as introduction of
electronic capital gains tax calculation and recovery for the
Federal Board of Revenue of the Government.

Prior to joining PSX, Mr. Nagvi was the Chief Executive Officer of
an asset management company. Earlier, he served as CEO of AKD
Securities Ltd, a leading corporate stock brokerage firm in

*j: "~ Mr. Nadeem
' Naqgwi

Non-Executive Director

Pakistan which he helped transform from a proprietary business
into a full-scale investment banking and brokerage firm. The
Company gained recognition by the CFA Association of Pakistan
as the best domestic brokerage firm for two consecutive years in
2006 and 2007 under his tenure. Mr. Nagvi also served as
Chairman of the first technology venture capital fund of Pakistan
(TMT Ventures) and oversaw the completion of several ventures
by successful exits at LR.R. ranging from 35-40%.

Economic & market analysis and research have been the hallmark
of Mr. Naqvi's career. He led an independent investment research
firm in USA/Canada, Investology Inc., which was ranked No.3 by
‘BusinessWeek' in 2004 out of 300 independent research firms in
North America. Before that, he headed the Merrill Lynch Pakistan
research team. He was also the Head of Research of the
investment advisory company of Morgan Stanley Asset
Management's Pakistan Investment Fund for four years from
1996-2000. More recently, Mr. Naqvi has been involved in
financial and real estate advisory business in Canada.

Mr. Naqvi has participated in landmark investment banking
transactions in Pakistan, including the privatizations of Kot Addu
Power Plant, National Refinery and United Bank Limited. He was a
member of the Capital Markets Committee, Economic Advisory
Council of the President of Pakistan in late 1990's and has served
as Vice-Chairman, South Asian Federation of Exchanges (SAFE);
Director, Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan.

Mr. Nagvi is also serving as a Nominee Director of PSX on the
boards of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited,
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited, Pakistan
Mercantile Exchange Limited, and VIS Credit Rating Company
Limited. Additionally, he is the CEO & Director of Capital Markets
International Advisors Inc. (Financial Consultancy).
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Sitting (From left to right) Standing (From left to right)
Mr. Farhan Ansari Mr. Ajeet Kumar

Acting Chief Financial Officer Chief Regulatory Officer

Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari Mr. Jawad Haider Hashmi
Chief Executive Officer Chief Market Operations Officer
Dr. Fakhara Rizwan Mr. Syed Adeel Javaid
Corporate Secretary, Chief Information Officer

Chief Governance, Legal & Corporate Affairs Officer,
Acting Head of Human Resource
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Dr Fakhara Rizwan is an accomplished professional, uniquely
bridging the worlds of law, corporate governance and financial
crime compliance. She is a scholar, author, corporate lawyer and
certified director. Commanding a rare expertise as the only
academician with a PhD in corporate laws governing takeovers
and merger activity in Pakistan, she offers invaluable insights into
her field. Her seminal work, ‘Corporate Takeovers and Mergers —A
Study on the Bank Role as Adviser, serves as a founding work on
the subject, having been published in two editions so far.

Her ongoing projects, including notable books on Financial
Crimes’ and ‘Effectiveness of Board of Directors,” underscore her
prolific contributions to contemporary legal scholarship. Beyond
her books, she regularly writes articles for law journals and
newspapers, covering topics ranging from corporate laws and
governance to social issues, with a keen focus on gender diversity.

As a Certified Financial Crime Specialist, she aligns with the global
community as a part of the esteemed Association of Certified
Financial Crime Specialists. Additionally, her Diversity, Equity &
Inclusion Professional Certification reflects her dedication to
fostering diversity and inclusion. This commitment also extends
to ESG practices. After extensive training at the Singapore
International Mediation Centre and comprehensive assessment,
she became the SIMC Qualified International Mediator. She
actively advocates mediation for corporate disputes.

As a director of the Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, Dr
Fakhara actively contributes to developing and promoting good
governance practices in Pakistan. Her expertise spans across
corporate governance, shariah governance and ESG. With a
strong foundation in these three key pillars, she brings a holistic
and comprehensive understanding of effective govemance
practices. She is recognised by the Higher Education Commission
of Pakistan as an approved supervisor, enabling her to supervise
PhD candidates on their research journey. Through her teaching
roles, she educates aspiring professionals and contributes to the
development of future leaders.

Dr. Fakhara
Rizwan

Corporate Secretary,

Chief Governance, Legal &
Corporate Affairs Officer,
Acting Head of Human
Resource

Dr. Fakharas intermational exposure includes her practice in
Malaysia, marking her as the first Pakistani member of the
Malaysian Corporate Counsels Association. Her advisory roles,
including contributions to the Pakistani High Commission and
pro bono practice for the welfare of destitute Pakistanis, further
showcase her global perspective and diverse experience.

In 2014, she returned to Pakistan from Malaysia and joined
AlBaraka Bank, where she served as the Company Secretary and
head of the Legal Department. In 2017, she joined ORIX Leasing
Pakistan Limited in the same role. Additionally, she was
Vice-Chairperson of the Non-Banking Financial Institutions &
Modaraba Association and served as a representative for the
Leasing Industry in FPCCL

Since January 2020, as the Company Secretary and Chief Legal &
Corporate Affairs Officer (General Manager) for the Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited (PSX), she has played a transformative role in
reforming PSX's governance structure. Her commitment extends
through her involvement with various committees and panels,
reflecting a broad influence across the regulatory and arbitration
realms.

She assumed additional responsibilities as the Acting Chief
Human Resource Officer in January 2024. Her dedication to
cultural evolution within the PSX is epitomised by her initiatives to
encourage collective decision-making and align policies with
contemporary governance principles.

Beyond her professional achievements, her pursuits as a
black-belted martial artist and a poet, along with her book Adhuri
Takmeel, which has three editions, highlight a holistic persona
dedicated to both intellectual and personal excellence. Her
diverse accomplishments make her an invaluable asset and an
inspiring figure in the fields of law, corporate governance and
financial crime compliance.




Mr. Farhan
Ansan

Acting Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Farhan Ansari is a Fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan. He is also a
Certified Internal Auditor from the Institute of Internal
Auditors (ITIA) - USA.

With approximately 25 years of extensive experience
in Audit and Accounts, Mr. Farhan Ansari is a
seasoned audit and finance professional. He
completed his CA training with EY Ford Rhodes
Chartered Accountants and began his career at
Dadex Eternit Limited.

Since joining the Exchange in 2006, Mr. Ansari has
played a pivotal role in strengthening internal audit
function. His leadership  capabilities  were
demonstrated through his tenure heading the
Internal Audit Department. Recently, he has been
entrusted with the new responsibility as Acting Chief
Financial Officer, reflecting his strategic importance
within the organization.
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Mr. Ajeet Kumar is a thorough capital market professional with
16 years of experience and has been a core member of
Regulatory Affairs Division (RAD) since demutualization of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ajeet is the Head of RAD and also acts as
Secretary to the Regulatory Affairs Committee of the Board of
Directors, Member of Oversight Committee constituted by
SECP under the Joint Inspection Regulations, 2015 and
member of Risk Committee of NCCPL. Prior to joining PSX, he
was associated with SECP for over 4 years in Securities Market
Division.

He is well versed with the local capital market dynamics and
global practices governing securities market and is considered
as dedicated professional who is analytical, detail and target
oriented with strong abilities to manage large teams to fulfil
diverse responsibilities in a fair and transparent manner. He has
expertise in advisory, policy making, research, compliance and
enforcement and has been instrumental in formulating
effective regulations and strategies for the development of
capital market of Pakistan. During his tenure as CRO, Mr. Kumar
has transformed to risk based supervision and enforcement
regime with emphasis to foster compliance culture for
ensuring investor confidence and trust.

He has played key role in various PSX projects where major
ones on his credit include deployment of a robust surveillance
system as part of new trading system, digital onboarding of
customers, migration to e-filings of reports by regulated
entities, integration and self-listing of PSX; enhancement of
corporate disclosure & reporting standards, framing of
regulations for Market Makers, Index Options, ETF, SLB, GEM
Listing, Index/ Market Halts, Privately Placed Debt Instruments,
risk management regime etc. Mr. Ajeet was actively involved in
establishment of first-ever on-site joint inspection regime for
brokers, introduction of first-ever Rulebook of PSX and its
re-introduction pursuant to promulgation of Securities Act,
2015 and Futures Market Act, 2016 and implementation of

Mr. Ajeet
Kumar

Chief Regulatory Officer
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clients’ assets segregation reporting framework as a landmark
breakthrough.

Mr. Kumar has done BBA (hons.) and an MBA in Finance from
IBA Karachi and has cleared Level II of CFA program. Besides,
he has also been awarded relevant certifications from the
Institute of Financial Markets of Pakistan and PICG regarding
Director Education upon successful completion of Directors'
Training Program.




Mr. Syed Adeel

Javaid

Chief Information Officer

Mr. Syed Adeel Javaid has over 25 years of corporate
experience and is well versed with the local and
international technology and capital market dynamics.
He has extensive experience of managing business
critical systems & services involving multifunctional
teams and large-scale project portfolios through
strategic  technology planning and change
management with  special focus on digital
transformation. He contributed and was key member of
the teams at PSX and Bahrain Bourse who successfully
upgraded and migrated Exchanges’ Trading Engines.

His last appointment was with Kounteq Limited (UK &
PK) for 3 years as Chief Technology Officer. Prior to that
he has served Bahrain Stock Exchange (Bahrain Bourse)
for 15 years where he was serving as IT Director. Earlier,
he remained associated with Wavetec Pakistan and APS
Control Systems (The Netherlands) for 5 years in middle
management roles.

Mr. Javaid is also serving as nominee director of PSX on
the Board of EClear Services Limited, and as Technical
Expert on the IT & Digital Committee of NCCPL. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering from
NED University, Karachi and had also attained PRINCE2
Practitioner accreditation
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Mr. Taj Ahmed is MBA in Finance and CA finalist of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP).
Moreover, he has done his post-graduate diploma in
Data Sciences and has also obtained “Technology
Assurance Certificate’ for IT & IS audits from ICAP.

He is highly experienced internal audit and risk
management specialist with over 17 years of
comprehensive expertise. Mr. Taj has demonstrated
strong leadership in internal audit function,
particularly during critical transition periods, and has
contributed significantly to strengthening the
Exchange's audit processes.

He began his career as a trainee with Deloitte Yousuf
Adil, Chartered Accountants, where he completed his
CA training and later worked as a Consultant in the
Enterprise Risk Services Department. In 2012, he
joined the Internal Audit Department of the Exchange
where he has been a key contributor to maintaining
and enhancing the effectiveness of internal audits. He
led various financial, operational, regulatory, and IT/IS
audits during pivotal periods, resulting in operational
efficiencies, enhanced compliance and risk
mitigation.

Mr. Taj
Ahmed

Acting Chief Internal
Audit Officer

Mr. Taj is currently serving as the Acting Chief Internal
Audit Officer, overseeing the internal audit function at
a strategic level.
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Gender pay gap statement under
SECP's Circular 10 of 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended June 30, 2025;

(i)  Mean Gender Pay Gap: 32.90%
(i) Median Gender Pay Gap: 22.33%

Lq,ﬁ-ﬂ}%, :

-~

Chief Executive Officer
Date: September 15, 2025
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE is hereby given that the seventy-eighth (78™) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (PSX or the Company) will be held on Tuesday, October 28, 2025, at 4:00 p.m. at the Registered Office of the
Company, Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi and through video-conferencing facility, to transact
the following businesses:

Ordinary Business:

1

To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2025, together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon.

To approve, as recommended by the Board of Directors, the payment of the Final Cash Dividend @ 17%, i.e. Rs. 1.70
per share for the financial year ended June 30, 2025.

To appoint auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2026, until the conclusion of the next AGM and to
fix their remuneration. In view of the recommendation of the Board's Audit Committee, and acknowledging that the
retiring auditors, M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, have been engaged with the
Company for six years, the Board of Directors has resolved to recommend the appointment of M/s. BDO Ebrahim &
Co., Chartered Accountants as statutory auditors of the Company.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Dr. Fakhara Rizwan
Company Secretary

Karachi
Dated: October 03, 2025

Note:

1

The Annual Report containing the Annual Audited Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2025 is
accessible on below QR-enabled code:

https://www.psx.com.pk/psx/exchange/psx-shareholder-information#financial-reports

2. A member may submit a request at the registered office of the Company for certified copies of the minutes of
previously held general meetings.

NOTES

1. The Register of Members will be closed from October 22, 2025, to October 28, 2025 (both days inclusive). Members
registered as of October 21, 2025, will be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM.

2. A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at the meeting shall also be entitled to appoint any person as his/her
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proxy to attend, speak and vote instead of him/her. A proxy so appointed shall have such rights with respect to
attending, speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to the respective member. The Company must
receive the instrument of proxy and the power of attorney (POA) under which it is signed or a notarised certified
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copy of that POA at least 48 hours before the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. The form
of proxy is annexed to the Annual Report and also available on the Company’s website.

Any legal person which is a member of the Company may authorise any person to act as its representative at the
meeting by providing a resolution of its board of directors, or a proxy duly signed by the authorized person. The
person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the powers of an individual member of the Company.

Since all shares issued to members are in a dematerialised format in their respective Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited (CDC) accounts, the individual members desiring to attend the meeting in person, are requested
to bring their original Computerized National Identity Cards (CNICs) along with the Investor Account or Participant
ID and House Account/Sub-Account numbers, for identification purposes. In the case of corporate members, the
resolution of board of directors/POA with specimen signature of the nominee may preferably be provided to the
Company well in advance or otherwise produced at the time of the meeting.

Participation in AGM through Video-Conferencing Facility

The Company is facilitating the shareholders to attend the AGM via video-link, in addition to physical arrangements
for the meeting. Therefore, the shareholders are encouraged to participate in the AGM through video-conferencing
facility. Accordingly, they are requested to get themselves registered with the Company Secretariat by providing the
requisite details at their earliest but not later than 5:00 p.m. on October 24, 2025.

The shareholders can register themselves via e-mail (shareholders.affairs@psx.com.pk), by providing the following
particulars, along with the scanned copy of their CNIC/Passport and that of their proxies, if so appointed. Moreover,
in case of a corporate member, the scanned copy of the resolution of the board of directors/POA with a specimen
signature of the nominee must also be provided.

Name of Shareholder* CNIC/NTN/Passport No. CDC Account No. Cell No. E-mail Address
* Where applicable, please also give the above particulars of the proxy-holder or nominee of the shareholder.

Upon receipt of the above information from the interested shareholders, the Company will send the relevant
videolink and the login credentials to their e-mail addresses, to enable the shareholders participate in the
proceedings of the AGM through their smartphones or computer devices. The shareholders can also provide their
comments or suggestions in connection with the agenda of the meeting by using the same email.

The above arrangement would also cover the requirement of Section 134(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2017 (the
Companies Act), in relation to providing video-link facility to the members holding 10% or more shareholding (in
aggregate) in the Company, residing at a geographical location.

E-Dividend

Pursuant to Section 242 of the Companies Act, to be read with relevant provisions of the Companies (Distribution of
Dividends) Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations), all listed companies have been mandated to pay the dividend only
by way of electronic mode, directly into the bank accounts of entitled shareholders designated by them.
Accordingly, all shareholders of the Company who have not yet updated their bank account details (including IBAN)
under their participant/CDC Investor Account Services which maintains their CDC account, are requested to update
the same at the earliest but prior to the commencement of book closure. Otherwise, the Company would be
constrained to withhold their amount of dividend, if any, in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
and the Regulations.

Tax Implication on Dividend
The deduction of income tax from dividend payments shall be made in pursuance of the applicable provisions of

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. In case of joint shareholdings, the tax will be deducted as per shareholding
proportions intimated by the shareholders to the Company’s Share Registrar, M/s. FAMCO Share Registration
Services (Private) Limited, latest by the first day of book closure, otherwise the shareholding will be treated in equal
proportion. In addition, the withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed if a copy of valid
tax exemption certificate or stay order from a competent court of law is made available to the Company’s Share
Registrar, by the first day of book closure.
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Dear Shareholders,

Fiscal year 2024-25 has witnessed reinforcement of macroeconomic stability. Ground work undertaken in the past
year, with support of strategic reforms of tax system and expenditure prioritization, has allowed for strategic
infrastructure investments in energy, technology and education, whose spillover impacts are expected to reinforce
progress in different segments of economy.

Economic Review & Outlook

Pakistan is focused on strengthening macroeconomic and sectoral vulnerabilities. The economic recovery process
was initiated after the interim government took over and implemented several extraordinary and important
measures including IMF's 9-months Standby Arrangement (SBA) to stabilize the economy and build market
confidence. To continue economic progress, the newly elected government then secured a 37-months, USD 7
billion IMF Extended Fund Facility, with USD 2 billion disbursed until now and completion of first successful review
in 3QFY25. Adherence to consecutive IMF programs, with most recent one approved in September 2024, is helping
infuse fiscal discipline and boosting external account.

Besides Extended Fund Facility, Pakistan arranged for 28-months, USD 1.3 billion Resilience and Sustainability
Facility with the IMF to mitigate risks from growing climate vulnerabilities through strengthening of mitigation and
adaptation framework.

Fiscal module has benefited from fundamental restructuring of the Federal Board of Revenue in 2024 that laid the
foundation for broadening tax base and strengthening of the tax administration. Rising revenue collections have
raised tax to GDP ratio from 9.5% in FY2023-24 to 11.1% in FY2024-25. The government aims to reach 13% in the
near term as part of its IMF commitments.

Pakistan's external sector resilience was evident in the current account performance, which posted a surplus for the
first time in 14 years of USD 2.1 billion in FY25, reversing a USD 2.1 billion deficit in the previous year. This was driven
by robust export performance and record remittance inflows of USD 4.1 billion in March 2025 and USD 38.3 billion
cumulatively for FY25. Foreign exchange reserves reached USD 14.5 billion, providing 2.5 months of import cover,
up from 1.7 months in FY24. The currency also remained stable, with PKR witnessing a depreciation of 2% in FY25.

Stronger remittances inflows given overseas investors’ confidence in Pakistan's emerging economic scenario and
resilient exports and expectations to benefit further from US openness to facilitate Pakistan's exports will augur well
to build reserves further, currently at USD 14.5 billion, despite settlement of sizeable scheduled debt service
obligations.

Underlying real sector growth however softened somewhat as yields were low from agriculture crops and industrial
activity was subdued. Economy is now gaining momentum. In FY2025, expectations are for real GDP to grow by
2.68%; however, IMF forecasts suggest it will gain momentum rising to 3.6% in FY2026. Over the past decade, GDP
growth averaged around 3.39% annually, with periods of volatility due to both global and domestic headwinds. The
Govermment is targeting real GDP to grow by 4.2% in FY2026 supported by improved external sector dynamics and
a rebound in domestic demand.

Real sector dynamics benefited from the central banks easing monetary policy. Inflation declined to historic lows
supporting economic activity critical to uplift economic growth.

Besides enhancing the implementation of tax reforms, the Government is committed to energy sector restructuring
and SOE privatization. These steps with support for climate resilience action would help lay the foundation for
more sustainable economic performance. Economic stabilization, underpinned by the Government’'s commitment
to tough reforms has enhanced investor confidence.
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Inflation, which peaked at 38% in May 2023, declined sharply to 3.2% by June 2025, aided by tight monetary policy
and easing global commodity prices. This led to a decline in FY25 inflation to 4.49%, compared to 23.41% in FY24.
On the fiscal side, despite some distraction in FY25 revenue collection, FBR's tax collection stood at PKR 11.74 tn, a
healthy growth of 26% from FY24. Moreover, country noticed a significant improvement in its primary balance,
which recorded a surplus of 2.4% of GDP, compared to 0.9% in FY24, while the overall budget deficit also decreased
to 5.4% of GDP in FY25, lower than 6.8% in FY24.

The improvement in macroeconomic and financial indicators was formally recognized in April 2025 when Fitch
Ratings upgraded Pakistan’'s long-term foreign currency credit rating to B- from CCC+, with a stable outlook. S&P
Global also raised its long-term sovereign credit ratings of Pakistan to "B-' from 'CCC+", and its short-term ratings to
‘B’ from 'C'". Following Fitch and S&P Global, Moody's also upgraded Pakistan's credit rating to Caal from Caa2 amid
improving external position. The upgrade reflects increased confidence in Pakistan's fiscal consolidation efforts,
structural reform implementation, and progress under the IMF program.

Capital Market & PSX Performance

Macroeconomic stability, marked by falling inflation, a steady exchange rate, and rising foreign reserves, has sparked
renewed investor confidence in Pakistan's capital market. Building on last year's momentum, the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX) emerged as a global outperformer, with the KSE-100 Index crossing the historic 100,000-point
milestone and closing at 125,627, up from 78,445. This reflects a stellar 60% gain in PKR terms and 57% in USD,
making PSX one of the world's top-performing markets.

The rally was fueled by monetary easing, improved liquidity, and value unlocking across key sectors. In doing so,
the KSE-100 outperformed all major asset classes, including gold, T-Bills, DSCs, PIBs, and the USD, reaffirming
equities as the most rewarding long-term investment avenue.

Market capitalization surged significantly, and trading activity across all market segments experienced strong
growth. The PSX played a pivotal role in deepening the capital market ecosystem by conducting 13 Government
[jarah Sukuk (GIS) auctions, raising over PKR 2.21 trillion, and by launching Pakistan's first Sovereign Domestic Green
Sukuk. Several critical infrastructure upgrades were introduced to enhance Sukuk trading, including real-time price
visibility, instant settlement, and direct market access for participants.

Despite record-breaking volumes, PSX ensured uninterrupted trading throughout the year, reflecting the resilience
of its newly deployed trading and surveillance systems. The Exchange also launched a portal for unlisted companies
to enhance market transparency. Listing momentum remained steady, with ten new companies added to the
Exchange, bringing in a combined listed capital of PKR 12.93 billion, alongside Class “C" shares worth PKR 331
million. In addition, PSX listed three privately placed debt instruments and five open-end mutual funds.

In a bid to offer better benchmarks and data services, PSX introduced the KSE-100 Price Return Index, providing a
pure price-based performance tracker with over 15 years of historical data. The Exchange also onboarded 25 new
data clients and strengthened its international connectivity through MoUs with regional exchanges and academic
institutions.

Market structure enhancements included the facilitation of stock splits without trading suspensions, onboarding of
Pakistan's first online-only broker, and a revision of circuit breakers to better manage market volatility.

Further, PSX improved its cybersecurity framework, achieving ISO 27001:2022 certification, and successfully
conducted a disaster recovery drill, demonstrating operational readiness across all critical systems.
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Investor education remained a top priority, with nationwide financial literacy campaigns and outreach to
universities. In parallel, the Exchange advanced ESG transparency, with over 370 companies disclosing gender pay
gap data, and partnered with global institutions to foster responsible investment practices.

PSX's financial performance in FY 2024-25 was marked by substantial growth, driven by higher trading revenues,
robust GIS auction fees, and strong income from associates, all achieved with only a marginal increase in expenses.
While trading volumes continue to be a key driver, PSX is actively diversifying its revenue streams through data
services, new listings, and broader investor engagement. These efforts are laying the groundwork for long-term
sustainable growth and a more resilient capital market.

FY2024 FY2025 Change
Core Revenue -Mn 1,778 2,186 23%
Total Operating Profit - Mn 113 401 255%
Pre - Tax Profit -Mn 1,110 1,928 74%
Return on Equity 9.41% 12.93% 37%
EPS 1.28 1.90 48%

Looking ahead, PSX remains committed to driving capital formation to support Pakistan's next growth phase. In
collaboration with regulators and the corporate sector, the Exchange is streamlining regulatory frameworks,
upgrading infrastructure, and introducing innovative products and services such as Sustainability Indices, Shariah
Trading, etc.

We believe that the banks play a strategic role in deepening capital markets. From digital integration and SME capital
market financing to market making and investor education, banks are evolving as enablers of capital market. The
Exchange is also looking to collaborate with banks to drive inclusion, unlock growth and explore the potential of
Pakistan's capital market.

As a transparent and documented marketplace, PSX is promoting financial literacy and encouraging more
companies to list and grow. With stable economic fundamentals, attractive valuations, and a young, digital-savvy
population, PSX is well-positioned to channel savings and investments into productive sectors, supporting a more
inclusive and resilient economic future for Pakistan.

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar
Chairperson of the Board
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
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Transitioning towards Sustainability

At the Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), we are dedicated to supporting and promoting sustainable development
both as a front-line regulator and as a reliable business partner to our stakeholders. Our leadership is committed to
ensuring that our impact on the environment and society remains positive, guided by tailored governance
principles. It is our top priority to integrate these principles among our stakeholders, serving both as a regulator and
a facilitator. Our primary goals include market development, operational excellence and excellent corporate
governance, helping in delivering long-term value, boosting investor confidence, fostering trust, and promoting
transparency in both the financial and non-financial aspects of our business as well as of those of our stakeholders.

PSX initiates PSX launches & PSX joins PSX publishes PSX issues the ESG Launch of
discussion on promotes the first Sustainable first Annual ESG primer for listed Pakistan'’s first
UNSDG's voluntary UN Stock Exchange Report companies “Sovereign
reporting with SDG's Reporting Initiative (SSEI) Domestic Green
MoP & UNDP Indicators of UN PSX launches Refinitiv Sukuk

Partnership ESG contribution tool
Program in collaboration with
LSEG

As Pakistan's sole national securities exchange, we emphasize
our commitment to advancing the country's sustainable
development agenda as both a responsible exchange and a
proactive regulator. We promote synergy, comparability, and
the enhancement of stakeholder capabilities to ensure they
remain relevant, responsible, and competitive in a shifting
business landscape. This focus is essential, given the need for
businesses to recognize and adapt to climate change impacts in
the context of Pakistan.

In the current financial year, PSX has made significant contributions to Pakistan’s evolving sustainability landscape
by promoting responsible and sustainable investments, such as facilitating the launch of Pakistan's first Sovereign
Domestic Green Sukuk.

Currently an affiliate member of the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE), PSX is actively progressing toward full
membership. This advancement will deepen our alignment with global ESG and sustainability frameworks,
including standards, rating methodologies, and corporate guidance. Through this journey, we aim to elevate our
visibility, reinforce transparency, and benchmark our sustainability initiatives against internationally recognized
best practices.

We are actively engaging in the ongoing discourse on sustainability within capital markets. PSX played an active
role in developing Pakistan's Green Taxonomy as part of its technical committee, working alongside key regulators
like the State Bank of Pakistan. This framework will help identify sustainable activities, support the creation of green
financial products, and enhance transparency across the capital markets, eliminating the risk of greenwashing.

PSX, in coordination with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), contributed to the

development and launch of ESG Sustain, an initiative aimed at advancing ESG transparency and sustainability
reporting.

|105




Pakistan Stock Exchange

PSX has also been nominated as a member of SECP-constituted committee named “Sustainable Finance Advisory
Group” which aims to promote sustainable finance and ESG initiatives across Pakistan’s corporate landscape.

PSX made significant contributions in the ICAP working group on sustainability reporting in advancing the
sustainability agenda across Pakistan. PSX also issued a notice for the mandatory disclosure of gender pay gap data
by listed companies in their annual reports to promote transparency and advance gender equality and diversity in
Pakistan's corporate sector. We PSX integrated SDG-linked disclosure into its Top 25 Companies Awards to
encourage listed companies to report on at least five SDGs in their Annual Reports.

Key Highlights

Facilitated the
issuance of the
First Sovereign
Domestic Green
Sukuk

Member of the

committee named
“Sustainable
Finance Advisory
Group”

SECP’s constituted

Worked with SBP
in drafting the
Green Taxonomy
for Pakistan

Participated in the Achieved ISO

11th annual 27001:2022

World Federation Certification for

of Exchanges (WFE) Information

Sustainability Security

Survey Management
System

PSX integrated
SDG-linked
disclosure into its
Top 25 Companies
Awards

Key
Highlights

2

Issued notice for Assisted SECP

the mandatory in the pilot launch
disclosure of of ESG Sustain
gender pay gap Portal

data by listed

companies

Our prioritized SDGs and their objectives
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PSX solidifies its commitment to transparency and sustainability by
being a partner exchange of the UN SSE initiative. Committed to
promoting sustainable development. The SSE works with Stock
Exchanges through technical assistance, consensus building, and
research to contribute to the achievement of the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and to stimulate investment
for a sustainable future. Exchanges around the world partner with
the SSE to work towards a common objective of fostering financial
markets that support the growth of sustainable and responsible
business practices.




SDG 5
Board Room
Diversity &
Gender Equality

SDG 8

SME Growth and

Sustainable
Development

SDG 10

Security

Market
Regulation

SDG 12
Reporting
on ESG
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SDG 13
Climate Action
& Green Finance
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SDG 17

Partnerships for

Sustainable
& Transparent
Capital Markets

To achieve gender
equality and empower
women. While actively
promoting diversity at
all organizational
levels, ensuring equal
opportunities, and
enhancing
gender-responsive
reporting among listed
companies and
ensuring board room
diversity and gender
equality related
products in general.

To support economic
development by
fostering a business
environment that
promotes
development-oriented
policies that support
productive activities,
decent job creation,
entrepreneurship,
creativity and
innovation, and
encourage the
formalization and
growth of small and
medium enterprises as
a top priority.

To promote practices
that foster equality and
inclusion, both within
the marketplace and in
broader society
meanwhile advocating
for enhanced
corporate transparency
onissues related to
inequality, supporting
efforts to create more
inclusive financial
markets, and
encouraging
companies to adopt
policies that address
wage gaps and other
forms of inequality.

Sustainability at the Exchange

To encourage
companies to adopt
sustainable business
practices and enhance
transparency in
disclosing their
environmental impact.
Calling for improved
corporate reporting on
ESG factors, which can
drive more informed
investment decisions
and lead to more
sustainable outcomes.
Contributing to the
transition towards
more sustainable
economic systems that
prioritize long-term
viability and ecological
balance.

To facilitate climate
action by promoting
increased transparency
and disclosure related
to climate risks and
opportunities among
listed companies.
Advocating for the
adoption of
climate-related
financial disclosures,
supporting sustainable
investment practices,
and encouraging
businesses to align
their strategies with
climate goals, such as
reducing greenhouse
gas emissions or
achieving net zero
emissions.

Collaborate with
industry associations,
sustainability initiatives,
academic institutions,
and civil society
organizations to share
best practices, develop
standards, and
advocate for policy
reforms that promote
sustainable and
transparent capital
markets.

The fast-paced landscape of sustainability continues to evolve with the adoption of global standards for sustainable
business practices and reporting across the globe. Pakistan, being one of the 14 countries to adopt the International
Sustainability Standards Board (ISSB) S1 and S2 standards this year, makes a significant development, setting new
benchmarks for corporate sustainability in Pakistan. This key development has shifted the sustainability paradigm
from mere CSR-related activity to a business essential, integrating sustainability into key business functions such as
governance, strategy, risk management and mandatory reporting parameters.

As PSX is a securities market, a huge responsibility now lies with us following the adoption of ISSB standards, not
solely relating to our own operations but also encouraging listed entities across Pakistan. We are steadfast and
dedicated to engaging, educating, evaluating and informing our stakeholders with the current business transitions
on sustainability and sustainable development including preparing them to navigate through climate change
impacts. We are steadfast to engage, educate, evaluate and inform our stakeholders with the current business
transitions on Pakistan'’s sustainability landscape. PSX fully supports the adoption of the International Sustainability
Standards Board's (ISSB) standards, specifically IFRS S1 and IFRS S2. These standards are aimed at promoting
consistent and reliable sustainability data, which is crucial for efficient capital allocation, managing
sustainability-related risks and opportunities, and achieving sustainability goals. - call for ISSB adoption

We are proactively integrating sustainability-related matters into our core business strategy by embedding
environmental, social and governance (ESG) attributes throughout our business operations. We are in a transition
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to adapting to both intermal and external factors to address regulatory requirements and sustainability-related
matters that carry significant financial and non-financial implications. This transition includes refining our systems,
processes and controls to seamlessly integrate sustainability into all levels of the exchange. Our commitment
remains steadfast: to build a transparent, accurate, and verifiable organizational ecosystem that supports
sustainable development. We continue to invest in technological innovation, risk mitigation, and business
continuity, ensuring our operations are resilient and future-ready.

® Transition into a sustainable Stock Exchange

® Governance

® Stakeholder preferences

Sustainability ® Strategy

framework o Internal perspective
o  External perspective

® Reporting

Progress KPIs

® Compliance with all governance & transparency
related regulatory sustainability matters

Operatingmodel and °
oversight

Positive environmental impact, social parity and DE&I
Achievable targets in short- medium & long-term

Organizational roles & responsibilities

® [mplementation
® Monitoring & Evaluation
® Reporting

Outcomes and impact

This year, we have implemented a forward-looking sustainability strategy that reflects our progress in managing
current challenges and complexities related to sustainability, as well as promoting sustainable financial products to
support sustainable development in Pakistan. Through organization-wide self-assessments and collaborative
efforts with our partners, we are aligning with global standards and accelerating our transition toward a sustainable
future.

External Organizational Perspective

Engage

Actively engage with stakeholders, including investors,
companies, and regulators, to promote sustainable
practices and responsible investment. Collaborating
with international bodies to align with global
sustainability standards

Evaluate

Evaluate the sustainability performance of listed com-
panies through ESG ratings and assessments. Encour-
age transparency and accountability by requiring
companies to disclose their ESG practices and perfor-
mance.
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Educate

Provide educational resources and training programs
to enhance the understanding of Environmental,
Social, and Governance (ESG) principles among market
participants. This includes workshops, seminars, and
publications on ESG reporting and sustainable finance

Inform

Inform the market and the public about sustainability
initiatives and progress through regular reports,
updates, and communications. Use platform to high-
light the importance of sustainability and the benefits
of responsible investments.
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ENGAGE

11th annual World Federation of Exchanges (WFE) Sustainability Survey

This fiscal year, we are proud to announce that PSX has taken part in the 11th annual World Federation of
Exchanges (WFE) Sustainability Survey. This global survey reviews the sustainability efforts of stock and derivatives
exchanges across developed, emerging, and frontier markets. A total of 57 exchange groups participated in the
survey, including PSX. This is aimed at enhancing our visibility and transparency while also benchmarking our
sustainability practices against international standards. This participation reflects PSX's commitment to aligning
with best global practices and actively engaging in the ongoing discourse on sustainability within capital markets.
In addition to this, PSX has also formally submitted its application case to upgrade its affiliate status to a full-fledged
member of the World Federation of Exchanges (WFE) to align with global ESG standards.

Women Empowerment Principles (WEP) Survey 2025

PSX, being the signatory to the UN Women's Empowerment Principles (WEP), participated in the WEP Survey 2025
to share the company's commitments and actions in accelerating gender equality across corporate governance,
the workplace, the marketplace, and the community. The survey was conducted to capture progress and
challenges among the WEP signatories. Engagement with Key Regulators

Interacting with Key Regulators
We have played a key role while interacting and collaborating with key regulators through:

¢ Being nominated as a member of the SECP constituted committee named “Sustainable Finance Advisory
Group”. We aim to utilize this to promote sustainable finance and ESG initiatives.

¢ We worked closely with SECP in assisting the pilot launch of the ESG Sustain Portal and helped connect some
of the companies to this portal.

¢ Contributed towards advancing the sustainability agenda through its valuable inputs in the ICAP’s Working
Group on Sustainability Reporting.

*  We closely worked alongside SBP in drafting the Green Taxonomy for Pakistan, which shall be a key milestone
standardizing businesses and activities under Green, Amber, and Red categories, helping in the elimination of
greenwashing and promoting standardization

Advancing in sustainability and green financing in Pakistan

PSXis proud to have played a key role in the launch of Pakistan's first Sovereign Domestic Green Sukuk—a landmark
achievement in sustainable finance. The issuance was met with overwhelming investor interest, receiving bids
worth Rs. 161.74 billion, oversubscribed by 5.4 times against the Rs. 30 billion target. The cut-off rental rate was set
at 10.6364%, with accepted bids totaling Rs. 31.98 billion—61 basis points below the applicable Reference Rate of
11.2464%. This strong response reflects growing demand for Shariah-Compliant green instruments in the domestic
market.

EDUCATE

Investor awareness & Education

We launched the ESG primer in 2024 to sensitize our valued stakeholders on conceptual and practical paradigms
of ESG as a strategic value driver and a key element of financial reporting vis-a-vis the global adoption of ESG
standards such as ESRS and IFRS S1 and S2. We are happy to inform our audience that in 2025, we have received
very encouraging and positive feedback on this initiative from various stakeholders, reflecting its relevance and
usefulness in promoting sustainable business practices, key reporting and disclosure topics and strategic
integration of ESG in their respective corporate ecosystems. In support of this initiative, PSX has also conducted an
informative webinar to enhance understanding of ESG Primer and its practical implications for listed companies.

PSX regularly holds Investor Awareness Sessions for the general public, including students, academics/faculty
members of universities and colleges, corporate employees, self-employed persons, and others. We also hold
targeted sessions for women to promote financial empowerment and awareness among them. Furthermore, we
hold the Investor Awareness Sessions for corporates and companies.
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These sessions are useful implements to foster financial literacy and education amongst the general public and
employees of companies. They are held through in-person or online platforms. The Investor Awareness Sessions
also align with the 'S’ element of Environmental, Social and Governance considerations. These sessions promote
financial awareness in the society as a whole, and individuals in particular, contributing to our commitment to SDG
10 by supporting efforts to create a more inclusive capital market.

The sessions raise awareness about savings and investments, asset classes available for investment in Pakistan, the
capital market ecosystem, and how the Stock Exchange functions. The participants are also briefed on ways to
navigate PSX's website and how to access different types of data and information available on the PSX Data Portal.
The sessions are mostly free of cost and are a sound contributor to increasing basic financial knowledge and
understanding amongst the general public. When individuals experience improved financial stability, it becomes a
central focus that leads to heightened economic activity and contributes to the country's overall growth.

World Investor Week

Pakistan Stock Exchange joined hands with WFE and the
International Organization of Securities Commissions
(IOSCO) to celebrate World Investor Week (WIW) through a
ceremonial gong ringing held at the PSX Trading Hall. The
WIW with the theme of 'Ring the Bell for Financial Literacy’
was held from October 7 — 13, 2024. This marks the fourth
consecutive year in a row that PSX has been holding and
organizing the World Investor Week.

World Investor Week was focused on promoting financial
literacy and raising awareness about investor education and
protection. This is an ongoing effort by the capital market to
encourage financial inclusion and foster learning
opportunities for investors.

Commitment to Knowledge sharing and Youth
development

As part of its commitment to knowledge sharing and youth
development, PSX provided market data and statistics to
various interested students to support their academic
research on capital markets topics. This is provided free of
cost to the students, and in return, students share their
research findings with PSX. This initiative fosters financial
literacy and encourages academic engagement with
Pakistan's capital market ecosystem.

PSX signed a three-year term MoU with IBA to promote
mutual capacity building. IBA will provide training for PSX
staff, while PSX will support IBA students and faculty with
market data access for academic research on capital
markets.

PSX has entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with
DHA Suffa University to promote academic collaboration
and enhance financial literacy. This alliance is designed to
connect academia with the capital market via collaborative
efforts like research projects, courses and seminars,
curriculum design, educator training sessions, financial
literacy initiatives, and activities that engage students.
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Corporate investor awareness sessions

PSX held a range of sessions, webinars, seminars and
promoted third-party training programs for companies
focused on topics such as the ISSB Standards, gender
equality in global capital markets and climate-related
financial disclosures to help participants understand the
significance of sustainability issues.

The Corporate Investor Awareness Sessions are
organized by PSX to inform and educate current &
potential investors who are employees of leading
organizations.

During FY 2024-25, Corporate Investor Awareness
Sessions were held at:

1. Oil & Gas Development Company Limited: Investor Awareness Session was held for Oil & Gas Development
Company Limited Employees.

2. Honda Atlas Car Limited: Investor Awareness Session was held for Honda Atlas Car Limited Employees.

Sessions/Webinars on Sustainability

1. PSX and SECP conducted a two-day workshop session on ‘Gender Equality — Addressing Complexities in the
Capital Market, facilitated by UN SSE, UN Women, and the World Bank IFC.

2. Along with London Stock Exchange Group (LSEG), we organized a sector-specific ESG webinar for listed
companies from banks, investment banks/investment companies/securities companies/insurance on "ESG
Data Reporting — Banking & Other Financial Institutions”.

3. Incollaboration with CFA Society Pakistan, we arranged a seminar on “Al & Energy Transition for Sustainable
Investing”.

4. We conducted a webinar on “Understanding and Preventing Greenwashing”.

5. We arranged a webinar on “Linking PSX primer on ESG & GRI standards”.
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Knowledge center

Toraise the level of financial literacy and awareness of the
capital market, a comprehensive resource of articles,
blogs, and financial calculators is the PSX Knowledge
Center’ which is an additional tool available at PSX
website. The Knowledge Center is accessible for all and is
particularly useful for both novice and savvy investors.
Currently, we have 8,200 users on the Knowledge portal.

Evaluate

As a frontline regulator, PSX proactively advocates ESG
reporting and adherence. We consistently take steps to
foster awareness of ESG risks and opportunities for listed
companies and stakeholders. Today, companies that
disclose ESG information are highly valued by investors,
as responsible investing becomes a key focus
internationally.

Refinitiv ESG Contribution Tool

Given the present-day significance and importance of
ESG concems from an investor's perspective, it is now
imperative and imminent for businesses to adhere to and
report on ESG-related performance parameters. In this
context, PSX has signed a collaborative understanding
with Refinitiv (a London Stock Exchange Group "LSEG
company)on ESG. Under this mutual agreement,
Refinitiv's ESG Contribution Tool will be available to the
listed companies for their ESG data reporting. This
Contribution Tool will not only enable presenting a
standardized ESG scoring by Refinitiv for contributing PSX
listed companies but will also enhance the visibility of
Pakistan's companies on the international ESG radar.
Through this collaborative effort, PSX aims to provide the
listed companies with a robust platform designed to
enhance ESG performance. By leveraging this tool, listed
companies can effectively demonstrate their dedication
to sustainable business practices, thereby enhancing their
attractiveness to investors and stakeholders.

Gender equality and diversity in Pakistan’s corporate
sector

We issued a notice for the mandatory disclosure of
gender pay gap data by listed companies in their annual
reports to promote transparency and advance gender
equality and diversity in Pakistan's corporate sector.

Reporting on SDG-linked Disclosures

PSX integrated SDG-linked disclosure into its Top 25
Companies Awards, so that listed firms are encouraged to
report on at least five SDGs in their Annual Reports.
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PSX and Pakistan Observer enter into a strategic data
sharing partnership

Pakistan Stock Exchange and Capital Publications (Pvt)
Ltd, ie. Pakistan Observer, entered into a strategic
partnership by signing a data sharing agreement at a
ceremony held at PSX Karachi Head Office. This
agreement enabled the integration of stock price ticker
on Pakistan Observer's website to keep the larger
audience of Pak Observer well-informed about stock
market prices. The agreement signed between the two
parties signified another step forward in disseminating
and communicating PSX's trading information to a wider
audience for their awareness; this will also lead to
encouraging potential investors to look into investment
opportunities available at PSX. Pakistan Observer's
massive global circulation will greatly enhance PSX's
market reach. Pakistan Observer is one of Pakistan's
oldest and most widely read English-language daily
newspapers. It was founded by the late Zahid Malik, a
renowned journalist, in 1988.

Timely & Accurate Information Dissemination
PSX responded to multiple market data queries from
various stakeholders, ensuring timely and accurate

information dissemination. This reflects the Exchange's
commitment to transparency, stakeholder engagement,
and supporting informed decision-making in capital
markets.
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Internal Organizational Perspective

Fostering Green Economy

4

Internal Organizational Perspective

mr

Managing our Social &
Environmental Footprint

Governance
&
Transparency

Governance & Transparency
Operating Ethically

Code of Conduct & Business Practices Ethics
PSX is committed to high standards of ethical, moral and legal business conduct. Our success as a Securities
Exchange is based on integrity, honesty and trust in everything we do.

Privacy of information

While information is the cornerstone of the Exchange's ability to provide transparency, a very important aspect is
the trust of stakeholders, particularly towards companies listed on the Exchange, Brokers and the investors.
Keeping information secure is our top priority. Every Employee is required to safequard, according to strict
standards of security and confidentiality.

Trading

All employees are restricted from engaging in trades involving products or instruments listed on the Exchange,
with the exception of those overseen by Asset Management Companies, like Mutual Funds and ETFs. This
restriction applies both directly and indirectly through dependents during their period of employment at PSX. We
enforce strict oversight through an established policy to monitor the financial transactions of the employees and
their families, ensuring compliance and accountability.

Conflict of Interest

The Employees are prohibited from using his/her position, designation and employment with the Exchange to take
undue benefit for him/herself or his/her dependent family members.
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Anti-harassment

PSX prohibits all forms of harassment or intimidation, whether committed by or against a staff member, existing or
potential members, investors, vendors, or visitors. In order to enhance awareness regarding this crucial matter,
PSX's HR department, in collaboration with the Legal team, has successfully conducted in-house sessions on the
subject of ‘Workplace Harassment'. These sessions were made obligatory for all employees across various levels,
ranging from junior to senior level positions. We are pleased to share that these sessions have gamered positive
feedback and have been greatly appreciated by our employees. PSX has undertaken significant measures to foster
a harassment-free workplace and conducting awareness sessions on ‘Workplace Harassment' is one of the steps
that have been taken during the past few years.

Grievance management

PSX recognizes that workplace challenges may arise from time to time and has found that the best way of
maintaining job satisfaction and good working relationships is to follow a procedure for solving problems and
grievances. For this purpose, we have a grievance management system in place, which assists in resolving
workplace issues and problems.

Whistle Blowing

The Exchange encourages all its employees and external affiliates, shareholders, vendors, and investors to act
responsibly at all times and protect themselves and the Exchange against any illegal or immoral acts by
immediately reporting any such actions.

We encourage all employees at PSX, and outside parties such as Shareholders, Vendors, Investors, etc. to report
their concerns against irregularities, financial malpractice, fraud and forgeries, personnel harassment, improper
conduct, or any wrongdoing without fear of reprisal, adverse consequences and/or retribution. We assure the
whistle blowers that he/she will be protected from victimization. Any serious concerns raised about any aspect of
the operations of the Exchange and those who work in the Exchange can be reported through email and physically
as well.

In order to ensure a transparent, fair and impartial whistle-blowing policy and process, a Whistle Blowing
Committee (WBC) is formed with at least 3 members comprising of CEO, Head of Human Resources Department
and Head of Internal Audit Department.

Complaint Management System

In its efforts to increase investor confidence in the capital market and digitalization, PSX has launched a new
Complaint Management System designed to empower investors in addressing grievances against brokers. This
user-friendly platform enables investors to lodge complaints easily and track their progress in real-time till closure.
By offering clear visibility into each stage of the complaint resolution process, the system promotes greater
transparency.

Enterprise Resource Planning

As part of the implementation of ERP, the Procurement module has been implemented, introducing automation
and control in purchasing activities while supporting our commitment to a paperless workflow. This serves as the
starting point, with the next modules—Receivables, HR, and others—scheduled for implementation in the
upcoming phases. Each module will further enhance integration and streamline operations across key functions.
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Managing our Regulatory Affairs

The Regulatory Affairs Department (RAD) is responsible
for framing and updating the PSX Regulations, devising
policies, monitoring compliance, taking enforcement
actions against non-compliant securities brokers and
listed companies, and ensuring investor education and
advocacy. Moreover, it also provides a platform for
investors to lodge their complaints for efficient
redressal.

Investor Education and Regulatory Awareness

The Exchange has always been taking various
regulatory measures to protect the integrity and
fairness of the securities market. As part of these efforts,
PSX regularly conducts awareness sessions and
webinars for the market participants with an aim to
impart knowledge of the core regulatory requirements
and ensure a strong compliance culture.

In this regard, PSX conducted another regulatory
awareness session for the market participants on
important areas of Market Misconduct/ Abuses
prescribed under Chapter 7A of PSX Rulebook. During
the session, the Chief Regulatory Officer of PSX, along
with his senior Surveillance team members, provided
detailed insight on the legal frameworks governing
market abuses and the various forms of market abuse
that are prohibited and tantamount to criminal
offenses if committed by any person. Besides, the PSX
officials also enlightened the participants about the
responsibilities of Brokers, PSX and SECP with regard to
market misconduct/ abuse as well as powers of PSX
and SECP in the market surveillance and related
enquiries and investigations and the strengthening of
surveillance activities post deployment of

state-of-the-art surveillance system at PSX.
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Regulatory Assessments of Securities Brokers
The Joint Inspection Department conducts the Joint
Inspections of the securities brokers under the

supervision of the Oversight Committee (OC)
constituted by the SECP. OC comprises members from
each SRO, i.e,, PSX, NCCPL and CDC.

An independent audit firm conducts a System Audit in
accordance with PSX Regulations. All eligible securities
brokers are required to be audited once in each ‘cycle’
of two years. The securities brokers are selected
through random balloting conducted semi-annually by
RAD in every calendar year, latest by 31st January and
31st July. The securities brokers selected for joint
inspection are excluded from the forthcoming balloting
cycle of the system audit.

IBTS audit of the securities brokers is conducted once
every two years, by an audit firm approved by the
Exchange.

On-site and off-site assessments / monitoring in
financial year 2023, 2024 & 2025 pertaining to the
Securities Broker

777
485
224 215
92 122
_ - [ |

2025 2024 2023

B Off-site W On-site
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Number of complaints received against security
brokers and how many were resolved for financial
year 2025

328

2025 2024 2023

mComplaints Received = Complaints Resolved

Audit, Inspection, Default

Number of enforcement actions in financial year 2025

276

Market Surveillance
Department

Listed Companies &

and Arbitration Securities Compliance

m2025 m2024 =2023

Navigating Through Uncertainties

In FY 2025, PSX reinforced its commitment to enterprise
risk management by executing a comprehensive
annual risk assessment across departments. This
strategic exercise enabled the Exchange to re-evaluate
existing risks amid the prevailing economic and
business scenario, adjust mitigation plans, and ensure
alignment with our risk appetite. In parallel, PSX
continued to integrate risk management into its core
business activities, anchoring it in key decision-making,
operations, and accordingly upgrading critical systems
and networks to strengthen infrastructure resilience. As
part of its ongoing capacity-building efforts, awareness
sessions and training were conducted for newly
inducted employees and the newly formed
procurement  team, enhancing  organizational
understanding of the Risk Management Framework and
ensuring accurate risk register updates in line with
Exchange's objectives.

As part of its efforts to ensure business continuity in
case of any disaster, PSX completed the 2nd
surveillance audit to maintain its Business Continuity
Management System (BCMS) Certification of PSX Head
Office  (Administration Building) to the latest
international standard i.e. ISO/IEC 22301:2019.

Information Security Management System

We are proud to announce that we have achieved the
ISO 27001:2022 certification, the internationally
recognized standard for Information Security
Management Systems (ISMS). This significant milestone
highlights PSX's  unwavering commitment to
maintaining the highest levels of information security,
ensuring the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of
data for all stakeholders.

The certification was awarded following a rigorous
audit process conducted by SGS, a world-renowned
inspection, verification, testing, and certification
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organization accredited by UKAS. This third-party
validation confirms that PSX has implemented a robust
and effective ISMS that meets the stringent
requirements of the ISO 27001:2022 standard.

PSX remains dedicated to adopting the best practices in
information security and upholding the integrity of the
capital market ecosystem. This certification reinforces
PSX's position as a secure and reliable financial market
infrastructure  provider, offering a robust and
trustworthy environment for investors and market
participants.

Security Assessment & VAPT

The Exchange has taken proactive measures to
strengthen its cybersecurity defenses by conducting
thorough vulnerability and penetration testing on its
core business applications. The PSX Information
Security team also conducted security assessments of
multiple applications running in PSX environment to
enhance the security posture of PSX.

Threat Landscape

We have also enhanced our Threat monitoring
proficiencies for discovering exposed assets, phishing
domains, credential leaks and infrastructure
misconfiguration from external sources.

Level Up Your Security with XDR Training

To enhance the expertise of PSX security professionals
in Endpoint and Extended Detection and Response
(XDR), an intensive 2-day instructor-led training was
conducted by external specialists. This practical training
encompassed vital subjects, including understanding
XDR concepts and endpoint functionalities, integration
with third-party products, activation of XDR sensors,
application of XDR tools and workbenches, sharing
threat intelligence, and implementing security
playbooks for comprehensive incident response.
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Security Awareness & Campaign

PSX launched a Security Awareness Campaign using its new Learming Management Solution. This platform also
allowed phishing campaigns to check how aware staff were about information security. Based on the results, PSX
identified areas that needed improvement and provided targeted training to strengthen staff awareness and
protect against security threats.

Business continuity plan awareness sessions

The Risk Management Department successfully conducted a Business Continuity Planning (BCP) drill at PSX's
Alternate Processing Site. Designated alternates of all critical staff participated by performing their regular duties
during business hours, ensuring operational readiness in the event of an emergency that prevents access to PSX's
main premises. The primary objective of the drill was to validate the organization's ability to access its primary data
center, sustain critical trading operations, and ensure the resilience of recovery procedures. Before the drill, a BCP
awareness session was conducted for all critical staff and their designated alternates, providing clear guidance on
responsibilities, the location of the alternate site, and key points of contact.

Managing Our Social & Environmental Footprint
Fostering an Inclusive Culture

At PSX, we are firmly committed to fostering a business environment in which our employees can thrive. We
remain headstrong in our commitment to engage our employees; by encouraging connections, building trust, and
driving our long-term business ideals. Here, the driving force of our workplace ideals remains embedding
inclusivity for each and every employee’s personal and professional growth without any discrimination.

We seek to create an inclusive and diverse work culture. We are also engaged in developing and upskilling our
employees in order to make them thrive personally and professionally. We actively promote open communication
and engagement with our employees in order to ensure that their needs become part and parcel of our present
and future policy drivers.

Talent Management
To hire top quality talent from the market and build a
Talent strong leadership pipeline via campus hiring
Management

HR Information System Training and OD

Automation of all HR processes to HR Information Training & OD Ensure employees receive top class
bring in efficiency and reduce tum System functional technical and soft skills
time. training which help them perform
their jobs well and add to their self -
development

Our Priorities

Succession Planning Performance Management
Ensure a merit - based and transparent

Build a leadership pipeline to have Succession Performance and performance culture for all HR
successors in place for all critical Planning Management process
positions.

Rewards
Management

Rewards Management

To have competitive rewards policies to attract and retain
top level human resource
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Diversity, Inclusion & Culture

We believe that employees’ skills and hard work triumph over the social constraints often formed by race, gender,
ethnicity, religion and all backgrounds. By promoting a diverse and inclusive work environment, we drive a fair
culture with equal opportunities and consistent policies for all. In Recruitment and Onboarding, Talent
Management, Rewards and Performance Management, Employee Relations, Work Ethics, etc., our policies remain
consistent for all employees to provide a fair system. Championing a diverse workforce, PSX values uplifting the
talents of those who are often overlooked.

Current percentage of female staff within management cadre is 19.7% with a target of increasing the same in
upcoming years. We have a 18.2% women representation on the Board where Chairperson is herself a female. At
the D&I front, we are also a signatory to WEPs (Women Empowerment Principles). This is a UN Women charter by
virtue of which PSX commits to uphold and make efforts for gender empowerment, equality and support. To
further promote employee well-being and work-life balance, PSX has significantly extended its maternity leave
policy to 180 calendar days. This extension demonstrates a deep understanding of the unique needs of new
mothers and their families. Beyond this, PSX offers an additional three months of work-from-home (WFH) or
flexible working hours, ensuring new mothers can seamlessly transition into parenthood while staying connected
to their professional responsibilities.

New hires by gender New hires by age

mMale ®Female m<30years u(30-50)years m>50 years

2023 2023

2025 71% 29%

2025

PSX Celebrates International Women's Day 2025
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX), in collaboration with
UN Women, Women on Board Initiative, International
Finance Corporation (IFC), Central Depository
Company (CDC), Pakistan Institute of Corporate
Governance (PICG) and other corporate leaders,
proudly hosted a Gong Ceremony to celebrate Ringing
the Bell for Gender Equality on International Women's
Day, reaffirming its commitment to promote gender
equality and women empowerment in the corporate
sector. The event brought together distinguished
leaders, professionals, and industry experts to celebrate
the achievements of women and discuss strategies for
fostering inclusivity in the financial and business
landscape.
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The session commenced with opening remarks by Dr.
Shamshad Akhtar, Chairperson of the Pakistan Stock
Exchange (PSX), acknowledging the significance of
International Women'’s Day and the role of women in
economic development and social progress. She said,
“Gender inclusivity is a key pillar of the Sustainable
Development Goals (SDGs), serving as both an initiator
and driver of growth and sustainability. While the
financial sector has historically been male-dominated,
it is evolving, with women gaining greater
representation as  investors, managers, and
entrepreneurs.

PSX is committed to leading by example and is
dedicated to fostering an environment where diversity
thrives and where everyone's voice is not only heard
but amplified and valued. Our mission is to prepare the
economic growth and innovation crucial to our
nation’s future.

Talent Acquisition

Sourcing is done on merit and various sourcing
channels are used, including advertisement, head
hunting and university job portals. A minimum of a
1/3rd ratio of female candidates is targeted for all open
positions.

Equal Opportunity

We are an equal opportunity employer and already
have D&l Policy with a focus on equal opportunity for
everyone without any discrimination. Our rewards and
remuneration packages are fair and consistent and are
without any gender differentiation.

Fair Employment Practices

PSX believes that diversity in our staff is critical to our
success as a leading financial institution, and we seek
to recruit, develop, and retain the most talented people
from a diverse candidate pool. Every Employee can
advance at the exchange, based on his/her talent and
performance and without regard for race, origin,
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employment opportunity and compliance in letter and
spirit of the full range of fair employment practices and
nondiscrimination laws. PSX does not tolerate
discrimination of any kind against any employee or
applicant for employment, for any prescribed reason.

Employee Turnover Rate
39

<30 years (30-50) years >50 years
Age Group
m2025 m2024 m2023

Total No. of employees

203

179 187

<30 years Female

(30-50) years >50 years Male

Age Group Gender
gender, or religion. We are fully committed to equal 22025 m2024 m2023
Average training per employee
(hours per year)
2023
2024
2025
0 2 4 6 8 10 12
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During the year, our staff was nominated for 46
different developmental and operational trainings such
as 'Elevate Your Leadership with Emotional
Intelligence’, 'Building High-Impact Leaders with
EVICE', 'Master Advanced Negotiation and Influence —
Proven and New Techniques for Success’, and 'Women
in Leadership (WIL)". Other notable initiatives include
‘IFC Training of Trainers on ESG & Sustainability’, and
‘Transform Your Business From Invisible to Irresistible
by Gabor George Burt'. Employees were also equipped
with advanced technical and analytical skills through
specialized workshops and certifications. These

included Advanced Excel for Advanced Reports & Data
Analysis, Workshop on ESG Reporting and Disclosure in
Line with IFRS S1 and S2, Trend Micro Vision One XDR
Training, Blue Vs Red Team Cybersecurity Workshop —
Where Attackers Meet Defenders, and Certified Risk
Manager Training (8-Week Professional Course).

PSX HR also launched the in-house sessions to provide
our employees with opportunities to gain awareness
and deepen their knowledge. These leaming/
awareness sessions were conducted on critical topics
such as the Protection Against Workplace Harassment,
Code of Conduct and Whistleblowing.

Succession plan

A complete and robust succession plan has been
devised for all positions, including senior management
and the same has been approved by the Board. This has
provided thorough career planning to the
high-potential staff and has brought in cross-functional
synergies.

Capital Market Future Leaders Program

The Capital Market Future Leaders Program is PSX's
brainchild to build a robust pipeline of future leaders to
cater to the growing needs of Pakistan’'s Capital Market.
It is a joint initiative of PSX, CDC, and NCCPL in which
candidates are hired for a management trainee
program, encompassing 18 months of training with
equal rotations in the three organizations, leading to
permanent placements, subject to the final evaluations.
The first cohort of this program was a great success
and a huge testament to PSX's commitment towards
building the talent pipeline for Pakistan's capital market.
PSX successfully retained 5 out of 6 such trainees. The
onboarding for the second cohort of the program is in
process.

Performance management

PSX has a pay-for-performance methodology to ensure
that the reward is linked to performance and merit. Our
Performance Management exercise is grounded in
objectivity and transparency, enhancing efficiency in
evaluation processes. It begins with setting clear
objectives, followed by self-assessment, and concludes
with a manager's assessment.

Performance improvement plan

PSX has a Performance Improvement Plan (PIP) in place
for those staff who were not able to meet the expected
level of performance in the previous financial year and
were rated “Developing Performance - DP” or
“Improvement Required Now - IN". The underlying
objective of this exercise is to ensure that our low
performers are counselled, guided and coached on
their shortfalls and how to overcome them.

Employee wellbeing

At PSX we have general health insurance and general
life insurance policies in place for our employees at all
staff levels. We regularly conduct Health awareness
sessions with hospitals and health insurance
companies, which provide opportunities to our staff to
register themselves for health and well-being related
webinars. We also provided access to our employees
for ‘Sehat Kahani Corporate. App' to facilitate them with
online medical consultation. A session was held this
year to familiarize our staff with this free online 24/7
medical service, which can be used by employees and




their families (including parents) for normal
consultation. Moreover, in collaboration with a general
health insurance provider, the HR Department placed
the Telehealth Kiosk “EZShifa” for employees for 10
days, offering an accessible and seamless healthcare
experience. The Kiosk provided essential health checks,
including weight, blood pressure, oxygen saturation,
random sugar testing, and ECG monitoring. It also
enabled employees to connect with doctors via virtual
consultations, ensuring professional advice with just a
click away. Furthermore, maternity and paternity leave
are offered to all married employees.

Employee Development

Throughout the year, our employees were nominated
for participation in over 30 diverse training programs,
covering both developmental and operational areas.
These included high-impact courses such as
‘Becoming a Transformational Leader’, 'ESG Reporting’,
‘Data Analytics Program’, ‘'MS Excel for Advanced
Reports & Dashboard Development, ‘Personal
Productivity Program’, and ‘Internal Audit in a Dynamic
World’, among others.

In addition to external training opportunities, PSX HR
introduced an in-house functional learming series
aimed at enhancing employees’ technical and
professional capabilities. These sessions were
facilitated by intermal subject matter experts and
focused on deepening participants’ understanding of
key concepts, tools, and best practices relevant to their
roles. This initiative not only fostered a culture of
continuous learning but also empowered employees
to apply their enhanced knowledge directly to their
day-to-day responsibilities.
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Compensation & benefits
All employees are entitled to life insurance, Health care,
Disability and invalidity coverage, Parental leave and
Retirement provision. Furthermore, our rewards and
remuneration packages are fair and consistent without
any gender discrimination.

Navigating Through Our Environmental Impact

PSX, as a service-oriented entity, acknowledges that its
environmental footprint extends beyond the typical
concerns of manufacturing or logistics. To address this,
we conduct a detailed analysis of the materials utilized
in our offices, specifically items like paper—that can
adversely affect the environment. We maintain that,
regardless of our size, every action holds significance in
the shared responsibility of environmental stewardship.
By meticulously documenting and managing our
environmental metrics, we are dedicated to
embedding sustainability into our business practices,
fostering a lasting commitment to a greener future.

Energy Management

Energy management remains a key operational priority
for PSX, as efficient energy use not only helps reduce
operational costs but also minimizes our
environmental impact. In line with our commitment to
sustainability, we have systematically recorded our
energy consumption for both the current and previous
financial years (2025, 2024 and 2023), with total usage
estimated in Gigajoules.

To reduce our energy footprint, we have transitioned
entirely to LED lighting across our premises.
Additionally, a dedicated team of five individuals has
been assigned to monitor and ensure that unnecessary
lighting is turned off on each floor after working hours
— reinforcing our efforts to promote responsible
energy use throughout the organization.

Energy Consumptions in GigaJoules-2025-2023
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Diesel Natural Gas Petrol

50 60 50 300 120 150
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2025 w2024 #2023
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GHG Emissions

Despite operating on a relatively smaller scale
compared to many organizations, PSX remains
committed to setting a benchmark for corporate
responsibility in Pakistan. As part of our ongoing efforts
to combat climate change, we have undertaken a
comprehensive assessment of our greenhouse gas
(GHG) emissions in alignment with the GHG Protocol.

Our emissions have been categorized as follows:

Scope 1: Direct emissions from stationary and mobile
combustion sources.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions resulting from the
consumption of purchased electricity.

Recognizing the potential for meaningful impact, PSX is
actively exploring opportunities to reduce Scope 2
emissions by integrating renewable energy sources
into our overall energy mix in the coming years.

Water Management

At PSX, we recognize the importance of conserving
water as a critical and increasingly scarce resource.
Although our water usage is limited to domestic
purposes across our facilities, we have taken proactive
steps to monitor and manage our consumption and
discharge effectively.

In line with our commitment to environmental
responsibility, we have introduced water reuse
practices within our premises. A notable initiative
involves the collection of water from ablution areas,
which is then repurposed for landscape irrigation. This
effort reflects our broader goal of fostering a
sustainable and eco-conscious workplace culture.

Tons of CO2 eq - 2025-2023

3,014.72 3,025 3,000

2,912.33 2,920

300
102.39 105

Scope 1 Scope 2 Total

w2025 w2024 ®2023
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Water Consumption (ML)-2025-2023

Withdrawal

Discharge Consumption
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PSX aims to integrate sustainable practices across all its
operations. As part of our long-term environmental
conservation goal, we are in the process of designing a
comprehensive and effective waste management
system that operates organization-wide. This system
will be used to handle waste collection, handling,
storage, and disposal according to standardized and
transparent methods. By developing and implementing
clear SOPs for each stream, we aim to provide a
channel of waste management that minimizes our
waste and prioritizes circularity. While this system is
currently under development, we have already
prioritized resource efficiency in our workplace. Our
internal policy dictates that our employees adopt
habits that include using paper responsibly, aspire to
move towards a paper-free workspace. By digitalizing
workflows and communicating through email and
other electronic platforms. These measures not only
enhance connectivity in an increasingly digital world
but also reflect the organization's broader commitment
to environmental sustainability.

Emergency Preparedness and Health & Safety

PSX ensures adequate health and safety practices
within its operations. These include the availability of
fire protective and extinguishing equipment at all
locations/premises and emergency preparedness
exercises, along with educational awareness
campaigns aimed at enabling our staff to better
manage and cope with similar situations in future. We
are up to date with the external environment and
media reports for new information and updates that
would allow us to efficiently mobilize appropriate
resources to ensure our employees’ well-being and
safety. We also maintain a dispensary facility with a
doctor & dispenser for all occupants at PSX premises in
Karachi. On July 8, 2024, A fire broke out at a broker’s
office. Due to the prompt response from PSX Admin
and fire brigade teams, the fire was brought under
control swiftly, with limited damage to the property.
The building's fire safety measures, including the alarm
system, functioned effectively in alerting occupants
and emergency services, thereby minimizing the
impact of the incident. No injuries were reported
during this incident.




Moreover, multiple DR drills, fire drills and BCP/DR
awareness sessions for brokers have been conducted
to tackle such situations and to ensure the continuity of
operations during such events. The latest BCP/DR
awareness session presentation, highlighting multiple
scenarios and required action, was also shared with all
brokers for their reference and record purposes.

Fire drill

Fire evacuation drill was conducted on August 15,
2024, Before the fire drill, a meeting was held with
Crisis Management Team on August 10, 2024, in the
CAO office to discuss and finalize the necessary
arrangements.

Fostering a Green Economy

Pursuing Growth and Prosperity

The overarching role PSX plays in Pakistan's economy
cannot be understated as we provide a vital platform
for capital formation on a national level, we enable the
grounds that help companies raise capital for
expansion, equipment upgrades, and hiring. Acting as a
regulated and transparent marketplace for investors,
we stimulate economic growth and foster trust in
investment opportunities that are pivotal for Pakistan's
future.

A no-compromise approach when it comes to
regulatory frameworks enables market operations to
remain orderly, secure and reliable to foster confidence
and mitigate the risk of fraud and interference.
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Furthermore, our performance reflects the health of
our national economy.

In the financial year 2025, PSX executed 87.72 million
trades in all markets with zero halts and 4 pauses
during the market operations. Based on the product
class, PSX recorded the following daily average number
of trades in financial year 2024-2025:

Average daily Daily average
number of trades | Volume traded
Product class executed

2025 2025
READY 296,737 630,829,195
Deliverable Future Contracts 57,296 196,443,389
Real Estate Investment Trust 675 830,314
Exchange Traded Funds 341 1,521,496
Negotiated Deals Market 47 25,868,613
GOP ljarah Sukuk 15 2,078,351,883
Odd Lot Market 12 1,446
Square up Market 8 37,580
Bills and Bonds 1 3,952
Government Securities Market 0 20,243

Direct Economic Value Distributed (Million)
3269
2,086
1604
109 560 780 1040’7033 792 801
407
I 8 30 91U 2
Operating Cost Other Salaries and other Payments to provider ~ Payments to Donations Total
than Salaries benefits of Capital government
w2025 m2024 m2023

Total Economic Value (Million)

3989

3114 3269
1824 i
1604
1033
720
ml:

Direct Economic Value
Generated

Direct Economic Distributed ~ Economic Value Retained

m2025 m2024 m2023
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PSX now plays the key role of a facilitator and educator
in regard to future green projects and its related
instruments. As an organization, we will continue to
spearhead the reporting, market development and
promote transparency to ensure Pakistan's sustainable
future remains in safe hands.

Sharing Prosperity

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities focused
on SDG activities in terms of contributions for the
betterment of society in spheres of environment,
health and education. We have a total budgetary
commitment of 2% of total revenue towards CSR.
particularly towards health and education. The Board
approved CSR Policy of PSX provides for an aggregate
annual contribution equivalent to 2% of the profit
before tax.

Blood Donation

In a display of compassion and community spirit, our
employees rallied together for a meaningful cause
during the recent Blood Donation drive in collaboration
with Indus Hospital was also arranged at the
exchange's premises, where all employees were
encouraged to contribute to this noble cause. The
turnout was inspiring, with numerous staff members
generously participating in this act of kindness. Each
donation made a significant impact, potentially saving
lives and contributing to the well-being of those in
need. The sense of unity and shared purpose was
palpable as employees selflessly gave of themselves for
the greater good. It's heartening to witness our team'’s
commitment to making a positive difference in the
lives of others. This successful Blood Donation
Campaign not only reflects our organization's ethos of
caring for the community but also serves as a powerful
reminder of the impact we can collectively achieve.

Contribution to Health & Society

In the realms of healthcare and social welfare, PSX
provided substantial donations to support trust and
charity hospitals such as Lady Dufferin Hospital,
Bait-ul-Sukoon Cancer Hospital, Shaukat Khanum
Hospital, Patients Behbud Society at AKUH, Kutiyana
Memon Hospital, Dawood Global Foundation, Indus
Hospital, and Sina Clinics. These institutions are
committed to offering free medical treatment,
reflecting PSX's dedication to promoting health and
enhancing community well-being.
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Contribution to Education

In its commitment to education, PSX contributed to
schools and wuniversities by providing student
scholarships and financial assistance. Recipients
included institutions such as IBA Karachi, Habib
University, IOBM, Fortify Education Foundation, and
FESF Deaf Reach, supporting students with hearing
disabilities. Additionally, PSX backed Zindagi Trust in its
mission to enhance public schools. Through these
initiatives, PSX reaffirmed its dedication to fostering a
more inclusive and empowered society. By channeling
resources into health, education, and social welfare,
PSX played a vital role in enhancing lives and nurturing
a promising future for communities throughout
Pakistan.
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SASB Index

Sustainability Disclosure Topics and Accounting Metrics

SASB Topic Code Accounting Metrics Details

(a) Halt related to public release of information is
not applicable as per PSX regulations.
However, Market halt/pause related to

(1) Number and (2) average duration of volatility applies to the index in case of
(a) halts related to public release of KSE-30 mdex moves 5% either way from its
FN-EX-410a.1 information and (b) pauses related to last day closing index value.
volatility.
(b) Please refer to page 32
Promoting 87.72 Million trades executed in all markets this
trf:lr.\sparent.& b ; £ trad ted f year.  Algorithmic  Trading is  not
efficient capital FN-EX-410a.2 e;cen ?gg to dlra e tgenera cafrom applicable/allowed as per PSX, hence 100% of all
markets autormated frading systems. trades are executed through the automated
trading system.

» Regular webinars by sustainability specialists
on the importance of ESG disclosure.

e Nominated as a member of the
SECP-constituted =~ committee ~ named
“Sustainable Finance Advisory Group”.

Description of policy to encourage or | * éSSiStlinTg ;Eg PpﬂOt launch of ESG Sustain

i i i i ortal for
FN-EX-410a.4 :jeig;g;:e hs;iiégﬂgi?;’s stsdztibgilé o Contributed towards advancing
governance (ESG) Information thsigg?rl{:%ﬂ;& tRheepclacr:t?r]:gs Working Group

e Worked with SBP in drafting the Green
Taxonomy for Pakistan

e Issued notice for the mandatory disclosure
of gender pay gap data by listed companies
in their annual reports

o PSXintegrated SDG-linked disclosure into its
Top 25 Companies Awards

PSX did not sustain any monetary losses in the

Total amount of monetary losses as a . . .
result of legal proceedings associated reporting period as a result of legal proceedings
. o . . associated with fraud, insider trading, anti-trust,
with fraud, insider trading, anti-trust, anti-competitive behavior market
FN-EX-510a1 ant porlrlyt?etltlve 1beh1v10r, matr}}iet manipulation, malpractice, or other relevant
:2; ?;%u aﬁfz;;cglla ﬂgig?@ ?;WZ g: financial industry laws or regulations related to
. fraud, insider trading, anti-trust, anti-competitive
regulations . . . .
behavior, market manipulation, or malpractice

PSX maintains a Conflict of Interest Policy

approved by the Board with the following key

features:

e Each director on the Board present at any
meeting, shall declare that either he/she
does not have any personal interest in any of

Managing the agenda item of the meeting of the Board
conflict of or otherwise he/ she has properly disclosed
interest his/her interest (if any) in any such agenda
item and would accordingly abstain from
. ) ) o participating in the relevant discussion or

EN-EX-510a.2 Discussion of processes for identifying voting there-upon.

@ and assessing conflicts of interest  All directors, members of PSX, employees,
and agents, including a consultant engaged
by PSX who participate in the selection or
acceptance of a contract for procurement of
equipment, materials, supplies, or services to
the Exchange, must comply with PSX's
conflict of interest policy.
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» No director, member of PSX, employee, or
agent of the Exchange will participate in the
process of selection or acceptance of a
contract on behalf of the Exchange that
involve a conflict-of-interest  situation,
without the approval of the Board.

(1) Number of significant market

The market was suspended for 120 minutes
from 10:25 am to 12:25 pm on July 08, 2024,

Odd Lot Market: 1,446
Square up Market: 37,580
Bills and Bonds: 3,952

FN-EX-550a1 disruptions and (2) duration of due to the fire that broke out in the brokerage
downtime. firm'’s office in the Stock Exchange building. Due
to this incident, many firms were unable to
access the building.
S;rl;l;r:;:;; gvi?f/?nkg;ae(i?g; (1‘3 In FY 2024-2025, PSX did not record any lpss of
Man?.glng FN-EX-550a.2 identifiable information (PID). (3] PII or (éata where customers were directly
business o impacted.
o umber of customers affected.
continuity &
technology PSX actively prevents tech errors and security
risks o breaches to protect data and minimize business
Description of efforts to prevent disruption.  Defenses  include  Network
FN-EX-550a.3 technology errors, security breaches, Segmentation, Encryption, Role-Based Access
and market disruptions Control, and Vulnerability Assessment and
Penetration Testing, safeguarding both external
and intemal networks.
Activity Metrics
Average daily number of trades executed:
e READY: 296,737
Average daily e Deliverable Future Contracts: 57,296
number of ¢ Real Estate Investment Trust: 675
tr Average daily number of trades *  Exchange Traded Fund; 341
exec;ifis by FN-EX-000A execu?ed byyproduct or asset class *  Negotiated Deals Market: 47
! ' ) e GOP Jjarah Sukuk: 15
product or + Odd Lot Market: 12
asset class e Square up Market: 8
¢ Billsand Bonds: 1
¢ Government securities market: 1
Average daily volume of trades executed:
e READY: 630,829,195
o Deliverable Future Contracts: 196,443,389
Average daily . Eea}}lEstate_l_In\éeSctjr]r:len(t_i Tlnésétl 4?56()’314
; e Exchange Traded Fund: 1,521,
"c]’;“me gadfd FN-EX-000.B A;’eéag‘f dra“y V‘t’h‘lme traded by «  Negotiated Deals Market: 25,868,613
y produc product or asset class «  GOP lJjarah Sukuk: 2,078,351,883
or asset class o

Government Securities: 20,243
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increase in the investor base:

392,775 UINs (+19.28% YoY)

*

TRUTH

® Peak: Karambar Latitude: 36.8788° N Longitude: 73.7057° E
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Directors’ Report

The Board of Directors of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) are pleased to present the Director’s report along
with the audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Economic Review & Outlook

Pakistan’'s macroeconomic stabilization and structural reforms are well underway. This has helped keep the twin
deficits, both fiscal and external accounts deficits manageable. Fiscal deficit has benefited from the fundamental
reforms of tax system. Improved demand management, resilient exports, and growth in remittances helped the
external current account turn positive.

GDP growth is muted relative to past years’ average of around 3.39% annually, with periods of volatility due to both
global and domestic headwinds. In FY2025, real GDP is expected to grow by 2.68%, supported by improved external
sector dynamics and a rebound in domestic demand.

Inflation, once as high as 38% in May 2023, declined sharply to 3.2% in June 2025, aided by a tight monetary policy
and easing global commodity prices. These gains reflect progress in stabilizing the economy and enhancing
investor confidence.

Looking ahead, Pakistan is poised for further recovery and growth. Renewed focus on tax reforms, energy sector
restructuring, climate resilience, and SOE privatization has laid the foundation for more sustainable economic
performance.

Market Performance During the Year

PSX stood out among the top global stock markets in FY24-25. The KSE-100 Index delivered a stellar performance
during the financial year, rising by over 60% in PKR terms and 57% in USD terms, closing at 125,627, up from 78,445
at the end of FY23-24. The benchmark index outperformed all other asset classes in FY24-25, posting a return of
over 60%, significantly outpacing gold at 44.8%, T-Bills at 13.8%, DSC at 12.7%, PIBs at 12.6%, and USD at 1.9% versus
PKR.

This remarkable rally was driven by monetary easing, improved market liquidity, and the unlocking of fundamental
value across key sectors. The KSE-100's CAGR was higher than all other asset classes for 1-year, 3-year, and 5-year
holding periods. The Table below depicts the significant improvement in market performance compared to the last
financial year.

Particulars Year Ended
Sune 30, 2024

KSE-100 Index 125,627 78,445
Market Capitalization (PKR in billion) 15,240 10,375
Average daily value traded — Ready (PKR in billion) 294 16.3
Average daily value traded — Futures (PKR in billion) 10.2 6.3
Average daily value traded — BnB (PKR in billion) 2.1 0.1
Average daily volume traded — Ready (million) 664 481
Average daily volume traded — Futures (million) 197 156
Average daily volume traded — BnB (million) 2,078 30
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PSX Financial Performance During the Year
PSX posted a record pre-tax profit of PKR 1,928 million for the year ended June 30, 2025 vs. PKR 1,110 million for the
year ended June 30, 2024, 74% higher than the corresponding year mainly due to the following:

e Increase inrevenue earned from trading activities by PKR 320 million mainly due to higher average daily traded
value i.e. PKR 41.7 billion in FY 2024-25 vs PKR 22.7 billion in FY 2023-24.

¢ Increase in income from GIS auction fee by PKR 65 million due to strong participation from commercial banks,
mutual funds and brokerage firms.

¢ Increase in performance of the Associated Companies which led to a higher share of profit from associates by
PKR 464 million, over 49% growth.

¢ Whereas, expenses only increased by 3% over FY 2023-24 as a result of effective cost management.

The post-tax profit recorded at PKR 1,521 million for the FY 2024-25, versus PKR 1,028 million in the FY2023-24,
showing an increase of 48%.

By the nature of its business, PSX remains heavily dependent on trading volumes. However, efforts are being
undertaken to gradually reduce dependence on trading volumes by developing other revenue streams such as data
vending and a strong focus on listings. Efforts also continue to be underway to increase the number of investors
and provide greater ease of participation. We are confident that these initiatives will bear fruit going forward for the
benefit of all stakeholders of PSX and for the growth of capital markets in Pakistan.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)
The basic and diluted earnings per share is PKR 1.90 for the FY 2024-25 vs. PKR 1.28 for the FY 2023-24, showing an
increase of 48% compared to last year.

Dividend
The Board of Directors recommended cash dividend of PKR 1.70 per share, for the financial year ended
June 30, 2025.

Material Changes and Commitments Affecting Financial Position of PSX

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of PSX which have
occurred between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate to and the date of the
report.

PSX Outlook - Trends and Factors Likely to Affect the Future Development, Performance, and Position of the
Company'’s Business

IT Achievements and Initiatives
¢ Smooth functioning of trading engine and all ancillary applications despite record breaking market volumes in
FY 2024-25, enhancing market participant’s confidence on recently implemented NTS.

¢ Enhancements related to GoP Ijarah Sukuk (GIS) trading in secondary market, including allowing visibility of
Sukuk prices & yields on trading terminals, computation of brokerage commission, direct access to participants,

instant settlement for Negotiated Deal Market (NDM) transactions, etc.

e Initiating the revamp of PSX Book Building system with the primary objective of achieving full digital integration
and enhanced bidder convenience, thus eliminating existing operational bottlenecks.
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Development of Unlisted Companies Portal for unlisted companies to upload their financial reports, thus
ensuring transparency and accountability.

Conducting DR drill to validate smooth recovery of PSX's core operations during a disaster. Both PSX's internal
business users and market participants including TRECHs, NCCPL, EClear and CDC participated in the drill.

Listing Achievements

During the FY2024-25, PSX successfully listed ten (10) new companies having a total listed capital of
PKR 12,934 million, out of which three (3) companies were listed through initial public offering / offer for sale,
four (4) companies were listed through court orders / scheme of arrangement and three (3) companies were
listed on the GEM Board. In addition, Class “C" shares of an already listed company, which were subscribed by
way of Right issue were also listed during the FY 2024-25 with a paid-up capital of PKR 331 million.

PSX successfully listed three (3) ‘Privately Placed Debt’ Instruments during FY2024-25. The debt securities had
a combined issue size of PKR 5,050 million.

The Exchange successfully listed five (5) Open-end Mutual Funds during FY 2024-25. The funds listed during
the year constituted a total fund size of PKR 2,309 million.

Trading and Investor Developments

132

The PSX continued to make significant progress in FY2024-25, both through the development of its primary
market auction platform for Government of Pakistan [jarah Sukuk (GIS) and through broader enhancements to
its secondary market infrastructure and overall market ecosystem.

13 GIS auctions were held during FY2024-25, all of which saw strong participation from commercial banks,
mutual funds and brokerage firms. Through these GIS auctions, the Ministry of Finance (MoF) has raised over
PKR 2.21 trillion in FY 2024-25.

PSX, in collaboration with the MoF, launched the country’s inaugural Sovereign Domestic Green Sukuk, raising
PKR 31.98 billion at a competitive rental rate of 10.6364% issued under the Sustainable Investment Sukuk
Framework, this milestone aims to attract both local and global investors to fund impactful projects in
renewable energy, public health, and infrastructure development in underserved communities.

PSX implemented several initiatives to boost GIS liquidity and accessibility in the GIS secondary market:

- Onboarding of banks and mutual funds for GIS direct trading access

- Same-day / instant settlement via Negotiated Deals Market

GIS Revaluation mechanism and extended trading hours

Reduced trading fees and standardized brokerage commission

Upgrades to the PSX Data Portal for better visibility of GIS price, yield, volume and value

Onboarded the first Online-Only broker under a new licensing regime, a one-window digital platform for
companies expanding digital access.

Increased circuit breakers from 7.5% to 10% to manage volatility.
Successfully navigated geopolitical tensions while maintaining market stability.

Facilitated five stock splits - PSX introduced process improvements to enable stock splits without requiring a
trading suspension in the corresponding security - a departure from prior practice.




Annual Report 2025

e Partnered with the United Nations Conference on Trade and Development (UNCTAD) and Asian Development
Bank (ADB) to integrate GIS data into Debt Management and Financial Analysis System (DMFAS), improving
debt transparency and reporting standards.

« PSX played a key role in leading the capital market's upcoming transition to T+1 settlement cycle, following
months of rigorous planning, system readiness, and more importantly the consensus-building with key
stakeholders. The transition, expected in February 2026, will facilitate faster access to funds, reduce operational
and systemic risks, and enhance liquidity.

Developments in Product Management & Research

e In order to further strengthen its suite of equity market indices to support market participants, investors, and
data providers with enhanced analytical tools and performance tracking mechanisms, the PSX launched KSE
100 Price Return Index (KSEL100PR), a variant of the KSE-100 Index that excludes cash dividends, offering a pure
price-based market view. Backdated to April 1, 2009, it provides over 15 years of historical data for trend
analysis. This index runs parallel to the KSE-100 Benchmark Index, giving investors dual perspectives on the
same market benchmark.

¢ Following the rollout of its New Trading & Surveillance System, PSX is preparing to relaunch Cash Settled
Futures with revised features. Plans are also underway to introduce Single Stock Options, backed by regulatory
approval from the SECP.

« PSX onboarded 25 new data clients, 16 international and 9 local clients, reflecting strong growth in its data
vending business. It continues its strategic partnership with Deutsche Bdrse AG and has signed MoUs with
exchanges in China, Dhaka, Colombo, and Baku to foster cross-border collaboration, dual listings, product
development, and staff exchanges. A notable MoU with IBA Karachi grants academic access to PSX's market
data, supporting research and student development.

o Efforts were made towards implementing the Shariah Governance Regulations, 2023. Concept on Shariah
Trading model is being prepared and will be shared for SECP review.

e PSX is actively promoting responsible investment and ESG transparency. In line with SECP Circular No. 10 of
2024 and the Prime Minister's Women Empowerment Package (PM-WEP) 2024, over 370 listed companies have
disclosed gender pay gap data. ESG awareness sessions were held with the London Stock Exchange Group
(LSEG) and gender diversity training was conducted under the UN SSEI initiative in June 2025.

Marketing and Business Development Initiatives
¢ Launch of Battle of the Bulls — National Stock Challenge, Pakistan's largest stock competition to date, attracting

5,200 participants. An upgraded investor learning platform was developed to cater Gen-Z audiences.

« PSX also led Pakistan Financial Literacy Week 2025 in collaboration with market stakeholders, while outreach
to 30+ universities resulted in multiple MoUs on investor education.

¢ Ondigital platforms, PSX achieved a 250% growth in social media following and launched targeted campaigns
on ETFs, REITs, Sukuk, RDA, and Investor protection.

¢ Media engagement remained robust, with 36 press releases, 12 interviews, and 4 articles published, alongside
high-profile gong ceremonies and visits by dignitaries including the Prime Minister and Finance Minister.
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Risk Management & Information Security

o PSX strengthened enterprise risk management by conducting a thorough annual risk assessment, aligning
mitigation strategies with evolving economic conditions and its risk appetite. It also embedded risk practices
into core operations, upgraded infrastructure, and enhanced staff capacity through targeted training and
awareness initiatives.

e PSXachieved ISO 27001:2022 certification, marking a major milestone in strengthening its information security
infrastructure and aligning with global standards. This initiative reflects PSX's commitment to safeguard digital
assets, enhancing operational resilience, and fostering trust in Pakistan’s capital market ecosystem.

e PSX successfully completed its 2nd surveillance audit to maintain ISO 22301:2019 BCMS certification,
reinforcing its commitment to business continuity. A full-scale BCP drill and awareness session at the Alternate
Processing Site validated operational readiness and resilience of critical systems during emergencies.

e To strengthen its cybersecurity defenses, PSX has taken proactive measures by conducting thorough
vulnerability and penetration testing [VAPT] on its core business applications. PSX Information Security team
also conducted security assessment of multiple applications running in PSX environment to enhance the
security posture of PSX.

¢ Enhanced its Threat monitoring proficiencies for discovering exposed assets, phishing domains, credential
leaks and infrastructure misconfiguration from external sources.

¢ Launched a Security Awareness Campaign via its Learning Management Solution, using phishing simulations
to assess staff awareness and deliver targeted training to enhance protection against security threats. To gain
essential knowledge of Endpoint & Extended Detection and Response (XDR), learning how to effectively detect,
investigate, prioritize, and respond to threats, a 2-day Instructor-Led Training by external experts was held in
Karachi.

Key Risks Related to PSX

PSX operates in a dynamic landscape where its performance is influenced by market activity, capital raising,
investor engagement, and the volume of traded or listed securities. These are somehow shaped by broader
economic, political, regulatory, and environmental factors. It also faces operational risks, including cybersecurity
threats, system disruptions, and regulatory constraints, which may hinder the execution of its strategic objectives.

Board of Directors

During the financial year 2024-25, Mr. Farrukh H. Khan resigned from the position of PSX's Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) and served PSX till September 2, 2024. The Board of Directors appointed Mr. Nadeem Naqvi, a Shareholder
Director of PSX, as interim CEO from September 3, 2024, to November 17, 2024, with approval of the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). Consequently, the Board of PSX, with the approval of the SECP,
appointed Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari as the CEO for a period of three years with effect from November 18, 2024.

The Board places its appreciation on record for the contributions made by the outgoing CEO and wishes him the
best in his future endeavors.

As at the end of financial year 2024-25, the Board of Directors of PSX consisted of eleven (11) Directors which
included:

Male Directors 9
Female Directors 2
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Additionally, the composition of the Board was as follows:

Shareholder Directors (Non-Executive)

vii)  Mr Nadeem Naqvi

(1) Mr Nihal Cassim (i)  Mr FU Chaoging
(iii)  Mr Ahmed Chinoy, H.L, S.I (iv)  Mr You Hang

(v)  DrFU Hao (vi)  Ms Gu Junmei

(

Independent Directors (Non-Executive)
(1) Dr Shamshad Akhtar

(i)  Mr Adnan Asad

(iii)  Mr Ruhail Muhammad

Chief Executive Officer (Executive)
(i) Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari

During the financial year, 11 meetings of the Board (6 scheduled and 5 emergent) were held, for which the
Directors’ attendance is enclosed as Annexure [ to this report.

Board Committees

In compliance with the Plan for Segregation of Commercial and Regulatory Functions of Stock Exchanges’,
approved by SECP, the Securities Exchanges (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 and the Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and in order to meet the specific requirements of
the business of PSX as a frontline regulator and a commercial entity, the Board has constituted a number of
committees out of which, the main statutory committees are Audit Committee, Human Resources & Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Regulatory Affairs Committee.

The attendance of members at the meetings of aforementioned Committees is enclosed as Annexure II to the
Directors’ Report.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, have retired. The Board as
suggested by the Audit Committee in recognition of the fact that the present auditors have been engaged with the
company for 6 years, has recommended the appointment of M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants as
statutory auditors of the company at same fee charged by the retiring auditors, which is Rs. 5.70 million (excluding
out of pocket expenses and government levies) for the year ending June 30, 2026 for the approval of the members.

The Audit Firm have been given a satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review Program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP). They have confirmed that their firm is fully compliant with the Code as
promulgated by the SECP and the International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) Guidelines on Code of Ethics, as
adopted by the ICAP. The Auditors have provided their consent to act as Auditors.

The external auditors have not been appointed to provide any other service which may impair their independence
and they have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this respect.

Revised Content of the Independent Auditor’s Report
There has been no change in the reporting requirements adopted by the SECP about auditors reporting.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors of PSX is committed to maintaining the highest standards of corporate governance
practices, with a strong emphasis on transparency and disclosure. The Board and the Management are aware of
their responsibilites and diligently oversee capital market operations to enhance the accuracy,
comprehensiveness, and transparency of both financial and non-financial information.

Board Performance Evaluation

The PSX Board has established a formal and effective process for conducting annual performance evaluation of the
Board, its Committees, and Individual Directors. As per the decision of the Board, the evaluation is carried out
intermally each year with external evaluation conducted at least once every three years to adhere to SECP's
guidelines. During the financial year, intemal evaluation was conducted for the Board, its Committees and
Individual Directors, including the CEO.

Directors’ Remuneration

Each Non-Executive Director of PSX shall be entitled to sum of PKR 150,000 and PKR 100,000 on account of
meeting fees (subject to applicable tax) respectively for attending each meeting of the Board of Directors and the
Board-level Committee(s), of which such Director is a member. The Independent Directors of PSX shall also be
entitled to honorarium for hearing appeals of PSX's TRE Certificate Holders and Listed Companies against the
enforcement orders of PSX's Chief Regulatory Officer at PKR 25,000/- per hearing (subject to applicable tax).
Additionally, the Chairperson is entitled to 1800cc Company maintained car, along with driver and 200 liters of fuel
per month.

For more information on remuneration derived by the Directors and the CEO in FY2024-25, please refer note 30 to
the financial statements of PSX, annexed to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements.

Adequacy of Internal Financial Controls and Risk Management

The Board of Directors are ultimately responsible that a system of sound internal control and risk management is
established. The Audit Committee constituted by and reporting to the Board is mandated to ascertain that the
internal control systems are adequate and effective. Internal controls and risk management policies are designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of the PSX's operations, reliability of
financial information and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Management considers that the
existing Internal Control and Risk Management System is adequate and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

Environmental Impact
The business of Exchange has no material negative impact on the environment.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Pakistan Stock Exchange, being a national institution and a responsible corporate citizen, strongly realizes its duty
towards society. In view of this, the Exchange has a defined policy with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR), whereby, an amount equivalent to 2% of the net profit before tax may be utilized for such activities.

In CSR activities, PSX fulfilled its commitments by collaborating with institutions such as Indus Hospital, IBA, the
Patients’ Behbud Society AKUH, Lady Dufferin Hospital, Bait-ul-Sakoon, and FESF Deaf Reach and etc. The aim of
PSX's CSR program is to primarily support initiatives in the fields of education, healthcare and social welfare,
thereby contributing to the well-being and development of society.

Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholding of PSX is annexed in the Annual Report.
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Categories of Shareholding
The categories of shareholding are annexed in the Annual Report.
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support and guidance to the Exchange throughout the year.

The Board would also like to thank all the Directors for their guidance and support, and appreciates the contribution
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

o b

DR. SHAMSHAD AKHTAR FARRUKH H. SABZWARI
Chairperson Chief Executive Officer
Karachi

Dated: September 15, 2025
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Board of Directors — Attendance at Meetings ANNEXURE I
Meetings entitled Meetings attended
Name ofBirector From July 01, 2024 to June 30, 2025
Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson) 11 10
Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari (CEO) [1] 4 4
Mr. Adnan Asad 11 10
Mr. Nihal Cassim 11 9
Mr. FU Chaoqing 11 9
Mr. Ahmed Chinoy, H.L, S.I 11 11
Mr. You Hang 11 10
Dr. FU Hao 11 8
Ms. Gu Junmei 11 8
Mr. Ruhail Muhammad 11 10
Mr. Nadeem Naqvi [2] 11 1
Mr. Farrukh H. Khan (Former CEO) [3] 3 3

[1] Appointed as the CEO with effect November 18, 2024.
[2] Served as the Acting CEO from September 3, 2024 to November 17, 2024, and attended 4 meetings during

such period.
[3] Resigned as CEO with effect September 2, 2024.

Leaves of absence were granted to the Directors who could not attend some of the Board meetings.
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ANNEXURE II

Regulatory Affairs Committee

Name of Committee Member Meetings Entitled Meetings Attended
From July 01, 2024 to June 30, 2025

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)
Mr. Adnan Asad

Mr. Nadeem Naqgvi

Mr. Nihal Cassim (1]

[1] Served as member during Mr. Nagvi's tenure as Acting CEO.

Audit Committee

Name of Committee Member Meetings Entitled Meetings Attended

From July 01, 2024 to June 30, 2025

Mr. Ruhail Muhammad (Chairman) 5 5
Mr. Ahmed Chinoy, H.I, S.IL
Mr. Nadeem Naqvi

Mr. You Hang (1]

= N W],
1N W),

[1] Served as member during Mr. Naqvi's tenure as Acting CEO.

Human Resources & Remuneration Committee

Meetings Entitled Meetings Attended
From July 01, 2024 to April 19, 2025

Name of Committee Member

Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)
Mr. Adnan Asad

Mr. Nihal Cassim

Mr. FU Chaoging

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy, H.I, S.I.

Mr. You Hang

Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari

Mr. Nadeem Nagvi [1]

SNSRI N N N N NN
NN N N N N NN

[1] Served as member during his tenure as Acting CEO.
Notes:

e Leaves of absence were granted to the committee members, who could not attend the meeting.
e No meeting of the Nomination Committee was held during the financial year.
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Review Report on Statement of Compliance
Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

&Y GrantThornton

Independent Audivors® Beview Repon Brant Tharmbon &njum
To the membens of Pakistan Siock Exchange Limined 1516 Sedl P,
Wapaairh Mgl oy Mouss,
Bostnarrcrk R,
Review Report on the Stasement of Compliance contained in TRy
Listed Companics {Code of Corporate Governance) P
Regulations, 2019 Teit-Bo

We have oeviowed the enclosed Smtement of Complisnce wah the Lissed Coonpanies (Code of
Coeporare Ceovernance) Regulanons, 3N 9 fibe Bagalasions) prepared by the Board of Denccrors
ol Pakistan Stk Exchange Limited for the year ended June 30, 3025 in secontance wath che
resquiremencs of regalstion M of tse Regularions.

The responsbilicy for compliance with the Regulasons is that of the Board of Daectors of the
Compary. Our responsibday is 1o noview whether the Smtement of Compliance refec the stans
of the Company’s complance with she previsions of the Regulations and report if & doss ot and
b highlsght an¥ non-complance wrth the requirements of the Regulanoss. A ecview is Emaed
premanly oo msuinies af the Compenr’s personnd mnd neview: of vanos documends prepared by
the Coenpany 10 comply wabh the Regulations.

As 2 parr of our audis of the financal sawments we are required 1o sbam an understandsng of the
sccounting and internal conmol systems sufficsent 1o plan the sudit and develop sn effecive sudn
sppeaach, We are not requesed 1o canasder whether the Board of Dirccoon” staremeat oa inicenal
comtrol eovers all sisks and conmals ar to form sn opinion on the elfecivensss of such inicmal

codroils, duCuqu:-lﬂ.g"l ompm:m'nrtmpmuh.ru wrvill Fiaks.

The Regulaooms requise the Compant o plice before the Auids Comsmisee, and wpon
eecommendamon of the Sudie Communee, 'plﬂ:n: before the Bpard of Direcoes (o thar review
and approval, s related party tranascnom, We am onby required and have ensared compliance of
this regrurement oo the extent of the approval of the relsed pary cansscoons by the Boasd of
Disecson upsn recommendation of the Audin Comenigies.

Based on our review, nothing has come 1o our anenmon which causes = 1o bebieve than the
Sraement of Compliance does not sppropriately reflect the Company’s compliance, m all materal

S b Ty
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respects, with the requinemenis contmined in the Repulstons as applicable 1o dee Company for the
vear ended June 33, 325

o e Ty el H“ A
Chemered Aocounsenes

Kamcha

Draves Sepembser 26, 2025

LIDIN: CR2025101 S4wohi31 Mg
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

For the year ended June 30, 2025

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (the Exchange) has complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies
(Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) in the following manner:

1

142

The Board of Directors of the Exchange (the Board) consisted of eleven (11) directors as on June 30, 2025, as
per the following categories:

Category Number of Directors
Male Directors 09
Female Directors 02

The composition of the Board as on June 30, 2025, was as follows:

Category Names
Independent Directors (i)  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)
(i)  Mr. Adnan Asad
(iii) Mr. Ruhail Muhammad
Other Non-Executive /
Shareholder Directors i) Mr. Nihal Cassim
il . Fu Chaoqging
ii) Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

(
(
(i
(i .You Hang
(
(
(

£

=
<
=

v) Dr. FU Hao
vi)  Ms. Gu Junmei
vii) Mr. Nadeem Nagvi

Executive Director (i)  Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari (Chief Executive Officer)
Note: The female directors include Dr. Shamshad Akhtar and Ms. Gu Junmei.

The best practices of corporate governance entail having an optimal number and mix of Board members with
core competencies, adequate skills and experience; and the current Board of the Exchange adequately meets
the requirements. The fraction (2:3) was not rounded up for appointment of independent directors, to reflect
true representation of the shareholders on the Board by having seven (7) shareholder directors, and three (3)
independent directors, thereby keeping an overall size of the Board at 10 directors, excluding Chief Executive
Officer of the Exchange.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven (7) listed
companies, including the Exchange;

The Exchange has prepared a ‘Code of Conduct’ and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to
disseminate it throughout the Exchange along with its supporting policies and procedures;

The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the
Exchange. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the significant policies along with their
date of approval or updating is maintained by the Exchange;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by
Board/Shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Companies Act)
and the Regulations;
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7. All meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson, except for a meeting, where in her absence,
the Chairman was elected by the Board. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Companies Act
and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board;

8. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors, in
accordance with the Companies Act and the Regulations;

9. As at the end of financial year, 7 out of 11 directors are already in possession of the prescribed certification
under Directors’ Training Program (DTP). Nevertheless, the remaining directors are encouraged to obtain the
said certification;

10. The Board approves the appointment, remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), the Head of Internal Audit, and the Company Secretary, in compliance with relevant
requirements of the Regulations. During the financial year, whereas there was no new appointment of the
Company Secretary, the Board approved the appointment of the Acting CFO, and the Acting Head of Internal
Audit;

11. The CFO and the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the
Board;

12. Pursuant to the provisions of the Regulations, the Board formed committees comprising of members given
below, as on June 30, 2025:

Name of Committee Composition

Audit Committee (i) Mr. Ruhail Muhammad (Chairman)
(i)  Mr. Ahmed Chinoy (Member)
(iii) Mr. Nadeem Naqvi (Member)
Human Resources and
Remuneration Committee i) Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)
ii) Mr. Adnan Asad (Member)
iii) Mr. Nihal Cassim (Member)

(
(
(
(iv) Mr. Fu Chaoging (Member)
(
(
(

=

v) Mr. Ahmed Chinoy (Member)

vi) Mr. You Hang (Member)
vil) Mr. Farrukh H. Sabzwari (Member)

=

Nomination Committee (i)  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)
(i)  Mr. Nihal Cassim (Member)
(iii) Mr. You Hang (Member)
(

iv) Mr. Ruhail Muhammad (Member)
In addition to above, the Board has formed the Regulatory Affairs Committee as required under the Securities
Exchanges (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016, the composition of which, as at the end of financial
year, was as follows:
Name of Committee Composition
Regulatory Affairs Committee (i)  Dr. Shamshad Akhtar (Chairperson)

(i)  Mr. Adnan Asad (Member)

(iii) Mr. Nadeem Naqvi (Member)

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the
committees for compliance;
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14. The frequency of meetings of the committees held during the financial year, were as follows:
Name of Committee Number of Meetings

Audit Committee

Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee

Regulatory Affairs Committee

N Ao

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function consisting of suitably qualified and experienced
personnel. The internal auditors are conversant with policies and procedures of the Exchange.

16. The statutory auditors of the Exchange have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under
the quality control review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) and registered
with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP and that they and the
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and
non-dependent children) of the CEO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directors of the
Exchange;

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services
except in accordance with the Companies Act, the Regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the
auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard; and

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations have been
complied with.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

W m »J*w}f

DR. SHAMSHAD AKHTAR FARRUKH H. SABZWARI
Chairperson of the Board Chief Executive Officer
Karachi

Dated: September 15, 2025

144]



THIS PAGE IS LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK




Pakistan Stock Exchange Annual Report 2025

INTENTIONS

™

® Peak: Tirich Mir Latitude: 36.2550° N Longitude: 71.8408%°E

146 147




Pakistan Stock Exchange Annual Report 2025

UNCONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL '
STATEMENTS - 5.

® Peak: Ultar Sar Latitude: 36.398° N Longitude: 74.709° E

148 149




Pakistan Stock Exchange

Independent Auditor’'s Report on the
Unconsolidated Financial Statements

& GrantThornton

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT SO DL —
To the members of Pakistan Siock Exchange Limited  tar 520 Fuce,
Madtirn Maltis Heda,
Bauimnins Baod,

Report on the Audit of the Unconsolidared Financial Suatements 0 o

T =07 29 JRAT29E1-55
Chpinian

We hove wmalived the anneaed uncorsolideed Eeamcial smement of Pakistn Stock
Exchange Linsited (e Compang|, which coenpeise the uncorsolidated starement af finencisl
Memetiors an 4t Juse %1, 2025 and rhe unconsolidaved smeemesn of peofll o ke, the
imcsHesihdaod staremea 1|-1"|:l\.|l'l.'fr|1.'|1|,'||u-¢'|; wwnavs, (b wnoonschdsded s meneso 1-t'q_'|'|.,.|qﬂ,1.
gty e usstonsolice bod ssiscmend of cash Moos fi the vesr dloen cnded, st st 10 the
unconsolidsied financisl sutemenis, sehedmg o wmmary of maeral sooosnting pedicies and
otler explanasocy infoemation, sl we state that we have abeained sl e sfnemasion and

explananoms which, s the bedr of our knesledie and belicl, wor nocosany for the pusposes
il the wulie

Ien coar openion and 1o the beit of owr infermition and scording 1o te explansrioes 1
i, the uncondadidsicd statemnent of fnancsl posines, the unecanslidaned mlmttﬂf;-ﬁﬁl
e baa, the unconaslslised stitoment of compechensave ineome, the urseaialidsied stxement
al changes in eopainy and tha unconeatidared susement of eah Bews ogether with the nodce
Toarung pant thered confosm with the aceountng and reporting stndapds & applizable in
Pubasren wod give Sie snfaene nen reguired by the Conngrras et 2007 (X1X of 2007, in the
Famner s nequicd ared respectvely gve o rue and ke view of the watc of the Campany’s
affuis an 3 Jang M1, 2005 sel of the profif el osher compeehensive boss, the chasges in egumy
and s cash Boeas for the pear them emded

Basis far {Mpnion

We conducoed our sudit n stcordence with Intesnancnal Smadards on Ausng (15A5) &
appleible in Palomn. Ous respenaibilicies. under those sandards are farther desceibed = the
Awaier s Repwariilive for the Audit ot U nimsindiiad Fisunsa Suicmcan wotica of ous ropaon

W wre uhependent of the Company in accordance with the Imernanoral Brhics Snndusds
Deoand for Accouniann® Cade of it for Profiioees’ - lusmsimiy a3 sdopied by the bnitisuie of
Chemoed  Agooumianis of Palkisan (the Code] and we bave fwiilled our other ethogal
eespeminilabieie in acesrdinee wath the Ceale. We beligve that the auds evidence we havr
otvained s safficient and sppropmane s provide o basis o our agduin

Ky Auwdit Matters
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ipalicenes in ous audsy of the encaniakidated Gnancal statermenis of tha fwment period. These
matrers weie sddeessed in the eomenn ol our suilin of the uneensolidired finineial sisioments
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Unconsolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Long term investments
Long term deposits
Long term loans

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts

Loans and advances
Prepayments

Other receivables

Short term investments
Taxation — net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorized capital

Share capital
Reserves
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment - net

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dara F. Dastoor scholarship fund
Long term deposits

Long term payable

Deferred tax liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Note

O O N O

11
12

13
14

15

16

16

18
19
20

19
21

22

2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----

4,167,016 4,284,524
1,043,912 1,127,027
649,876 596,086
5,262,684 4,377,324
41,832 41,832
13,151 17,940
11,178,471 10,444,733
225,798 448,628
63,914 68,867
29,937 27,824
101,118 95,915
2,398,745 2,224,310
538,345 680,580
464,595 198,220
3,822,452 3,744,344
15,000,923 14,189,077

1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000

8,014,766 8,014,766
3,192,816 2,523,618
871,330 900,796
12,078,912 11,439,180
2,005 2,005
548,086 469,981
76,921 36,851
627,012 508,837
2,871 1,429
160,598 157,601
2,131,530 2,082,030
2,294,999 2,241,060
15,000,923 14,189,077

Chairperson
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Unconsolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
Revenue e (Rupees in '000) -----
Listing fee 23 764,313 762,306
Income from exchange operations 24 1,422,032 || 1,015,650
Mark-up / interest income 25 195,861 268,093
Rental income from investment property 79,230 70,571

2,461,436 2,116,620

Operating cost

Administrative expenses 26 (2,060,801) (2,003,775)
Operating profit 400,635 112,845
Other income 27 119,809 53,222
Share of profit from associates 918&92| 1,407,754 943,683
1,527,563 996,905
Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential and final tax 1,928,198 1,109,750
Minimum tax differential (2,047) (58,546)
Final taxes (227,969) (5,123)
(230,016) (63,669)
Profit before income tax 1,698,182 1,046,081
Income tax
- Current 28 (182,736) (42,210)
- Deffered 5,462 23,932

(177,274) (18,278)

Net profit after taxation 1,520,908 1,027,803

Basic and diluted earnings per share 29 190 1.28

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Pakistan Stock Exchange

Unconsolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Net profit after taxation

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Items not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent years:

Actuarial loss on employees’ gratuity fund
- Company
- Associates

Tax effect on actuarial loss on employees’ gratuity fund

- Company
- Associates

Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment at FVOCI
- Effect of deffered tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

2025

2024

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

1,520,908 1,027,803
(153,992) (59,327)
(1,331) (16,038)
(155,323) (75,365)
(22,783) 19,578
1,421 4,256
(21,362) 23,834
(176,685) (51,531)
119,735 82,402
(22,749) (15,656)
96,986 66,746
1441209 1,043,018

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIERS 7~ (Rupees in ‘000) -----

Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential and final tax 1,928,198 1,109,750

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile income before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation in tangible assets 155,731 170,199
Amortisation on intangible assets 164,565 150,031
Provision for gratuity 80,268 65,636
Mark-up / interest income (195,861) || (268,093)
Foreign exchange gain (3,037) -
Allowance for ECL 25,300 15,460
Intangible write-off during the year - 5,565
Liabilities written back (91,506) -
Gain on revaluation of investment property (551) -
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - net (15,395) (10,794)
Share of profit of associates (1,407,754) || (943,683)
(1,288240)  (815,679)

639,958 294,071
Working capital adjustments:

Trade debts 197,530 (298,187)
Loans and advances 4,953 (10,772)
Prepayments (2,113) (4,525)
Other receivables (9,512) (6,201)
Trade and other payables (76,240) 284,053
114,618 (35,632)

Income tax paid (220,200) || (156,347)
Gratuity paid (82,327) (52,694)
Mark-up / interest received 221,612 256,570
Long term deposit- net 78,105 21,887
Long term loans 4,789 2,557
Long term payable = (239,999)
1979 (168,026

Net cash generated from operating activities 756,555 90,413
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Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES @7~ (Rupees in ‘000) -----

Capital expenditure (177,943) || (516,319)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 20,426 16,588
Dividend received 643,469 281,400
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,968,304 || 6,431,351
Investments purchased (3,160,472) | |(6,462,493)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 293784  (249,473)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (783,964) -
Net cash used in financing activities (783,964) -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 266,375  (159,060)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 198,220 357,280
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 464,595 198,220

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Revenue Capital
Reserves Capital Reserves Reserves
Share Un- Revaluation Share of Total Revaluation Total
Capital appropriated surpluson associates surplus on
profit investments property and
at FVOCI equipment

(Rupees in '000) -- -

Balance as at July 01, 2023 8,014,766 1,494,486 28,900 (74,852) 1,448,534 932,862 10,396,162
Net profit for the year - 1,027,803 - - 1,027,803 - 1,027,803
Other comprehensive (loss) / income - (39,749) 66,746 (11,782) 15,215 - 15,215
Total comprehensive income for the year - 988,054 66,746 (11,782) 1,043,018 - 1,043,018

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property and

equipment incremental depreciation - net of tax - 32,066 - - 32,066 (32,066) -

Balance as at June 30, 2024 8,014,766 2,514,606 95,646 (86,634) 2,523,618 900,796 11,439,180
Balance as at July 01, 2024 8,014,766 2,514,606 95,646 (86,634) 2,523,618 900,796 11,439,180
Net profit for the year = 1,520,908 = = 1,520,908 = 1,520,908
Other comprehensive (loss) / income = (176,775) 96,986 90 (79,699) = (79,699)
Total comprehensive income for the year = 1,344,133 96,986 90 1,441,209 = 1,441,209

Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024
@ Re. 1 per share = (801,477) = = (801,477) = (801,477)

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property and
equipment incremental depreciation - net of tax = 29,466 = = 29,466 (29,466) =

Balance as at June 30, 2025 8,014,766 3,086,728 192,632 (86,544) 3,192,816 871,330 12,078,912

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

11

12

162

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited [the Company or PSX] was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1913
(now Companies Act, 2017) on March 10, 1949 as a Company Limited by Guarantee. However, on August 27,
2012 the Company was re-registered as public company limited by shares under the Stock Exchanges
(Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration) Act 2012 (XV of 2012). The Company is listed on PSX with
effect from June 29, 2017.

The Company is engaged in conducting, regulating and controlling the trade or business of buying, selling and
dealing in shares, scripts, participation term certificates, modaraba certificates, stocks, bonds, debentures stock,
government papers, loans, and any other instruments and securities of like nature including, but not limited to,
special national fund bonds, bearer national fund bonds, foreign exchange bearer certificates and documents of
similar nature, issued by the Govermment of Pakistan or any other agency authorized by the Government of
Pakistan.

The registered office of the Company is situated at Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi. Area
of land belongs to the Company is 9,408 Sq. yards out of which occupied space by the buildings are 4,050 Sq.
yards and open area is 5,358 Sq. yards.

Shareholders of the Company include the following foreign shareholders:

China Financial Futures Exchange Company Limited

Legal Status Limited by Shares

Owners CFFEX was setup jointly by Shanghai Futures Exchange, Zhengzhou
Commodity Exchange, Dalian Commodity Exchange, Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange, each accounting for 20% of
total shares.

Chief Executive Officer Mr. Zhang Xiaogang

Shanghai Stock Exchange limited

Legal Status Non-profit organization directly governed by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Owners Membership-based exchange

Chief Executive Officer Mr. CAl Jianchun

Shenzhen Stock Exchange Limited

Legal Status Non-profit organization directly governed by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Owners Membership-based exchange

Chief Executive Officer Mr. Li Jizun

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan
comprise of:

- Intermational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Intermational Accounting
Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
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2.2

4.2

4.3

These are the separate financial statements of the Company in which investment in associates are carried at
equity accounting less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
mentioned in note 5.

These unconsolidated financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Company's annual accounting period which began on 1 July 2024. However, these do not
have any significant impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements except as disclosed in note
8 to these unconsolidated financial statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Company:

Effective date
(annual reporting periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 1-Jan-25
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) 1-Jan-26
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and

Measurement (Amendments) 1-Jan-26
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1-Jan-26

Annual improvements to IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 (Consolidated
Financial Statements) and IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) 1-Jan-26

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have
any material impact on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, Intermational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at 30 June 2025;

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
[FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
unconsolidated financial statements except as mentioned in note 5.1 below.
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5.2

5.3

54
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Operating fixed assets

Leasehold land is carried at revalued amount less subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Buildings on
leasehold land and lift, generators and electric installation are carried at revalued amount, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All other fixed assets are carried at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the diminishing balance method over the
estimated useful life of respective assets, except for "Computers and related accessories” which are depreciated
using straight-line method. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end.

In respect of additions and disposals of assets, depreciation is charged from the month in which asset is available
to use and continue depreciating it until it is derecognized i.e. up to the month preceding the disposal, even if
during that period the asset is idle. Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of
asset, expected physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the
use of assets and other similar factors.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gains and losses on disposal of
assets, if any, are included in statement of profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of expenditure
incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and intangible assets in the course of their construction and
installation.

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

Surplus on revaluation is recognized in other comprehensive income as surplus on revaluation of property and
equipment which is presented as separate component within equity. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value.

Cost / revalued amount at the date of the revaluation is adjusted / eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. To the extent of the incremental
depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
(net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained eamings.

If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognized in statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. If an asset's
carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. However, the decrease is recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of
any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of
revaluation surplus. However, the increase is recognized in the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it
reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The
revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to Company's shareholders.

Intangible assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization
is charged to income using the straight-line method.
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Gains or losses on disposal of intangible assets, if any, are included in income currently.

Investment property

Investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gain or loss on
remeasurement of investment property at fair value is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Fair value is
evaluated annually by an independent professional valuer. Investment property is derecognized when either it
has been disposed off or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income
in the period of derecognition.

Investment in subsidiary companies

Investment in subsidiary companies is initially recognized and carried at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts
of investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment
losses subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable
amounts but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Company has significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Company holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognize the Company's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and
the Company's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive
income. Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Company's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the
entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognize further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee company.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Company's and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the company’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Company.

When the Company ceases to equity account for an investment because of a loss of joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent
accounting for the retained interest as a financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Company had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial Instruments

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, loans and advances, are initially recognized
on the trade date, ie, the date that the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.
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All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

Classification and subsequent measurement
The Company classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition into the categories of
financial assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

Financial assets
The Company classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or measured at Fair
Value Through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI) on the basis of both:

- The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

-  Debt instruments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair
value recognized in OCL. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or
loss. On de-recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from OCI
to profit or loss. Debt instruments are subject to impairment under Expected Credit Loss model. The ECLs
for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the
statement of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that
would arise if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in OCI as an accumulated
impairment amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognized in OCI
is recycled to the profit and loss upon de-recognition of the assets.

- Equity instruments at FVOCI
Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The Company's policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI
when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment retumns. Such
classification is determined on an instrument by instrument basis.

- Financial assets at amortized cost
A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment under Expected Credit Loss model.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities of the Company are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest
method.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Company has
transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Company has:

(@) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has
retained.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled
or expired.

Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowances for trade debts and other receivables are always measured applying simplified approach at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

The Company uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on trade receivables, based
on days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterms. Receivables are grouped based on their
nature.

The default rates are benchmarked and adjusted for forward looking information and the rates in provision
matrix are based on days past due for various customer segments that have similar loss patterns. The provision
matrix is initially based on the Company's historical observed default rates which is then adjusted for forward
looking information.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position of the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to
settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Loans, advances and deposits
These are stated at cost, less allowance for any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash in hand and at bank and short term investments that are highly liquid in nature and are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Revenue recognition

- The Company recognizes revenue from initial listing and further issues over a period the Company
discharges its performance obligation in relation to listing services. The Company recognizes revenue from
annual listing fee on a straight-line basis over the period to which the fee relates, as this reflects the extent
of the Company's progress towards completion of the performance obligation under the contract.

- Income pertaining to trading by members is recognized at the trade date to which the transaction pertains
when the obligation to provide trading services has been fulfilled.
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5.14
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- Income pertaining to non-trading fee and facilities and equipment services are recognized over the period
of use as PSX meets its obligation to provide services, which are provided both at a point in time and over a
period of time.

- Income from regulatory fee is recognized on accrual basis.

- Income from membership fee is recognized over a period of twelve months on straight line basis.
- Rental income is recognized over a period of twelve months on straight line basis.

- Return on investments and bank balances is recognized on time proportionate basis.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account all
tax credits and tax rebates available, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is compared with turnover tax
under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and whichever is higher is provided for in the
unconsolidated financial statements.

Minimum tax

The Company has elected to designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the enacted tax rate as
an income tax within the scope of IAS 12 Tncome Taxes' and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any
excess over the amount designated as income tax, will then be recognized as a levy falling under the scope of
[FRIC 21/ IAS 37.

Final tax
As computation of final taxes under provisions of ITO, 2001 is not based on taxable income, therefore, final taxes
fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 and not income tax in the statement of profit or loss.

The numerical reconciliation is not provided as the tax charge of the Company comprise of minimum and final
tax under the relevant sections of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which these can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the
statement of financial position date.

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an approved gratuity fund (defined benefit plan) for all its permanent employees who
attain the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. The Company's costs and contributions are
determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at each year end using Projected Unit Credit Actuarial
Method. All actuarial gains and losses are recognized in ‘other comprehensive income’ as they occur and are
not reclassified to statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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Impairment

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss
account.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rates approximating those ruling on
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on translation are
taken to income currently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of unconsolidated financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making
judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the unconsolidated financial statements are in
respect of the following:

Notes
- Determination of useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets 51,52 53,54, 6 and 7

- Classification and valuation of investments 56,57, 8 and 9
- Valuation of investment property 8

- Provisions and contingencies 5.11 and 22

- Impairment of financial assets (ECL) 584

- Provision for taxation and deferred tax 513

- Provision for gratuity 5.14

- Revenue recognition 5.12

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets - tangible
Capital work-in-progress

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

6.1 4,166,643 4,284,095
373 429

4,167,016 4,284,524
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6.14 Fair value measurements under revaluation model for property, plant and equipment

The fair value measurements of the Leasehold land, buildings and machinery was last done as at June 30, 2022 and
were performed by Nanjee & Co. (Pvt) LTD, who are independent valuers. The fair value of the land was determined
based on enquiry from Estate Agents and Brokers, the current market value as a land-mark property based on plots of
a similar size. The fair value of the buildings was determined in accordance with the commercial rates for sale of office
space prevailing in the market for these buildings. The area on long lease to Members and non-members has been
deducted from the total area, to arrive at the net area in Company’s possession. The common areas such as Corridors,
Lobby, etc. have been proportionately allocated to members and the Company on the total covered area.

The fair value of the Lift, generators and electric installations was determined by enquiring their present replacement
cost from the suppliers/ fabricators keeping in view the Make, Model Capacity and specifications. The suitable
depreciation is applied to arrive at the present assessed value. A slight increase in the depreciation factor would result
in a significant decrease in the fair values of buildings and leasehold improvements, and a slight increase in the
estimated construction costs would result in a significant increase in the fair value of the buildings and vice versa.
There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
7 INTANGIBLEASSETS e (Rupees in '000) -----
Operating intangibles 7.1 939,529 990,001
Intangibles under development (CWIP) 7.2 104,383 137,026

1043912 1127,027

7.1 Operating intangibles
June 30, 2025

WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
July 01, Additions/ June 30, July 01, Charge for June 30, June 30,
2024 Transfers 2025 Rate 2024 the year 2025 2025
------------ (Rupees in '000) ----==------ % --=------------ (Rupees in '000) -----==---==---
Computer software 1,178,307 16,510 1,194,817 10-25 508,971 97,645 606,616 588,201
Internally developed software
and market products 759,973 97,583 857,556 25 439,308 66,920 506,228 351,328
1,938,280 114,093 2,052,373 948,279 164,565 1,112,844 939,529
June 30, 2024
WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
July 01, Additions/ June 30, July 01, Charge for June 30, June 30,
2023 Transfers 2024 Rate 2023 the year 2024 2024
------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------ % --=------------ (Rupees in '000) ------=---==---
Computer software 965,821 212,486 1,178,307 10-25 422,107 86,864 508,971 669,336
Internally developed software
and market products 709,924 50,049 759,973 25 376,141 63,167 439,308 320,665
1,675,745 262,535 1,938,280 798,248 150,031 948,279 990,001
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7.2

Intangible assets include both externally acquired and internally developed software used to support the Company’s
capital market operations and services provided to Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) holders, brokers, and
investors.

Computer software mainly include the New Trading & Surveillance System (NTS), a comprehensive trading and
surveillance platform procured for capital market trading activities.

Major internally developed software and market products include the following software systems and platforms
developed and maintained by the Company:

- Jade Trading Terminal (JTT): A trading platform designed to facilitate transactions for traders and
stockbrokers.

- Karachi Internet Trading System (KiTS): An online trading platform enabling brokers and investors to access
and execute trades via the intemet.

- Government Debt Securities (GDS) Module: A system that provides trading functionality for government
securities to TREC holders and investors.

- Pakistan Unified Corporate Action Reporting System (PUCAR): A centralized system for the dissemination of
corporate announcements.

- Electronic Initial Public Offering System (eIPO): Web based platform for the subscription of securities offered
to the general public.

- Book Building Platform (Debt & Equity): A platform developed to discover price during IPO process.

- Unlisted Companies Financials Portal: Platform developed for un-listed companies for the disclosure of
financial information in the public interest, with a key focus on investor protection.

- Public Offerings Revolutionized through an Integrated & Digitized Experience (PRIDE): Platform offered to
CTIs to facilitative public offerings.

- Risk Management Gateway (RMG): Gateway offered to TRECHs for risk management.

- Trec Holders Information Management System (THIMS): MIS offered to TRECHS.

- TRECH & Trading Operations System (ITOS): Platform offered to PSX business teams for TRECHs and
Trading operations.

These internally developed softwares are periodically upgraded to enhance functionality and maintain compliance
with regulatory requirements. The costs incurred in connection with such upgrades are capitalized as internally
generated intangible assets.

Cost of fully amortized assets amounts to Rs.774.487 (2024: Rs. 751.383) million.
June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
Intangibles under development (CWIP)  emee- (Rupees in '000) -----
Opening balance 137,026 19,116
Additions during the year 67,623 221,997
Transfer to operating intangibles (100,266) (98,522)
CWIP write off (5,565)

104,383 137,026
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June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY  emeee (Rupees in '000) -----
Carrying amount as at July 1, 2025 596,086 581,733
Net gain from Fair Value Adjustment 551 4,013
Transfer from Owned Property 53,239 10,340
Carrying Amount as at June 30, 2025 8.1 649,876 596,086
8.1 This represents office spaces in PSX's building, the latest fair value of this property was carried out by Igbal A.

Nanjee & Company (Private) Limited, independent valuer as at June 30, 2025. The forced sales value of the
property as at 30 June 2025 is Rs. 519.901 million.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
9 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS )
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Subsidiary 9.1 1 1
Associate 9.2 4,948,383 4,182,758
FVOCI 93 314,300 194,565
5,262,684 4377324
9.1 Investment in subsidiary

PSX Financial Centre (Private) Limited
100 shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each 1 1

9.2 Investment in Associates

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
139,328,000 shares having face value of Rs. 10/ each 921 3,201,238 2,766,410

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
50,131,809 shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each 921 1,649,649 1,328,661

EClear Services Limited 921 97,496 87,687
7,500,000 shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each

4,948,383 4,182,758
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9.2.2

Reconciliation of changes in carrying value of investment in associate

Opening balance

Share of profit for the year

Actuarial gain / (loss) on employees' gratuity fund
Dividend received during the year

Closing balance

Opening balance

Share of profit for the year

Actuarial gain / (loss) on employees’ gratuity fund
Dividend received during the year

Closing balance

June 30, 2025

Annual Report 2025

CDC NCCPL E-Clear Total
Services
--------------- (Rupees in '000) -----========-=
2,766,410 1,328,661 87,687 4,182,758
766,044 631,901 9,809 1,407,754
5,958 (5,868) = 90
(337,174) (305,045) - (642,219)
3,201,238 1,649,649 97,496 4,948,383
June 30, 2024
CDC NCCPL E-Clear Total
Services
--------------- (Rupees in '000) -----=-======-=
2,357,362 1,096,443 78,452 3,532,257
620,660 313,788 9,235 943,683
(4,807) (6,976) - (11,783)
(206,805) (74,594) - (281,399)
2,766,410 1,328,661 87,687 4,182,758

As of June 30, 2025, the carrying value of Company's investment in NCCPL amounts to Rs. 1,650 million against
the break up value of Rs. 1,627 million. However, in accordance with its accounting policy, the Company has
assessed the recoverable amount of investment in NCCPL using the income approach and determined that the
recoverable amount is higher than its carrying value. Accordingly, no impairment is required in this respect.
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9.2.3 Summarised financial information of the associates of the Company are as follows:

June 30, 2025
Name of associate Country of Total Total Interest
incorporation assets liabilities Profit Revenue held %

CDC Pakistan 10,537,547 1,826,022 1,924,249 4,611,443 39.81
Break-up value of each ordinary share

of Rs.10 is Rs.24.89 based on the

audited financial statements available

for the year ended June 30,2025.

NCCPL Pakistan 77,189,308 73,916,465 1,271,174 3,483,408 4971
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs 32.45 based on

the audited financial statements for

the year ended June 30, 2025.

E-Clear Services Pakistan 2,950,191 2,571,658 39,235 114,006 25.00
Break-up value of each ordinary share
of Rs.10 is Rs 12.62 based on the draft
financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2025. 90,677,046 78,314,145 3,234,658 8,208,857
June 30, 2024
Name of associate Country of Total Total Interest
incorporation assets liabilities Profit Revenue held %

CDC

Break-up value of each ordinary
share of Rs.10 is Rs.21.77 based on
the financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2024.

Pakistan 9,117,645 1,498,336 1,559,056 3,131,348 39.81

NCCPL Pakistan 27538324 24,925,184 631,238 2,207,048 4971
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs 25.91 based on
the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

E-Clear Pakistan 1,601,566 1,255,762 36,940 51,324 25.00
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs 11.53 based on
the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

38,257,535 27,679,282 2,227,234 5,389,720
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9.3

9.3.1

10

10.1

11

At FVOCI- related parties June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited 27,769 26,741
250,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each, representing, 12.50% shareholding.

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 931 286,531 167,824
25,390,798 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each, representing 28.41%
(2024: 28.41%) shareholding.

314,300 194,565

As PMEX operates under close regulatory supervision, the Company believes that it cannot exercise significant
influence in the affairs of PMEX solely on the basis of shareholding / voting rights as investor in PMEX hence, the
investment is not accounted for as an associate investment.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
LONGTERMLOANS (Rupees in '000) -----
Employees - Considered good, secured 10.1 26,176 31,943
Current portion of long term loans to employees 12 (13,025) (14,003)

13,151 17,940

These personal loans are sanctioned for the purchase of motorcycles and other domestic purposes. These are
secured against the outstanding balances in the Employees’ Gratuity Fund. These are recoverable in monthly
instalments over a period, with original maturity between 3 and 5 years and are interest free. All outstanding long
term loans at the year end will mature within two to four years.

June 30, June 30,
TRADE DEBTS Note 2025 2024
Unsecured (Rupees in '000) -----
Considered good
Due from members 58,350 60,194
Due from companies
- Related party 7,854 10,364
- Others 68,197 351,846
Others 91,397 26,224
225,798 448,628
Considered doubtful
Due from companies 70,141 78,835
295,939 527,463
Allowance for ECL 111 (70,141) (78,835)

225,798 448,628
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June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024
111 Reconciliation of allowance for ECL

Opening balance 78,835 63,375
Provision for the year - net 26 25,300 15,460
Balances written off (33,994) -

Closing balance 70,141 78,835

The outstanding balances from related parties are disclosed in the related parties note 31 and outstanding
balances represents maximum amount outstanding at any time during the the year.

12 LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured, considered good
- Current portion of long term loans to employees 10 13,025 14,003

Advances, considered good

- Employees 50,516 54,052

- Suppliers 373 812
50,889 54,864
63,914 68,867

13 OTHER RECEIVABLES

Due from Non-members

- Related party 1,203 -

- Other 48,189 34,675
Due from an ex-member 13.1 6,574 6,574
Rent receivable 10,722 17,064
Others

- Related party 4,474 1,684

- Other 29,956 35,918

101,118 95,915

13.1 This represents amount due from an ex-member upon the cancellation of his membership and declaration as a
defaulter. As a result thereof, certain shares of the ex-member were taken over by the Company in order to
square up the ex-member's position and are held pending the outcome of a law suit brought against the
Company by him in the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The market value of these shares (including bonus
shares) as at June 30, 2025 amounted to Rs. 55.764 (2024: Rs. 55.274) million. Further, as disclosed in note 15.2,
bank balances include dividend/bank profit of Rs.19.403 and Rs.33.979 (2024: 17.827 and 28.660) million
respectively.

13.2  This includes receivable balance from PSX Financial Center (Private) Limited amounting to Rs. 0.401 million
(2024: Rs. 0.261) million.
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14

141

15

15.1

15.2

16

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

At amortised cost
Market Treasury Bills 141 2,398,745 2,224,310

These represent Market Treasury Bills having cost of Rs. 2,304.511 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,112.342) million and
interest accrued thereon of Rs. 94.234 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 111.698) million. The effective rate of return is 11.95%
(June 30, 2024: 19.98%) per annum. These will mature latest by June 24, 2026. These include Rs. 807.366 (June
30, 2024: Rs. 856.615) million from defaulter / expelled / suspended members and Rs. 519.644 (June 30, 2024: Rs.
438.693) million pertaining to base minimum capital.

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
----- (Rupees in '000) -----

With banks on:
Current accounts 159 157

PLS accounts in
foreign currency 140,735 33,355
local currency 1516152 323,617 164,651
464,352 198,006
In hand 84 57
15.2 464,595 198,220

Rate of return on PLS accounts varies from 8.00% to 19.00% (June 30, 2024: 20.50% to 20.75%) per annum.
However, the effective rate for the period is 12.86% (June 30, 2024: 20.57%).

These include the following balances:

Dividend / bank profit 13.1 53,382 46,487
Members basic deposits 30,339 41,268
Deposits against arbitration 2,598 2,478
Proceeds from divestments/ Membership card 21.2 178,256 38,943
Dara F. Dastoor scholarship fund 2,005 2,005
Unclaimed Dividend 2,871 1,429

269,451 132,610

SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2025 2024 2025 2024
------- (Number of Shares) ------- ----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Authorised capital
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each 10,000,000 10,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
801,476,600 801,476,600 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each- (other than cash) 8,014,766 8,014,766
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This includes shares issued against surplus on revaluation of the assets of the Company of Rs.3.288 million (net of tax)
in accordance with the requirements of Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration) Act 2012.
This treatment regarding the surplus has also been approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form of bonus
and right shares as and when declared by the Company. All shares carry one vote per share without restriction.

The Company's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to strengthen investor, creditor and market confidence and
to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors of the Company monitor the retum on capital,
which the Company defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board of Directors also
determines the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders, which is finally approved in annual general meeting of the
shareholders. There were no changes to the Company's approach to capital management during the year.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT -net ~ _____ (Rupees in ‘000) -~
Balance as of 01 July 2024 1175645 1,223,505

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
incremental depreciation charged thereon (43,979) (47,860)
1,131,666 1,175,645

Related deferred tax liability:

Opening balance (274,849) || (290,643)
Tax effect of incremental depreciation charged during the year on

related assets transferred to statement of profit or loss 14,513 15,794
Closing balance (260,336)  (274,849)
Balance as of 30 June 2025 871,330 900,796

Restriction on distribution:

The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the shareholders
in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS

Clearing house deposits from members 18.1 548,086 469,981

These include Rs. 535.526 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 457.421 million) cash deposit placed by TREC holders
against the Base Minimum Capital requirement with the Exchange in accordance with the Rule Book of PSX.

LONG TERM PAYABLE
Long term payable 19.1 160,598 157,601
Less: current portion of long term payable (160,598)  (157,601)

It represents USD 0.565 million (including tax) against the purchase of Trading and Surveillance System from
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (a related party).
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20.1

21

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY / (ASSET)

Taxable temporary differences arising from:
Accelerated tax depreciation

Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment property
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment at FVOCI
Investment in associates

Deductible temporary differences arising from:
Carry forward tax losses

Provisions

Unrealized exchange loss

Movement of deferred tax liability / (asset)
Opening balance

Charged to profit and loss

Charged to comprehensive income

Closing balance

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors - capital expenditure

Accrued expenses

Payable to Shenzhen Stock Exchange - related party

Dividend Payable

Payables to directors against board meeting fee

Deposits against arbitration

Provision for staff bonus

Fees and rent received in advance

Amount held against defaulter / expelled / suspended members
Interest payable on BMC deposits

Employees’ gratuity fund

Sales tax payable

SECP supervision / transaction fee

Capital Market Development Fund

RDA campaign

Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1% of total revenue
Others

June 30,
Note 2025

Annual Report 2025

June 30,
2024

356,715 386,133
102,187 102,005
45,026 22,277
55,427 46,258
559,355 556,673
(356,810) || (369,533)
(97,143) || (122,796)
(28,481) (27,493)
(482,434)  (519,822)
76,921 36,851
36,851 64,705
(5.462) (23,932)
45,532 (3,922)
76,921 36,851
47,011 102,483
293,763 350,078
= 55,345
211 32,887 17,074
13,591 11,885
2,598 2,478
68,995 156,358
56,653 35,889
212 985,622 895,558
213 18,629 25,976
214 470,288 318,356
10,343 9,593
46,272 31,750
55,812 -
2,868 14,956
1,108 3,993
25,090 50,258
2,131,530 2,082,030
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This include dividend with-held due to legal requirement amounting Rs. 30.248 million (2024: Rs. 15.374 million).

This represents amount obtained on disposal of membership cards and sale proceeds received from sale of 40%
divestment and 20% from public offering of PSX shares of defaulter / expelled / suspended members, from LSE
Financial Services Limited and ISE tower REIT Management Company Limited including profit accrued thereon,
deposited in a separate bank account amounting to Rs. 178.256 million to be utilized for the settlement of dues of the
defaulter members, including investors claim, if any. The remaining amount of Rs. 807.366 million is invested in
Market Treasury Bills.

This represents interest payable on amount deposited with the Company on account of Base Minimum Deposits by
TREC holders.

The companies offers a defined post-employment gratuity benefit to permanent management and
non-management employees. The gratuity fund is governed under the Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund,
Companies Act, 2017, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002. Responsibility for governance
of plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedule lie with Board of Trustees of the Fund. The

Company appoint the Trustees.
June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024
Principal actuarial assumptions
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations

are as follows:
------ (% Per annum) ------

Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
Increase in salaries 8.75% 9.75%
Expected return on plan assets 11.75% 14.75%
Demographic Assumptions SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05

Mortality rates
Rate of employee turnover

Heavy Heavy

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

Liability recognized in the statement of financial position:

Present value of obligations 529,287 383,574

Fair value of plan assets (58,999) (65,218)
470,288 318,356

Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss

Current service cost 34,152 21,832
Interest cost 55,717 55,367
Expected return on plan assets (9,601) (11,563)

80,268 65,636




21.4.4 Movement in the liability recognized in the statement of financial position:

21.4.5

Opening balance
Charge for the year

Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income

Contribution
Closing balance

Actual return on plan assets

June 30,
2025

Annual Report 2025

June 30,

2024

318,356 246,087
80,268 65,636
153,992 59,327
(82,328) (52,694)
470,288 318,356

13.12%

17.80%

21.4.5.1 The expected retum on plan assets was determined by considering the market expectations and depends upon the
assets portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the year, for returns over the entire life of the related obligation.

21.4.6

21.4.7

21.4.8

21.4.9

Movement of present value of defined benefit obligations

Opening balance

Current service cost
Interest cost

Total benefits paid
Actuarial loss on obligation
Closing balance

Movement of fair value of plan assets
Opening balance

Return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid by the fund

Actuarial (loss) / gain on assets

Closing balance

Remeasurements recognized in Other Comprehensive
(Income) / expense during the year

Actuarial loss on obligation

Actuarial loss on assets

Constituents of plan assets

Government securities
Cash and net current assets

June 30,
2025

June 30,

2024

383,574 311,053
34,152 21,832
55,717 55,367

(97,104) (51,342)

152,948 46,664

529,287 383,574
65,218 64,966

9,601 11,563
82,328 52,694

(97,104) (51,342)
(1,044) (12,663)
58,999 65,218

(152,948) (46,664)
(1,044) (12,663)
(153,992) (59,327)

Fair Value as at
June 30, 2025

Fair Value as at
June 30, 2024

(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in'000) %
56,844 96.35% 61,390 94.13%
2,155 3.65% 3,828 5.87%
58,999 100% 65,218 100%
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Historical information June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,
2025 2024 2023 2022 2021
Present value of defined ~ TTTTTTTTTTTmoTmmmemtoees (Rupees in '000) ---=-------==-n--mnoeoo
benefit obligation 529,287 383,574 311,053 271,584 273,051
Fair value of plan assets (58,999) (65,218) (64,966) (58,697) (63,742)
Funding surplus 470,288 318,356 246,087 212,887 209,309
Experience adjustment on
plan liabilities (152,948) (46,664) (41,517) 4,731 (42,811)
Experience adjustment on
plan assets (1,044) (12,663) 8,909 (6,218) 984
June 30, June 30,
21.4.10 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation 2025 2024

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)
between 2 and 5 years
between 6 and10 years
Beyond 10 years

21.4.11 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions:
Actuarial Liability

Discount Rate +0.5%
Discount Rate -0.5%
Long Term Salary Increases +0.5%
Long Term Salary Increases -0.5%

78,626 46,236
344,666 346,548
592,943 483,690

1,565,988 1,553,486
Present Percentage
value of change
Defined
Benefit
Obligation
(Rupees in '000)
516,224 -247%
542,972 2.59%
542,048 2.41%
517,002 -2.32%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability recognized within the unconsolidated

statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the

previous period

21.4.12 The Company expects to contribute Rs 97.281 million (2024: Rs 80.268 million) to the post-retirement approved

Employees Gratuity Fund in the next financial year.

21.4.13 Investments out of gratuity fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 to the Act and

the rules formulated for this purpose.

184|



Annual Report 2025

21.4.14 The defined benefit plan expose the company to following risks

22

22.1

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the
Company has assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase
proportionately.

Asset volatility - Assets are invested in risk free investments of 3 months - 1 years of Government Treasury Bills.

Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to
corporate bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be
partially offset by an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.

Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities.
This risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the
actuary.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

i)  During the years ended 2018 and 2019, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued show cause notices in respect of
tax years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2017 and 2018 claiming Sindh Sales Tax (SST) aggregating to Rs. 193 million along
with default surcharge. SRB served these notices on the understanding that the Company had
provided/rendered taxable services covered under tariff heading 9825.0000 and 98.13 of the Second
Schedule to the Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011 and therefore such services should be taxed and deposited
accordingly. The Company filed cases against the above notices, however, Sindh High Court dismissed the
petitions filed. The Company challenged the referred dismissal orders in the Supreme Court of Pakistan,
which are still pending.

i) During the year ended 1997, certain investors filed a suit against the Company and its ex-member for
declaration, injunction and recovery of damages, aggregating to Rs.70 million together with interest thereon.
The Company filed an appeal before the Sindh High Court against the suit, which is still pending.

ii) During the year ended 2008, the Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited filed a complaint with the
Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) against the Company alleging abuse of its dominant position in
securities market in contravention of Section 3 of the Competition Ordinance, 2007. The CCP directed the
Company to take corrective measures along with the other exchanges of Pakistan and in case of failure to
comply with the direction of the CCP, the Company will be liable to pay a penalty of Rs. 50 million and
additional penalty of Rs.250,000 per day for each day of non-compliance. The Company filed an appeal
before the Supreme Court of Pakistan against the CCP's order, which is still pending.

iv) During the year ended 2003, M/s. Shafi Chemical Industries (the Plaintiff) filed suit for declaration, injunction
and damages of about Rs. 1,700 million alleging unlawful and malafide acts of the Company and other
defendants in which a decree for only Rs. 49.77 million has been sought against the Company. The securities
deposited by the Plaintiff with his brokers were made worthless and they suffered losses. The written
statement prepared by Company's counsel on behalf of former directors and the Company filed in the Sindh
High Court. The case fixed for hearing of application is being adjourned from time to time on the request of
the Plaintiff's advocate.
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The total cumulative impact of contingencies stated in the above cases amounts to Rs 362.77 million. However,
the management, based on legal advisors opinions, believes that the Company has reasonable position in respect
of these litigations. Accordingly, no provision for any liability which may arise in this regard has been made in the
unconsolidated financial statements of the Company.

In addition, there are certain other cases relating to ex-member's default filed against other defendants and the
Company, wherein, the chances of decision going against the Company are remote.

With reference to the contingencies in associated companies,

- for Central Depository Company (CDC), refer note 13 of the consolidated financial statements of CDC for the
year ended June 30, 2025.

- for National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL), refer note 24 of the financial statements of
NCCPL for the year ended June 30, 2025.

- for Eclear Services Limited, there are no significant contingencies as of June 30, 2025.

June 30, June 30,
Commitments 2025 2024

IT maintenance charges 106,538 174,250
LISTING FEE

Annual fee 574,923 534,095
Initial listing fee 97,993 201,987
Sukuk auction fee 91,397 26,224

764,313 762,306

INCOME FROM EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

Trading fee 715,832 395,964
Facilities and equipment fee 285,257 234,693
Income from non-trading facilities 278,446 320,352
Regulatory fee 117,627 56,481
Membership fee 2,790 2,720
Other fee 22,080 5,440

1422,032 1,015,650

MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Government securities 173,172 234,461
PLS saving accounts 22,689 33,632
195,861 268,093
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June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
26 ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits 26.1 1,040,149 1,033,072
Rent, rates and taxes 19,526 19,701
Fuel and power 63,063 66,875
Repairs and maintenance 104,220 89,848
Computer maintenance and related expenses 204,935 235,606
Insurance 21,993 23,883
Printing and stationery 4,335 6,266
Donations 26.2 18,730 11,050
Auditors’ remuneration 26.3 5,842 3,958
Legal and professional charges 24,513 30,942
Depreciation 6.1 155,731 170,199
Amortization 7.1 164,565 150,031
Travelling and conveyance 22,102 10,640
General office expense 8,213 8,177
Receptions, meetings and functions 25,388 15,728
Contribution to CCPCF 0.1% 8,414 5,526
Contribution to CMDF 55,812 -

Advertisement, marketing and development 10,924 31,691
SECP supervision fee 21,863 17,780
Provision for trade debts considered doubtful 111 25,300 15,460
Security expenses 32,422 30,776
Subscription fee 11,680 20,247
Training and development 3,177 4,462
Other expenses 7,904 1,857

2,060,801 2,003,775

26.1  Included herein is a sum of Rs.80.268 (2024: Rs.65.636) million in respect of retirement benefits.

26.2  Donations are paid to Institute of Business Administration (IBA), Lady Dufferin Hospital, Bait-ul-Sukoon, FESF Deaf
Reach and etc. as per the policy approved by Board of Directors, in which none of the directors of the Company

is interested in any capacity.
June 30, June 30,

26.3  Auditors’' remuneration 2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----

Annual audit & consolidation 4,500 2,630
Half yearly review 700 500
Review of code of corporate governance 100 70
Other certifications 400 350
Out of pocket expenses 142 408

5,842 3,958
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June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

27 OTHER INCOME

Exchange Gain 3,037 23,027
Gain on revaluation of investment property 551 4,013
Gain on sale of fixed assets 15,395 10,794
Dividend income 1,250 1,600
Liabilities written back 91,506 -

Others 8,070 13,788

119,809 53,222

28 TAX RECONCILIATION

Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential and final tax 1,928,198 1,109,750
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate of 29% 559,177 321,828
Impact of super tax 95,020 1,785
Tax on bonus shares 16,482 -

Share of profit of equity-accounting investees taxed at reduced rate (311,916) (222,021)
Tax impact on foreign income 37,169 (88,424)
Impact of expense not deductible for tax (11,639) (9,517)
Tax under minimum tax regime u/s 153 = 58,486
Other adjustments 22,997 19,810

407,290 81,947

June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
29  BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PERSHARE == (Rupees in '000) -----
Net profit after taxation 1,520,908 1,027,803
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 801,476 801,476
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 190 1.28
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REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial Remuneration
Annual performance payout

Gratuity
Fees

Number (Note 30.2)

Managerial Remuneration
Annual performance payout

Gratuity
Fees

Number

June 30, 2025

Annual Report 2025

Chief
Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------==========--

64,463 = 549,854 614,317
3,699 = 40,468 44167

- - 40,237 40,237

- 21,700 - 21,700

68,162 21,700 630,559 720,421

3 10 125
June 30, 2024
Chief
Executive Directors Executives Total
Officer
------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------==========--

64,325 - 543,434 607,759
21,401 - 93,321 114,722

- - 39,138 39,138

- 13,925 - 13,925

85,726 13,925 675,893 775,544

10 124

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Company has also been provided with the free use of Company owned and

maintained car.

During the year, after resignation of CEO, the BoD appointed Shareholder Director as interim CEO from September 03,
2024 to November 17, 2024 with the approval of SECP. The new CEO was appointed by the BoD with SECP's approval

from November 18, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of associates, staff gratuity fund, directors and key management personnel. The
Company in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties.

Following are the details of transactions with related parties:

Listing Fee

Common Directorship

Power Cement Limited
Fauji Foods Limited
Samba Bank Limited

Sui Southern gas Company Limited
The Searle Company Limited

United Brands Limited
IBL Healthcare Limited

June 30,
2025

June 30,

2024

1,605
1,955
2,118
1,603
2,248

521
1,044

189



Pakistan Stock Exchange

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

190/

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited

EFU Life Assurance Limited

Dawood Lawrencepur Mills Limited

The Organic Meat Company Limited
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited
International Steel Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Facilities and Equipment Fee
Common Directorship

Power Cement Limited

Fauji Foods Limited

Samba Bank Limited

Arch Sons

Sui Southern gas Company Limited
Engro Fertilizers Ltd.

The Searle Company Limited

United Brands Limited

IBL Healthcare Limited

Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited
EFU Life Assurance Limited

Dawood Lawrencepur Mills Limited
The Organic Meat Company Limited
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited
International Steel Limited

Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

LAN Connectivity Charges
Associate
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

Miscellaneous Income

Fauji Foods Limited

Power Cement Limited

Sui Southern gas Company Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

June 30,
2025

June 30,
2024

2,444 2,252
2,179 2,264
1,851 1,785
1,527 1,043
971 764
2,318 2,195
6,705 -
3,962 -
23,645 21,397
= 12
= 12
= 12
165 158
12 12
= 12
= 12
= 12
12 12
12 12
12 12
12 12
12 12
12 12
12 -
216 -
477 314
3,701 4,233
= 55
= 55
55 -
= 125
405 -
460 235
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Dividend income

Associate

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited

Rental Income from investment property
Associate Company

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

Institute of Financial Management of Pakistan

CDC Fee
Associate Company
CDC fee - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Annual Subscription Fee & Board Evaluation
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG)

Retirement benefit plan
Payment made to gratuity fund during the year

Contribution
Common directorship

Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1% of total revenue

Reimbursement of Expenses
Associate Company
China Financial Futures Exchange

Following are the details of outstanding balances with related parties:

Listing Fee Receivable
Common Directorship
IBL Healthcare Limited
Samba Bank Limited

June 30,
2025
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June 30,

2024

337,174 206,805
305,045 74,594
1,250 1,600
643,469 282,999
6,701 6,417
21,866 18,707
534 -

29,101 25,124
1,219 1,164
602 481
82,238 52,694
8,248 5,526
2,240 2,600

= 130

= 750

= 880
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Facilities and Equipment Receivable
Common Directorship

Samba Bank Limited

United Brands Limited

The Searle Company Limited

Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Miscellaneous Income Receivable
Fauji Foods Limited
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited

LAN Connectivity Charges Receivable
Associate Company
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Electric charges payable
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Retirement benefit plan
Payable to gratuity fund

Contribution payable 0.1% / 1% of Revenue
Common Directorship
Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1% of total revenue

Receivable against Expenses
Associate Company
China Financial Futures Exchange

June 30,
2025

June 30,
2024

: 24

- 48

- 12

24 12
1,176 -

1,200 9%

- 57

- 35

- 92

3,056 2,397

- 583

20,067 22,127

942 3,993

2,238 2,649
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Investments

Loans and advances
Trade debts

Other receivables

Long term deposits

Financial liabilities

Long term deposits

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Investments

Loans and advances
Trade debts

Other receivables

Long term deposits

Financial liabilities

Long term deposits

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

June 30, 2025
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Financial Financial Financial Total
assets assets liabilities
at amortized FVOCI at amortized
cost cost
------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----=======m==mmmmmmamua-
464,595 = = 464,595
2,398,746 314,300 = 2,713,046
77,065 = = 77,065
225,798 = = 225,798
101,118 = = 101,118
41,832 = = 41,832
= = 548,086 548,086
= = 2,871 2,871
= = 160,598 160,598
= = 2,121,187 2,121,187
June 30, 2024
Financial Financial Financial Total
assets assets liabilities
at amortized FVOCI at amortized
cost cost
------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---=-==========mmmmmommuun
198,220 - - 198,220
2,224,310 194,565 - 2,418,875
86,807 - - 86,807
448,628 - - 448,628
95,915 - - 95,915
41,832 - - 41,832
- - 469,981 469,981
- - 157,601 157,601
- - 1,429 1,429
- - 2,072,437 2,072,437
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company is exposed to the following risks.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprise of interest rate risk, equity price risk and currency risk. The Company is exposed
to market risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature
or reprice in a given period. The Company manages this risk by matching the repricing of financial assets and liabilities
through risk management strategies.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Company’s short term investments and bank deposits in saving accounts. At the statement of financial
position date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

June 30, 2025
Interest / mark-up bearing

Effective Upto six More than Total
yield / months  six months
mark-up rate
%

Financialassets @~ (Rupees in '000) -----------

Market Treasury Bills 1195 2,398,745 - 2,398,745

Bank Balances 12.86 464,352 - 464,352
2,863,097 - 2,863,097

June 30, 2024
Interest / mark-up bearing

Effective Upto six More than Total

yield / months  six months
mark-up rate
Financial assets %
----------- (Rupees in '000) -----------
Market Treasury Bills 20.53 2,224,310 - 2,224,310
Bank Balances 20.5-20.75 198,006 - 198,006
2,422,316 - 2,422,316

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of Company's income for the year to a reasonably possible
change in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

Effect on profit
June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Change in basis point

+100 28,631 24,223
- 100 (28,631) (24,223)
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33.1.2 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of change in foreign exchange
rates mainly relates to long term payable to Shenzhen Stock Exchange amounting to Rs. 160.357 million (US
dollars 0.565 million) and the bank balance in saving accounts maintained in US dollars amounting to Rs. 140.735
million (US dollars 0.496 million) (2024: Rs 33.355 million) (US dollars 0.118 million).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Company's income before tax and reserves.

Change in Effect on Effect on
US dollar profit before reserves

rate tax
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Assets as at June 30, 2025 +10% 7,927 7,927
-10% (7.927) (7.927)
Liabilities as at June 30, 2025 +10% 38,369 38,369
-10% (38,369) (38,369)

332 Creditrisk
33.2.1 Creditriskis the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other
party to incur a financial loss. The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk:

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

Bank balances 464,511 198,163
Trade debts 225,798 448,628
Loans and advances 63,914 86,807
Short term investments 2,398,745 2,224,310
Long term deposits 41,832 41,832
Other receivables 101,118 95,915

3295918 3,095,655

33.2.2 Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure.
The Company's portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse
credit worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk. The table below
analyses the long term credit quality of the Company's exposure with respect to cash at bank only:
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Ratings *

* Ratings are performed by PACRA and VIS Credit Rating Co.

Liquidity risk

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
_______  J—

9475 78.66
341 21.09
184 -

= 0.25
100.00 100.00

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulties in releasing funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an

amount close to its fair value.

The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring losses or
risking damage to the Company's reputation. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of Company's

financial liability:

Long term deposits
Trade and other liabilities
Long term payable

Total

Long term deposits
Trade and other liabilities
Long term payable

Total

June 30, 2025

On Upto Upto More than Total
demand three 12 one year
months months
-------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----==========nuuu-
544,626 = = 3,460 548,086
2,121,187 = = = 2,121,187
= = 160,598 = 160,598
2,665,813 = 160,598 3460 2,829,871
June 30, 2024
On Upto Upto More than Total
demand three 12 one year
months months
-------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----==========nuuu-
466,521 - - 3,460 469,981
2,072,437 - - - 2,072,437
- - 157,601 - 157,601
2,538,958 - 157,601 3,460 2,700,019
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Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1. quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data.

The table analyses financial and non-financial assets measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:

June 30, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial and non-financial assets measured at fair value

Financial assets at fair value through OCT = = 314,300 314,300
Property and equipment = - 3,921,056 3,921,056
Investment property - - 649,876 649,876

June 30, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial and non-financial assets measured at fair value =~ ~===="===========- (Rupees in '000) ------=-=-=-------
Financial assets at fair value through OCT - - 194,565 194,565
Property and equipment - - 4,029,019 4,029,019
Investment property - - 596,086 596,086

As at June 30, 2025, the Company's long term investments are in unquoted securities (see note 10), which are
carried at fair value. The fair value of such investments is determined by using level 3 techniques. The Company
has used income approach (i.e. a present value technique) to value its investment in (PMEX). For this purpose, the
financial projections have been derived from the business plans prepared by the management and duly approved
by PMEX Board of Directors. The fair value of investment in VIS Credit Rating Company has been determined
based on the net asset value due to limited financial information available.
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NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at June 30, 2025 were 215 (June 30, 2024: 224).

Average number of employee during the year as at June 30, 2025 were 225 (June 30, 2024: 228).

GENERAL

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 15, 2025 proposed a final cash dividend at the rate
of 17% (2024: 10%) i.e. 1.70 (2024: Re 1 per share), for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounting to 1.362 billion.
(2024: Rs 801.48) million for the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting to be held on
October 28, 2025.

The figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand Rupees unless otherwise stated.

Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified for the purpose of better presentation. However,
there are no material reclassification to report.

DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These unconsolidated financial statements have been authorized for issue on September 15, 2025 by the Board
of Directors of the Company.

' f—-u-«q i ! fy
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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Independent Auditor’'s Report on the
Consolidated Financial Statements

o Grant Thornton

INDEPENDENT AUIMTOR'S REPORT h“" gty
To the membems of Pakistan Stock Ewnlun,gt Limdred 150 B Sed Flzar,
by bolctont Fhosom,
Sy ol D,

Beporon the Awdit of the Cossalidated Financial Statements i

T 52 B F472001.04
Opinion

We have audised the anneved consolidsved Gnenesl ssctirenis of Pakistan S¢ock Exchange
Linniied and ity sabaliiary (ke Civensn], winch comspriug the consolidaned suiserend of finanetal
posinen g 32 unc 8 I35, and the consobdated ssacement of profi or ke, the eopsalbizdasnd
stasemes of comprebenbne ietome, the consalidated stcmemt of changes In equiry, the
condnliduted stasrmami of cash floen for the vesr this ended, and noser o the comeabidaied

financs] stwtesnents, including s surenasy af matedal sccounang policees snd oher explenaeney
indvmrrrtann

Tn anuir opinion, consoldared fnancisl irements ghee 3 true and fair view of the consobdared
finsncesl pesimon of the Gooup si ae June 30, 2025, and of is consolidieed Fmarsial
pecformance and iss consolidued cash flows for the year then ended in sccordance with the
seeounting snd ropactp standirds o spplicabile in Paldrtn,

Basia for Opinicn

We conduciod tier audid in accordance with Inbermational Soandairds on Ausdmng (1544) as
spplicable i Pabisesn. Cher sesponaibilines wader thaee standandi arc Further desonbed i the
mbiinrs Forspomeibifiin for e Amait of te Compaidazed Fraawsal Sealemvnts tecnion of our eepon
We wre independent of the Croup in sceopdases sath the Ensematonal Ethacs Standands Boand
for Acominsamis’ Cadr aff B for Prefreesl Armeotants m sdopied by the Insumie of Chaneeed
Acoousitanty of Pakistan {the Code) snd oe have fulifed ow athee ethical respemsibidides iy
secocdence wich 1he Code. We believe that the audis svidenes we hawe obsined 50 uadficion
and approprate (o phovile o e for our epmion.

Ky Audit Matico

Hay sadit mumen ase those mabion that, m oor professiomal pedgment, were ol maost
s:gu.l'l.urue i o podic of e compcdidured Hnaneal seivernern of the ﬂ.-r-m:r-m.ud. These
musiers were addressed im ibe comienn of our asds of the conenlidsed finanoal smrements =
& whale, and m I'mm-n-g:-ﬂu-rqum therran, and we do not provide 8 separase oprean on
these maters.
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Fodoweng are the Key sudis mamers:

8.
o

Koy ausdit matoens

How the matpoms weee addicscd in
i s

L

IT Sysiems and controls over movenus

recognion

Tridkng dee  genemted  drom the
transscpians prcrssed woche key dnver
of the Groupw revenue, Theeolon,
feveTLsr pooogmigion. on teeding foc
eelen on the TS ading  daia
proceiing which invelver sucomsred
controls, spsten greerased infarmation
and spalem  dnecefces, whirh  are
undarpanned by the design and aperatmg
effecuveness of tie IT genessd conorols
guvr b key [T wpipers anid  the
sucoima ed spplication conitols avor the
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ez 1o the significance of IT systems
ardl conirols over nevensar procon, we
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peclanmed  the  followmg  auidi
preseedusc

& Dbtancd a Eront-eo-end
understanding of the pevenue
prcoprutton ahd peporing
processes  gnd  identified  the
wulcengied  conmeds  and  the
carorspanelg bey T syabems dhas
sigapa the procsiics

® Auswied the [T conteols
envicomment,  nclading e
governanoe (ramewosk, sed vesbed
key [T geneml conteds oves
appboitions  swpposting  pevesur
fecopnisan  ahd  repoming 1o

infoermamon could be rebed wpon

*  Dipmined ansd sevsewed ibe ropose
bssued by the service suditor for
the relevant IT spsiema, evaluared
the design and ressonableness of
the controli diicnbed theretn, sl
snnciaed thes eelevamce w0 the
ensiny's  pevenus pesopitod
processes

# Coomadered o cedin of the
sorvior  audang’s  salbng W
deterenine whether controki were
opcriting effecuvely hrcaghour
the vear and, where Aocisery,
perfarmed sddmoeal peocedurcs
o evalume b wdeguscy  of
complomentay  uer  endiry
zorrols.

o Tewod the densiiled aveomated
spplication  contrali, which arc
eritzal b0 te PEVENUE recogniton
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Pakistan Stock Exchange

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at June 30, 2025

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Investment property
Long term investments
Long term deposits
Long term loans

CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts

Loans and advances
Prepayments

Other receivables

Short term investments
Taxation — net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Authorized capital

Share capital
Reserves
Revaluation surplus on property and equipment - net

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Dara F. Dastoor scholarship fund
Long term deposits

Long term payable

Deferred tax liability

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer
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Chief Executive Officer

Note

O O N O

11
12

13
14

15

16

16

18
19
20

19
21

22

2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
4,167,016 4,284,524
1,043,912 1,127,027
649,876 596,086
5,262,683 4,377,323
41,832 41,832
13,151 17,940
11,178470 10,444,732
225,798 448,628
63,914 68,867
29,937 27,824
100,717 95,699
2,398,745 2,224,310
538,345 680,580
464,596 198,221
3,822,052 3,744,129
15,000,522 14,188,861
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000
8,014,766 8,014,766
3,192,237 2,523,224
871,330 900,796
12,078,333 11,438,786
2,005 2,005
548,086 469,981
76,921 36,851
627,012 508,837
2,871 1,429
160,598 157,601
2,131,708 2,082,208
2,295,177 2,241,238
15,000,522 14,188,861

Chairperson
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Note 2025 2024
Revenue e (Rupees in '000) -----
Listing fee 23 764,313 762,306
Income from exchange operations 24 1,422,032 || 1,015,650
Mark-up / interest income 25 195,861 268,093
Rental income from investment property 79,230 70,571

2461436 2,116,620
Operating cost

Administrative expenses 26 (2,060,986) (2,003,969)
Operating profit 400,450 112,651
Other income 27 119,809 53,222
Share of profit from associates & Subsidiary 918692 1,407,754 943,683
1,527,563 996,905
Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential and final tax 1,928,013 1,109,556
Minimum tax differential (2,047) (58,546)
Final taxes (227,969) (5,123)
(230,016) (63,669)
Profit before income tax 1,697,997 1,045,887
Income tax
- Current 28 (182,736) (42,210)
- Deffered 5,462 23,932
(177,274) (18,278)
Net profit after taxation 1,520,723 1,027,609
Basic and diluted eamings per share 29 190 1.28

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----

Net profit after taxation 1,520,723 1,027,609
Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Items not to be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent years:
Actuarial loss on employees’ gratuity fund
- Company (153,992) (59,327)

- Associates (1,331) (16,038)
(155,323) (75,365)

Tax effect on actuarial loss on employees’ gratuity fund
- Company (22,783) 19,578

- Associates 1,421 4,256
(21,362) 23,834

(176,685) (51,531)

Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment at FVOCI 119,735 82,402
- Effect of deffered tax (22,749) (15,656)
96,986 66,746

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,441,024 1,042,824
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Holding Company. 1,441,024 1,042,824

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential

and final tax

Non-cash adjustments to reconcile income

before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation in tangible assets
Amortisation on intangible assets
Provision for gratuity
Mark-up / interest income
Foreign exchange gain
Allowance for ECL
Intangible write-off during the year
Liabilities written back
Gain on revaluation of investment property
Gain on disposal of fixed assets - net
Share of profit of associates

Working capital adjustments:
Trade debts

Loans and advances
Prepayments

Other receivables

Trade and other payables

Income tax paid

Gratuity paid

Mark-up / interest received
Long term deposit- net
Long term loans

Long term payable

Net cash generated from operating activities

2025

Annual Report 2025

2024

(Rupees in '000) -----

1,928,013 1,109,556
155,731 170,199
164,565 150,031

80,268 65,636
(195,861) | | (268,093)
(3,037) -
25,300 15,460
= 5,565
(91,506) -
(551) -
(15,395) (10,794)
(1,407,754) || (943,683)
(1,288,240) (815,679
639,773 293,877
197,530 (298,187)
4,953 (10,772)
(2,113) (4,525)
(9,327) (5,985)
(76,240) 284,031
114,803 (35,438)

(220,200) || (156,347)
(82,327) (52,694)
221,612 256,570

78,105 21,887
4,789 2,557

- (239,999)

1979  (168,026)
756,555 90,413
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2025 2024

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES @7~ (Rupees in ‘000) -----

Capital expenditure (177,943) || (516,319)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 20,426 16,588
Dividend received 643,469 281,400
Proceeds from sale of investments 2,968,304 || 6,431,351
Investments purchased (3,160,472) | |(6,462,493)
Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities 293784  (249,473)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividend paid (783,964) -
Net cash used in financing activities (783,964) -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 266,375 (159,060)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 198,221 357,281
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 464,596 198,221

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

' ﬁ...l_, ! I‘EW

. -

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Balance as at July 01, 2023

Net profit for the year
Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property and
equipment incremental depreciation - net of tax
Balance as at June 30, 2024

Balance as at July 01, 2024

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss) / income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Dividend for the year ended 30 June 2024
@ Re. 1 per share

Transfer from revaluation surplus on property and
equipment incremental depreciation - net of tax

Balance as at June 30, 2025

Revenue Capital
Reserves Capital Reserves Reserves
Share Un- Revaluation Share of Total Revaluation Total
Capital appropriated surpluson associates surplus on
profit investments property and
at FVOCI equipment
----- (Rupees in '000) --
8,014,766 1,494,286 28,900 (74,852) 1,448,334 932,862 10,395,962
- 1,027,609 - - 1,027,609 - 1,027,609
- (39,749) 66,746 (11,782) 15,215 - 15,215
- 987,860 66,746 (11,782) 1,042,824 - 1,042,824
- 32,066 - - 32,066 (32,066) -
8,014,766 2,514,212 95,646 (86,634) 2,523,224 900,796 11,438,786
8,014,766 2,514,212 95,646 (86,634) 2,523,224 900,796 11,438,786
= 1,520,723 = = 1,520,723 = 1,520,723
- (176,775) 96,986 90 (79,699) - (79,699)
= 1,343,948 96,986 90 1,441,024 = 1,441,024
- (801,477) - S (801,477) - (801,477)
= 29,466 = = 29,466 (29,466) -
8,014,766 3,086,149 192,632 (86,544) 3,192,237 871,330 12,078,333

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Chief Financial Officer

- 2

i, |
' -
Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (the Holding Company) was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1913 (now
Companies Act, 2017) on 10 March 1949 as a Company Limited by Guarantee. However, on 27 August 2012 the
Holding Company was re-registered as public company limited by shares under the Stock Exchanges
(Corporatisation, Demutualisation and Integration) Act 2012 (XV of 2012). The Holding Company is listed on PSX
with effect from 29 June 2017.

The Holding Company is engaged in conducting, regulating and controlling the trade or business of buying,
selling and dealing in shares, scripts, participation term certificates, modaraba certificates, stocks, bonds,
debentures stock, government papers, loans, and any other instruments and securities of like nature including,
but not limited to, special national fund bonds, bearer national fund bonds, foreign exchange bearer certificates
and documents of similar nature, issued by the Government of Pakistan or any other agency authorised by the
Government of Pakistan.

The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road,
Karachi. Area of land belongs to the Holding Company is 9,408 Sq. yards out of which occupied space by the
buildings are 4,050 Sq. yards and open area is 5,358 Sq. yards.

The group consists of:

Holding Company

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited
Percentage of shareholding

2025 2024
Subsidiary Company
- Pakistan Financial Center (Private) Limited 100% 100%
Associates
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) 39.81% 39.81%
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 49.71% 49.71%
- EClear Services Limited 25.00% 25.00%

Pakistan Financial Center (Private) Limited

PSX Financial Centre (Private) Limited (the Subsidiary) was incorporated in Pakistan on November 2, 2022 as
Private Limited Company under the Companies Act, 2017. The registered office of the Subsidiary is situated in
Stock Exchange Building, Stock Exchange Road, Karachi. The Subsidiary is principally engaged under business to
carry on Real Estate operations.

Shareholders of the Holding Company include the following foreign shareholders:

China Financial Futures Exchange Company Limited

Legal Status Limited by Shares

Owners CFFEX was setup jointly by Shanghai Futures Exchange, Zhengzhou
Commuodity Exchange, Dalian Commodity Exchange, Shanghai Stock
Exchange and Shenzhen Stock Exchange, each accounting for 20% of total
shares.

Chief Executive Officer Mr. Zhang Xiaogang

Shanghai Stock Exchange limited
Legal Status Non-profit organization directly govemed by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Owners Membership-based exchange
Chief Executive Officer Mr. CAI Jianchun
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Shenzhen Stock Exchange Limited

Legal Status Non-profit organization directly governed by the China Securities
Regulatory Commission.

Owners Membership-based exchange

Chief Executive Officer Mr. Li Jizun

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Intemational Accounting Standard
Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except as
mentioned in note 5.

These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees which is the Group's functional and presentation
currency.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary as at 30 June 2024. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable retumns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those retums through its power over the
investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has: :

- power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee);

- exposure, or rights, to variable retums from its involvement with the investee; and
- the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its retumns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- the contractual arrangement(s) with the other vote holders of the investee;
- rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
- the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

215




Pakistan Stock Exchange

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

4.2

4.3

216/

Profit or loss and each component of OCI are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. When
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiary to bring their accounting policies in line
with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities,
non-controlling interest and other components of equity, while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO THE APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

There are certain amendments and interpretations to the accounting and reporting standards which are
mandatory for the Group'’s annual accounting period which began on 1 July 2024. However, these do not have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements except as disclosed in note 8 to these financial
statements.

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:

Effective date
(annual reporting periods
beginning on or after)

IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates 01-Jan-25
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendments) 01-Jan-26
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: Classification and

Measurement (Amendments) 01-Jan-26
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 01-Jan-26

Annual improvements to IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 (Consolidated
Financial Statements) and IAS 7 (Statement of Cash Flows) 01-Jan-26

The above standards, amendments to approved accounting standards and interpretations are not likely to have
any material impact on the Group's financial statements.

Other than the aforesaid standards, interpretations and amendments, Intermnational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) has also issued the following standards and interpretation, which have not been notified locally by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as at 30 June 2025;

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
[FRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangement

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements

IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
financial statements except as mentioned in note 5.1 below.

Operating fixed assets

Leasehold land is carried at revalued amount less subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Buildings on
leasehold land and lift, generators and electric installation are carried at revalued amount, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. All other fixed assets are carried at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying the diminishing balance method over the
estimated useful life of respective assets, except for “Computers and related accessories” which are depreciated
using straight-line method. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end.

In respect of additions and disposals of assets, depreciation is charged from the month in which asset is available
to use and continue depreciating it until it is derecognized i.e. up to the month preceding the disposal, even if
during that period the asset is idle. Useful lives are determined by the management based on expected usage of
asset, expected physical wear and tear, technical and commercial obsolescence, legal and similar limits on the use
of assets and other similar factors.

Maintenance and repairs are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gains and losses on disposal of assets,
if any, are included in statement of profit or loss.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognized.

Capital work-in-progress

These are stated at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of expenditure
incurred and advances made in respect of tangible and intangible assets in the course of their construction and
installation.

Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment

Surplus on revaluation is recognized in other comprehensive income as surplus on revaluation of property and
equipment which is presented as separate component within equity. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value.

Cost / revalued amount at the date of the revaluation is adjusted / eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. To the extent of the incremental
depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
(net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained eamings.

If an asset's carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is recognized in statement of
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus. If an asset's carrying
amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation, the decrease is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
However, the decrease is recognized in the statement of other comprehensive income to the extent of any credit
balance existing in the revaluation surplus in respect of that asset. The decrease recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income reduces the amount accumulated in equity under the heading of revaluation surplus.
However, the increase is recognized in the statement of profit or loss to the extent that it reverses a revaluation
decrease of the same asset previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The revaluation reserve is not
available for distribution to Group's shareholders.
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Intangible assets
These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Amortization
is charged to income using the straight-line method.

Gains or losses on disposal of intangible assets, if any, are included in income currently.

Investment property

‘Investment property is stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date. Gain or loss on
remeasurement of investment property at fair value is recognized in statement of profit or loss. Fair value is
evaluated annually by an independent professional valuer. Investment property is derecognized when either it
has been disposed off or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal.

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized as income
in the period of derecognition.

Investment in subsidiary companies

Investment in subsidiary companies is initially recognized and carried at cost. At subsequent reporting dates, the
recoverable amounts are estimated to determine the extent of impairment losses, if any, and carrying amounts of
investments are adjusted accordingly. Impairment losses are recognized as expense. Where impairment losses
subsequently reverse, the carrying amounts of the investments are increased to the revised recoverable amounts
but limited to the extent of initial cost of investments. A reversal of impairment loss is recognized in
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss.

Investment in associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control or joint control. This is
generally the case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognized at cost.

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognize the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group's share of movements in other comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognized as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the group does not recognize further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee company.

Unrealized gains on transactions between the Group's and its associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealized losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to equity account for an investment because of a loss of joint control or significant
influence, any retained interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying amount
recognized in profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequent
accounting for the retained interest as a financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.
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5.8 Financial Instruments

5.8.1 Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of bank balances, loans and advances, are initially recognized on
the trade date, i.e, the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This
includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair value plus transaction costs, except in the case of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

5.8.2 Classification and subsequent measurement
The Group classifies its financial assets and financial liabilities at initial recognition into the categories of financial
assets and financial liabilities discussed below.

Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or measured at Fair Value
Through other comprehensive Income (FVOCI) on the basis of both:

- The entity’s business model for managing the financial assets
- The contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset

- Debt instruments at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in fair value
recognized in OCI. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. On
de-recognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are reclassified from OCI to profit or
loss. Debt instruments are subject to impairment under Expected Credit Loss model. The ECLs for debt
instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the statement
of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that would arise
if the assets were measured at amortized cost is recognized in OCI as an accumulated impairment amount,
with a corresponding charge to profit or loss. The accumulated loss recognized in OCl is recycled to the profit
and loss upon de-recognition of the assets.

- Equity instruments at FVOCI
Upon initial recognition, the Company elects to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of Equity under [AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The Company's policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI
when those investments are held for purposes other than to generate investment retums. Such classification
is determined on an instrument by instrument basis.

- Financial assets at amortized cost
A debt instrument is measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment under Expected Credit Loss model.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities of the Group are subsequently measured at amortized cost using effective interest method.

5.8.3 De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized where the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or the Group has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a pass-through arrangement and the Group has:
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(@) Transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset; or

(b) Neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control
of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset (or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement), and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement in the
asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

Impairment of financial assets
Loss allowances for trade debts and other receivables are always measured applying simplified approach at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest
rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.

The Group uses the provision matrix as a practical expedient to measuring ECLs on trade receivables, based on
days past due for groupings of receivables with similar loss patterns. Receivables are grouped based on their
nature.

The default rates are benchmarked and adjusted for forward looking information and the rates in provision matrix
are based on days past due for various customer segments that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is
initially based on the Group's historical observed default rates which is then adjusted for forward looking
information.

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position of the Group has a legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Loans, advances and deposits
These are stated at cost, less allowance for any impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash in hand and at bank and short term investments that are highly liquid in nature and are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Revenue recognition

- The Group recognizes revenue from initial listing and further issues over a period the Group discharges its
performance obligation in relation to listing services. The Group recognizes revenue from annual listing fee
on a straight-line basis over the period to which the fee relates, as this reflects the extent of the Group's
progress towards completion of the performance obligation under the contract.

- Income pertaining to trading by members is recognized at the trade date to which the transaction pertains
when the obligation to provide trading services has been fulfilled.

- Income pertaining to non-trading fee and facilities and equipment services are recognized over the period of
use as PSX meets its obligation to provide services, which are provided both at a point in time and over a
period of time.

- Income from regulatory fee is recognized on accrual basis.
- Income from membership fee is recognized over a period of twelve months on straight line basis.
- Rental income is recognized over a period of twelve months on straight line basis.

- Retum on investments and bank balances is recognized on time proportionate basis.

Taxation

Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at current rates of taxation after taking into account all
tax credits and tax rebates available, if any. The tax charge as calculated above is compared with turnover tax
under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, and whichever is higher is provided for in the financial
statements.

Minimum tax

The Group has elected to designate the amount calculated on taxable income using the enacted tax rate as an
income tax within the scope of IAS 12 Tncome Taxes' and recognize it as current income tax expense. Any excess
over the amount designated as income tax, will then be recognized as a levy falling under the scope of IFRIC 21 /
IAS 37.

Final tax
As computation of final taxes under provisions of ITO, 2001 is not based on taxable income, therefore, final taxes
fall under levy within the scope of IFRIC 21/IAS 37 and not income tax in the statement of profit or loss.

The numerical reconciliation is not provided as the tax charge of the Group comprise of minimum and final tax
under the relevant sections of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities
are recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which these can be utilized. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to the extent that it is no Ionger probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the statement of financial
position date.

221




Pakistan Stock Exchange

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

222

Staff retirement benefit

The Group operates an approved gratuity fund (defined benefit plan) for all its permanent employees who attain
the minimum qualification period for entitlement to gratuity. The Group's costs and contributions are determined
based on actuarial valuation carried out at each year end using Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Method. All
actuarial gains and losses are recognised in ‘other comprehensive income' as they occur and are not reclassified
to statement of profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment of any asset or a group of assets. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of that asset is estimated and impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss
account.

Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency transactions during the year are recorded at the exchange rates approximating those ruling on
the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of
exchange which approximate those prevailing on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses on translation are
taken to income currently.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making judgments about
carrying values of assets and liabilities. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis.

The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of the
following:

Notes
-Determination of useful lives of property and equipment and intangible assets” 51,52,53 54, 6and7
-Classification and valuation of investments 56,57 8 and9
-Valuation of investment property 8
-Provisions and contingencies 5.11and 22
-Impairment of financial assets (ECL) 584
-Provision for taxation and deferred tax 513
-Provision for gratuity 5.14
-Revenue recognition 512

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT == (Rupees in '000) -----
Operating fixed assets - tangible 4,166,643 4,284,095
Capital work-in-progress 6.1 373 429

4,167,016 4,284,524
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Cost of fully depreciated assets amounts to Rs.518.545 ( 2024: Rs. 453.810) million.

Description of Assets Forced sale value in ‘000
Leasehold land 1,864,584
Building 1,936,097

Lift, generators and electric installation 50,808

The above forced sale value has been taken from desktop revaluation report of Nanjee & Co. (Pvt.) LTD. as on
June 30, 2025.

Fair value measurements under revaluation model for property, plant and equipment

The fair value measurements of the Leasehold land, buildings and machinery was last done as at June 30, 2022
and were performed by Nanjee & Co. (Pvt) LTD, who are independent valuers. The fair value of the land was
determined based on enquiry from Estate Agents and Brokers, the current market value as a land-mark property
based on plots of a similar size. The fair value of the buildings was determined in accordance with the
commercial rates for sale of office space prevailing in the market for these buildings. The area on long lease to
Members and non-members has been deducted from the total area, to arrive at the net area in Group's
possession. The common areas such as Corridors, Lobby, etc. have been proportionately allocated to members
and the Group on the total covered area.

The fair value of the Lift, generators and electric installations was determined by enquiring their present
replacement cost from the suppliers/ fabricators keeping in view the Make, Model Capacity and specifications.
The suitable depreciation is applied to arrive at the present assessed value. A slight increase in the depreciation
factor would result in a significant decrease in the fair values of buildings and leasehold improvements, and a
slight increase in the estimated construction costs would result in a significant increase in the fair value of the
buildings and vice versa. There has been no change to the valuation technique during the year.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
INTANGIBLE ASSETS e (Rupees in '000) -----
Operating intangibles 71 939,529 990,001
Intangibles under development (CWIP) 7.2 104,383 137,026

1043912  1127,027
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7.1 Operating intangibles
June 30, 2025

WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
July 01, Additions/ June 30, July 01, Charge for  June 30, June 30,
2024 Transfers 2025 Rate 2024 the year 2025 2025
-------------- (Rupees in '000) ----==---==---~ % --==---------- (Rupees in '000) -------=------
Computer software 1,178,307 16,510 1,194,817 10-25 508,971 97,645 606,616 588,201
Internally developed software
and market products 759,973 97,583 857,556 25 439,308 66,920 506,228 351,328
1,938,280 114,093 2,052,373 948,279 164,565 1,112,844 939,529
June 30, 2024
WRITTEN
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION DOWN VALUE
As at As at As at As at As at
July 01, Additions/ June 30, July 01, Charge for  June 30, June 30,
2023 Transfers 2024 Rate 2023 the year 2024 2024
-------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------=---- % ---=---------- (Rupees in '000) --------------
Computer software 965,821 212,486 1,178,307 10-25 422,107 86,864 508,971 669,336
Internally developed software
and market products 709,924 50,049 759,973 25 376,141 63,167 439,308 320,665
1,675,745 262,535 1,938,280 798,248 150,031 948,279 990,001

7.1.1 Intangible assets include both externally acquired and internally developed software used to support the Group's
capital market operations and services provided to Trading Right Entitlement Certificate (TREC) holders, brokers,
and investors.

Computer software mainly include the New Trading & Surveillance System (NTS), a comprehensive trading and
surveillance platform procured for capital market trading activities.

- Jade Trading Terminal (JTT): A trading platform designed to facilitate transactions for traders and
stockbrokers.

- Karachi Internet Trading System (KiTS): An online trading platform enabling brokers and investors to
access and execute trades via the intermet.

- Government Debt Securities (GDS) Module: A system that provides trading functionality for
government securities to TREC holders and investors.

- Pakistan Unified Corporate Action Reporting System (PUCAR): A centralized system for the
dissemination of corporate announcements.

- Electronic Initial Public Offering System (eIPO): Web based platform for the subscription of securities
offered to the general public.

- Book Building Platform (Debt & Equity): A platform developed to discover price during IPO process.

- Unlisted Companies Financials Portal: Platform developed for un-listed companies for the disclosure
of financial information in the public interest, with a key focus on investor protection.
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7.1.2

7.2

81

- Public Offerings Revolutionized through an Integrated & Digitized Experience (PRIDE): Platform
offered to CTIs to facilitative public offerings.

- Risk Management Gateway (RMQG): Gateway offered to TRECHSs for risk management.

- Trec Holders Information Management System (THIMS): MIS offered to TRECHs.

- TRECH & Trading Operations System (ITOS): Platform offered to PSX business teams for TRECHs and
Trading operations.

These internally developed softwares are periodically upgraded to enhance functionality and maintain
compliance with regulatory requirements. The costs incurred in connection with such upgrades are capitalized
as internally generated intangible assets.

Cost of fully amortized assets amounts to Rs.774.487 (2024: Rs. 751.383) million.

June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
Intangibles under development (CwWIP)  —eee- (Rupees in '000) -----
Opening balance 137,026 19,116
Additions during the year 67,623 221,997
Transfer to operating intangibles (100,266) (98,522)
CWIP write off = (5,565)

104,383 137,026

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Carrying amount as at July 1, 2025 596,086 581,733
Net gain from fair value adjustment 551 4,013
Transfer from owned property 53,239 10,340
Carrying amount as at June 30, 2025 81 649,876 596,086

Loss from changes in fair value - -
This represents office spaces in PSX's building, the latest fair value of this property was carried out by Igbal A. Nanjee
& Company (Private) Limited, independent valuer as at June 30, 2025. The forced sales value of the property as at

30 June 2025 is Rs. 519.901 million.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS ameen (Rupees in '000) -----
Associate 91 4948383 4,182,758
FVOCI 9.2 314,300 194,565

5262683 4377323
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June 30, June 30,

9.1 Investment in Associates Note 2025 2024

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)
139,328,000 shares having face value of Rs. 10/ each 911 3201238 2766410

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL)
50,131,809 shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each 911 1649649 1328661

EClear Services Limited 911 97,496 87,687
7,500,000 shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each

4948383 4182758

9.11 Reconciliation of changes in carrying value of investment in associate

June 30, 2025

CDC NCCPL E-Clear Total
Services

--------------- (Rupees in '000) -----==-=====--=

Opening balance 2,766,410 1,328,661 87,687 4,182,758

Share of profit for the year 766,044 631,901 9,809 1,407,754

Actuarial gain / (loss) on 5,958 (5,868) = 90
employees’ gratuity fund

Dividend received during the year (337,174) (305,045) - (642,219)

Closing balance 3,201,238 1,649,649 97,496 4,948,383

June 30, 2024

CDC NCCPL E-Clear Total
Services

--------------- (Rupees in '000) -----=======---
Opening balance 2,357,362 1,096,443 78,452 3,532,257
Share of profit for the year 620,660 313,788 9,235 943,683
Actuarial (loss) on employees’ gratuity fund (4,807) (6,976) - (11,783)
Dividend received during the year (206,805) (74,594) - (281,399)
Closing balance 2,766,410 1,328,661 87,687 4,182,758

9.1.2 Asof June 30, 2025, the carrying value of Group's investment in NCCPL amounts to Rs. 1,650 million against the
break up value of Rs. 1,627 million. However, in accordance with its accounting policy, the Group has assessed
the recoverable amount of investment in NCCPL using the income approach and determined that the
recoverable amount is higher than its carrying value. Accordingly, no impairment is required in this respect.
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Summarized financial information of the associates of the Company are as follows:

June 30, 2025
Name of associate Country of Total Total Interest
incorporation assets liabilities Profit Revenue held %

(Rupees in '000)

CDC

Break-up value of each ordinary
share of Rs.10 is Rs.24.89 based on
the financial statements available
for the year ended June 30, 2025.

Pakistan

NCcPL Pakistan
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs.32.45 based on

the financial statements for the

year ended June 30, 2025.

E-Clear Services Pakistan
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs.12.62 based on

the draft financial statements for

the year ended June 30, 2025.

June 30, 2024
Country of Total Total Interest
incorporation assets liabilities Profit Revenue held %

(Rupees in '000)

Name of associate

CDC Pakistan 9,117,645 1,498,336 1,559,056 3,131,348 39.81
Break-up value of each ordinary

share of Rs.10 is Rs.21.77 based on

the financial statements for the year

ended June 30, 2024.

NCCPL Pakistan 27,538,324 24,925,184 631,238 2,207,048 4971
Break-up value of each ordinary
share of Rs.10 is Rs 25.91 based on
the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

E-Clear Services Pakistan 1,601,566 1,255,762 36,940 51,324 25.00
Break-up value of each ordinary
share of Rs.10 is Rs 11.53 based on
the financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2024.

38,257,535 27,679,282 2,227,234 5,389,720
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9.2

9.21

10

101

11
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At FVOCI- related parties June 30,  June 30,
Note 2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
VIS Credit Rating Company Limited 27,769 26,741

250,000 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each, representing, 12.50% shareholding.

Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited (PMEX) 921 286,531 167,824
25,390,798 ordinary shares of Rs.10 each, representing
28.41% (2024: 28.41%) shareholding.

314,300 194,565

As PMEX operates under close regulatory supervision, the Group believes that it cannot exercise significant
influence in the affairs of PMEX solely on the basis of shareholding / voting rights as investor in PMEX hence, the
investment is not accounted for as an associate investment.

June 30, June 30,
LONG TERM LOANS Note 2025 2024

Employees - Considered good, secured 10.1 26,176 31,943
Current portion of long term loans to employees 12 (13,025) (14,003)
13,151 17,940

These personal loans are sanctioned for the purchase of motorcycles and other domestic purposes. These are
secured against the outstanding balances in the Employees’ Gratuity Fund. These are recoverable in monthly
instalments over a period, with original maturity between 3 and 5 years and are interest free. All outstanding long
term loans at the year end will mature within two to four years.

TRADE DEBTS
Unsecured
Considered good
Due from members 58,350 60,194
Due from companies
- Related party 7,854 10,364
- Others 68,197 351,846
Others 91,397 26,224
225,798 448,628
Considered doubtful

Due from companies
70,141 78,835
295,939 527,463
Allowance for ECL 111 (70,141) (78,835)
225,798 448,628
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June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024
Reconciliation of allowance for ECL (Rupees in '000) -----
Opening balance 78,835 63,375
Provision for the year - net 26 25,300 15,460
Balances written off (33,994) -
Closing balance 70,141 78,835

The outstanding balances from related parties are disclosed in the related parties note 31 and outstanding

balances represents maximum amount outstanding at any time during the the year.
LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans - secured, considered good

- Current portion of long term loans to employees 10 13,025 14,003
Advances, considered good
- Employees 50,516 54,052
- Suppliers 373 812
50,889 54,864
63,914 68,867
OTHER RECEIVABLES
Due from Non-members
- Related party 1,203 -
- Other 48,189 34,675
Due from an ex-member 131 6,574 6,574
Rent receivable 10,722 17,064
Others
- Related party 4,073 1,468
- Other 29,956 35,918
100,717 95,699

This represents amount due from an ex-member upon the cancellation of his membership and declaration as a
defaulter. As a result thereof, certain shares of the ex-member were taken over by the Group in order to square
up the ex-member’s position and are held pending the outcome of a law suit brought against the Group by him
in the Honourable High Court of Sindh. The market value of these shares (including bonus shares) as at June 30,
2025 amounted to Rs. 55.764 (2024: Rs.55.274) million. Further, as disclosed in note 15.2, bank balances include

dividend/bank profit of Rs.19.403 and Rs.33.979 (2024: 17.827 and 28.660 million) million respectively.

June 30,

Note 2025
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

At amortised cost
Market Treasury Bills 141 2,398,745

June 30,
2024

2,224,310
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141

15

15.1

15.2

16

232

These represent Market Treasury Bills having cost of Rs. 2,304.511 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 2,112.342) million and
interest accrued thereon of Rs. 94.234 (June 30, 2024: Rs. 111.698) million. The effective rate of return is 11.95%
(June 30, 2024: 19.98%) per annum. These will mature latest by June 24, 2026. These include Rs. 807.366 (June
30, 2024: Rs. 856.615) million from defaulter / expelled / suspended members and Rs. 519.644 (June 30, 2024: Rs.

438.693) million pertaining to base minimum capital.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks on:

Current accounts

PLS accounts in
foreign currency
local currency

In hand

Note

1516152

152

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

159 157

140,735 33,355
323,617 164,651
464,352 198,006

85 58
464,596 198,221

Rate of return on PLS accounts varies from 8.00% to 19.00% (June 30, 2024: 20.50% to 20.75%) per annum.
However, the effective rate for the period is 12.86% (June 30, 2024: 20.57%).

These include the following balances:
Dividend / bank profit

Members basic deposits

Deposits against arbitration

Proceeds from divestments/ Membership card
Dara F. Dastoor scholarship fund

Unclaimed Dividend

SHARE CAPITAL
June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

Authorised capital
1,000,000,000  1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Note

131

212

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

801,476,600 801,476,600 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each- (other than cash)

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

53,382 46,487
30,339 41,268

2,598 2,478
178,256 38,943
2,005 2,005
2,871 1,429

269,451 132,610

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

10,000,000 10,000,000

8,014,766 8,014,766
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16.1

16.2

16.3

17

171

18

This includes shares issued against surplus on revaluation of the assets of the Group of Rs.3.288 million (net of
tax) in accordance with the requirements of Stock Exchanges (Corporatization, Demutualization and Integration)
Act 2012. This treatment regarding the surplus has also been approved by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan.

The shareholders are entitled to receive all distributions including dividends and other entitlements in the form
of bonus and right shares as and when declared by the Group. All shares carry one vote per share without
restriction.

The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base to strengthen investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business. The Board of Directors of the Group monitor the return on
capital, which the Group defines as net profit after taxation divided by total shareholders’ equity. The Board of
Directors also determines the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders, which is finally approved in annual
general meeting of the shareholders. There were no changes to the Group's approach to capital management
during the year.

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

REVALUATION SURPLUS ON PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net
Balance as of 01 July 2024 1175645 1,223,505
Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of incremental

depreciation charged thereon (43,979) (47,860)
1,131,666 1,175,645

Related deferred tax liability:

Opening balance (274,849) || (290,643)
Tax effect of incremental depreciation charged
during the year on related assets transferred

to statement of profit or loss 14,513 15,794
Closing balance (260,336)  (274,849)
Balance as of 30 June 2025 871,330 900,796

Restriction on distribution:
The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is not available for distribution to the shareholders
in accordance with section 241 of the Companies Act, 2017.

June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
LONG TERM DEPOSITS  eeees (Rupees in '000) -----
Clearing house deposits from members 18.1 548,086 469,981
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19

191

20

20.1
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These include Rs. 535.526 million (June 30, 2024: Rs. 457.421 million) cash deposit placed by TREC holders
against the Base Minimum Capital requirement with the Exchange in accordance with the Rule Book of PSX.

June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
LONGTERMPAYABLE (Rupees in ‘000) -----
Long term payable 19.1 160,598 157,601
Less: current portion of long term payable (160,598)  (157,601)

It represents USD 0.565 million (including tax) against the purchase of Trading and Surveillance System from
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (a related party).

June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/(ASSET) e (Rupees in '000) -----
Taxable temporary differences arising from:
Accelerated tax depreciation 356,715 386,133
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment property 102,187 102,005
Unrealized gain on revaluation of investment at FVOCI 45,026 22,277
Investment in associates 55,427 46,258

559,355 556,673
Deductible temporary differences arising from:

Carry forward tax losses (356,810) || (369,533)
Provisions (97,143) || (122,796)
Unrealized exchange loss (28,481) (27,493)

(482,434)  (519,822)

76,921 36,851

Movement of deferred tax liability / (asset)

Opening balance 36,851 64,705
Charged to profit and loss (5,462) (23,932)
Charged to comprehensive income 45,532 (3,922)
Closing balance 76,921 36,851
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June 30, June 30,

Note 2025 2024
21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES . (Rupees in '000) -----
Creditors - capital expenditure 47,011 102,483
Accrued expenses 293,941 350,256
Payable to Shenzhen Stock Exchange - related party = 55,345
Dividend Payable 211 32,887 17,074
Payables to directors against board meeting fee 13,591 11,885
Deposits against arbitration 2,598 2,478
Provision for staff bonus 68,995 156,358
Fees and rent received in advance 56,653 35,889
Amount held against defaulter / expelled /
suspended members 21.2 985,622 895,558
Interest payable on BMC deposits 213 18,629 25,976
Employees’ gratuity fund 214 470,288 318,356
Sales tax payable 10,343 9,593
SECP supervision / transaction fee 46,272 31,750
Capital Market Development Fund 55,812 -
RDA campaign 2,868 14,956
Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1%
of total revenue 1,108 3,993
Others 25,090 50,258

2,131,708 2,082,208

211  Thisinclude dividend with-held due to legal requirement amounting Rs. 30.248 million (2024: Rs. 15.374 million).

21.2  This represents amount obtained on disposal of membership cards and sale proceeds received from sale of 40%
divestment and 20% from public offering of PSX shares of defaulter / expelled / suspended members, from LSE
Financial Services Limited and ISE tower REIT Management Company Limited including profit accrued thereon,
deposited in a separate bank account amounting to Rs 178.256 million to be utilized for the settlement of dues
of the defaulter members, including investors claim, if any. The remaining amount of Rs. 807.366 million is
invested in Market Treasury Bills.

21.3  This represents interest payable on amount deposited with the Group on account of Base Minimum Deposits by
TREC holders.

214  The Group offers a defined post-employment gratuity benefit to permanent management and non-management
employees. The gratuity fund is governed under the Trusts Act, 1882, Trust Deed and Rules of Fund, Companies
Act, 2017, the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and the Income Tax Rules, 2002. Responsibility for governance of
plan, including investment decisions and contribution schedule lie with Board of Trustees of the Fund. The Group
appoint the Trustees.
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21.4.1

21.4.2

21.4.3

2144

21.4.5

Principal actuarial assumptions
Significant actuarial assumptions used in the valuations
are as follows:

Discount rate
Increase in salaries
Expected return on plan assets

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality rates
Rate of employee turnover

Liability recognized in the statement of financial position:

Present value of obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss
Current service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Movement in the liability recognized in the
statement of financial position:

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income
Contribution

Closing balance

Actual return on plan assets

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

11.75% 14.75%
8.75% 9.75%
11.75% 14.75%

SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
Heavy Heavy

June 30, June 30,
Note 2025 2024

529,287 383,574
(58,999) (65,218)
470,288 318,356

34,152 21,832
55,717 55,367
(9,601) (11,563)
80,268 65,636

318,356 246,087
80,268 65,636
153,992 59,327
(82,328) (52,694)
470,288 318,356

13.12% 17.80%

21.4.5.1 The expected return on plan assets was determined by considering the market expectations and depends upon
the assets portfolio of the fund, at the beginning of the year, for returns over the entire life of the related

obligation.
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21.4.6 Movement of present value of defined benefit obligations

2147

21.4.8

21.4.9

Opening balance

Current service cost
Interest cost

Total benefits paid
Actuarial loss on obligation
Closing balance

Movement of fair value of plan assets
Opening balance

Return on plan assets

Contributions

Benefits paid by the fund

Actuarial (loss) / gain on assets

Closing balance

Remeasurements recognized in Other Comprehensive

(Income) / expense during the year
Actuarial loss on obligation
Actuarial loss on assets

Constituents of plan assets

Government securities
Cash and net current assets

Historical information

Present value of defined
benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets

Funding surplus

Experience adjustment on
plan liabilities

Experience adjustment on
plan assets

Fair Value as at
June 30, 2025

Annual Report 2025

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

383,574 311,053
34,152 21,832
55,717 55,367

(97,104) (51,342)

152,948 46,664

529,287 383,574
65,218 64,966

9,601 11,563
82,328 52,694

(97,104) (51,342)
(1,044) (12,663)
58,999 65,218

(152,948) (46,664)
(1,044) (12,663)
(153,992) (59,327)

Fair Value as at
June 30, 2024

(Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in'000) %

56,844 96.35% 61,390 94.13%
2,155 3.65% 3,828 5.87%
58,999 100% 65,218 100%

June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2025 2024 2023 2022 2021

------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----==========mmomuu-
529,287 383,574 311,053 271,584 273,051
(58,999) (65,218) (64,966) (58,697) (63,742)
470,288 318,356 246,087 212,887 209,309
(152,948) (46,664) (41,517) 4731 (42,811)
(1,044) (12,663) 8,909 (6,218) 984
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June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
21.4.10 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligaton ~  —=u- (Rupees in '000) -----
Distribution of timing of benefit payments
within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 78,626 46,236
between 2 and 5 years 344,666 346,548
between 6 and10 years 592,943 483,690
Beyond 10 years 1565988 1,553,486

21.4.11

21.4.12

21.4.13

21.4.14

Present Percentage

Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions: value of change

Actuarial Liability Defined
Benefit
Obligation
(Rupees in '000)
Discount Rate +0.5% 516,224 -2.47%
Discount Rate -0.5% 542,972 2.59%
Long Term Salary Increases +0.5% 542,048 2.41%
Long Term Salary Increases -0.5% 517,002 -2.32%

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When
calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions the same method
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the
reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the gratuity liability recognized within the unconsolidated
statement of financial position.”

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the
previous period.

The Group expects to contribute Rs 97.281 million (2024: Rs 80.268 million) to the post-retirement approved
Employees Gratuity Fund in the next financial year.

Investments out of gratuity fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 to the Act and
the rules formulated for this purpose.

The defined benefit plan expose the Group to following risks

Final salary risk - The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what the Group has
assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on the final salary, the benefit amount would also increase proportionately.

Asset volatility - Assets are invested in risk free investments of 3 months - 1 years of Government Treasury Bills.
Discount rate fluctuation - The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to corporate

bond yields. A decrease in corporate bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by
an increase in the value of the current plans’ bond holdings.
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Investment risks - The risk of the investment underperforming and not being sufficient to meet the liabilities. This
risk is mitigated by closely monitoring the performance of investment.

Risk of insufficiency of assets - This is managed by making regular contribution to the Fund as advised by the
actuary.

22 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
22.1 Contingencies

i)  During the years ended 2018 and 2019, Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) issued show cause notices in respect of tax
years 2012, 2013, 2014, 2017 and 2018 claiming Sindh Sales Tax (SST) aggregating to Rs. 193 million along with
default surcharge. SRB served these notices on the understanding that the Group had provided/rendered
taxable services covered under tariff heading 9825.0000 and 98.13 of the Second Schedule to the Sindh Sales
Tax Act, 2011 and therefore such services should be taxed and deposited accordingly. The Group filed cases
against the above notices, however, Sindh High Court dismissed the petitions filed. The Group challenged the
referred dismissal orders in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which are still pending.

i) During the year ended 1997, certain investors filed a suit against the Group and its ex-member for declaration,
injunction and recovery of damages, aggregating to Rs.70 million together with interest thereon. The Group
filed an appeal before the Sindh High Court against the suit, which is still pending.

ii) During the year ended 2008, the Islamabad Stock Exchange (Guarantee) Limited filed a complaint with the
Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP) against the Group alleging abuse of its dominant position in
securities market in contravention of Section 3 of the Competition Ordinance, 2007. The CCP directed the
Group to take corrective measures along with the other exchanges of Pakistan and in case of failure to comply
with the direction of the CCP, the Group will be liable to pay a penalty of Rs. 50 million and additional penalty
of Rs.250,000 per day for each day of non-compliance. The Group filed an appeal before the Supreme Court of
Pakistan against the CCP's order, which is still pending.

iv) During the year ended 2003, M/s. Shafi Chemical Industries (the Plaintiff) filed suit for declaration, injunction and
damages of about Rs. 1,700 million alleging unlawful and malafide acts of the Group and other defendants in
which a decree for only Rs. 49.77 million has been sought against the Group. The securities deposited by the
Plaintiff with his brokers were made worthless and they suffered losses. The written statement prepared by
Group's counsel on behalf of former directors and the Group filed in the Sindh High Court. The case fixed for
hearing of application is being adjourned from time to time on the request of the Plaintiff's advocate.

22.1.1 The total cumulative impact of contingencies stated in the above cases amounts to Rs 362.77 million. However, the
management, based on legal advisors opinions, believes that the Group has reasonable position in respect of these
litigations. Accordingly, no provision for any liability which may arise in this regard has been made in the financial
statements of the Group.

22.1.2 In addition, there are certain other cases relating to ex-member's default filed against other defendants and the
Group, wherein, the chances of decision going against the Group are remote.

22.1.3 With reference to the contingencies in associated companies,

- for Central Depository Company (CDC), refer note 13 of the consolidated financial statements of CDC for the
year ended June 30, 2025.
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- for National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL), refer note 24 of the financial statements of NCCPL
for the year ended June 30, 2025.

- for Eclear Services Limited, there are no significant contingencies as of June 30, 2025.

June 30, June 30,
22.2 Commitments 2025 2024

IT maintenance charges 106,538 174,250

23 LISTING FEE

Annual fee 574,923 534,095
Initial listing fee 97,993 201,987
Sukuk auction fee 91,397 26,224

764,313 762,306

24 INCOME FROM EXCHANGE OPERATIONS

Trading fee 715,832 395,964
Facilities and equipment fee 285,257 234,693
Income from non-trading facilities 278,446 320,352
Regulatory fee 117,627 56,481
Membership fee 2,790 2,720
Other fee 22,080 5,440

1,422,032 1,015,650

25 MARK-UP / INTEREST INCOME

Government securities 173,172 234,461
PLS saving accounts 22,689 33,632
195,861 268,093
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26.1

26.2

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits

Rent, rates and taxes

Fuel and power

Repairs and maintenance

Computer maintenance and related expenses
Insurance

Printing and stationery

Donations

Auditors’ remuneration

Legal and professional charges
Depreciation

Amortization

Travelling and conveyance

General office expense

Receptions, meetings and functions
Contribution to CCPCF 0.1%

Contribution to CMDF

Advertisement, marketing and development
SECP supervision fee

Provision for trade debts considered doubtful
Security expenses

Subscription fee

Training and development

Other expenses

June 30,
Note 2025

June 30,
2024

Annual Report 2025

26.1 1,040,149 1,033,072
19,539 19,730
63,063 66,875
104,220 89,848
204,935 235,606
21,993 23,883
4,335 6,266
26.2 18,730 11,050
26.3 6,007 4,123
24,520 30,942
6.1 155,731 170,199
7.1 164,565 150,031
22,102 10,640
8,213 8,177
25,388 15,728
8,414 5,526
55,812 -
10,924 31,691
21,863 17,780
111 25,300 15,460
32,422 30,776
11,680 20,247
3,177 4,462
7,904 1,857
2,060,986 2,003,969

Included herein is a sum of Rs.80.268(2024: Rs.65.636) million in respect of retirement benefits.

Donations are paid to Institute of Business Administration (IBA), Lady Dufferin Hospital, Bait-ul-Sukoon, FESF Deaf
Reach and etc. as per the policy approved by Board of Directors, in which none of the directors of the Group is

interested in any capacity.
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June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
26.3 Auditors' remuneration

Annual audit & consolidation 4,665 2,795
Half yearly review 700 500
Review of code of corporate governance 100 70
Other certifications 400 350
Out of pocket expenses 142 408

6,007 4123

27 OTHER INCOME

Exchange Gain 3,037 23,027
Gain on revaluation of investment property 551 4,013
Gain on sale of fixed assets 15,395 10,794
Dividend income 1,250 1,600
Liabilities written back 91,506 -

Others 8,070 13,788

119,809 53,222

28 TAX RECONCILIATION

Profit before income tax, minimum tax differential 1,928,013 1,109,750
and final tax

Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate of 29% 559,124 321,828
Impact of super tax 95,020 1,785
Tax on bonus shares 16,482 -
Share of profit of equity-accounting investees taxed at

reduced rate (311,916) (222,021)
Tax impact on foreign income 37,169 (88,424)
Impact of expense not deductible for tax (11,639) (9,517)
Tax under minimum tax regime u/s 153 = 58,486
Other adjustments 23,050 19,810

407,290 81,947

29 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net profit after taxation 1,520,723 1,027,609
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year 801,476 801,476
Basic and diluted earnings per share (Rupees) 190 1.28
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30.1

30.2

31

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Managerial Remuneration
Annual performance payout
Gratuity

Fees

Number

Managerial Remuneration
Annual performance payout
Gratuity

Fees

Number

June 30, 2025

Annual Report 2025

Chief
Executive
Officer Directors  Executives Total
------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----==========muu=

64,463 = 549,854 614,317
3,699 - 40,468 44,166

= = 40,237 40,237

- 21,700 - 21,700

68,162 21,700 630,559 720,421

3 10 125
June 30, 2024
Chief
Executive
Officer Directors  Executives Total
------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----==========n=--

64,325 - 543,434 607,759
21,401 - 93,321 114,722

- - 39,138 39,138

- 13,925 - 13,925

85,726 13,925 675,893 775,544

1 10 124

The Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of the Group has also been provided with the free use of Group owned and

maintained car.

During the year, after resignation of CEO, the BoD appointed Shareholder Director as interim CEO from
September 03, 2024 to November 17, 2024 with the approval of SECP. The new CEO was appointed by the BoD

with SECP’s approval from November 18, 2024.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related parties comprise of associates, staff gratuity fund, directors and key management personnel. The
Group in the normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties.
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June 30, June 30,
2025 2024
311 Following are the details of transactions with related parties:

Listing Fee
Common Directorship

Power Cement Limited - 1,605
Fauji Foods Limited = 1,955
Samba Bank Limited = 2,118
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 1,688 1,603
The Searle Company Limited = 2,248
United Brands Limited = 521
IBL Healthcare Limited - 1,044
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 2,444 2,252
EFU Life Assurance Limited 2,179 2,264
Dawood Lawrencepur Mills Limited 1,851 1,785
The Organic Meat Company Limited 1,527 1,043
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited 971 764
International Steel Limited 2,318 2,195
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 6,705 -
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 3,962 -
23,645 21,397

Facilities and Equipment Fee
Common Directorship

Power Cement Limited - 12
Fauji Foods Limited = 12
Samba Bank Limited = 12
Arch Sons 165 158
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited 12 12
Engro Fertilizers Ltd. - -
The Searle Company Limited - 12
United Brands Limited = 12
IBL Healthcare Limited = 12
Sui Northern Gas Pipeline Limited 12 12
EFU Life Assurance Limited 12 12
Dawood Lawrencepur Mills Limited 12 12
The Organic Meat Company Limited 12 12
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited 12 12
International Steel Limited 12 12
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited 12 -
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 216 -
477 314
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LAN Connectivity Charges
Associate
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

Miscellaneous Income

Fauji Foods Limited

Power Cement Limited

Sui Southern gas Company Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited

Dividend income

Associate

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

VIS Credit Rating Company Limited

Rental Income from investment property
Associate Company

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
National Clearing Company of Pakistan

Institute of Financial Management of Pakistan

CDC Fee
Associate Company
CDC fee - Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Annual Subscription Fee & Board Evaluation
Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG)

Retirement benefit plan
Payment made to gratuity fund during the year

Contribution
Common directorship

Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1% of total revenue

Reimbursement of Expenses
Associate Company
China Financial Futures Exchange

June 30,
2025

Annual Report 2025

June 30,

2024

3,701 4,233
= 55
= 55
55 -
= 125
405 -
460 235
337,174 206,805
305,045 74,594
1,250 1,600
643,469 282,999
6,701 6,417
21,866 18,707
534 -
29,101 25,124
1219 1,164
602 481
82,238 52,694
8,248 5,526
8,248 5,526
2,240 2,600

245




Pakistan Stock Exchange

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

31.2

246

Following are the details of outstanding balances
with related parties:

Listing Fee Receivable
Common Directorship
IBL Healthcare Limited
Samba Bank Limited

Facilities and Equipment Receivable
Common Directorship

Samba Bank Limited

United Brands Limited

The Searle Company Limited

Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

Miscellaneous Income Receivable
Fauji Foods Limited
Sui Southem gas Company Limited

LAN Connectivity Charges Receivable
Associate Company
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Electric charges payable
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited

Retirement benefit plan
Payable to gratuity fund

Contribution payable 0.1% / 1% of Revenue
Common Directorship

Centralized Customer Protection Fund (CCPF) 0.1% of
total revenue

Receivable against Expenses
Associate Company
China Financial Futures Exchange

June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

= 130
= 750

= 880

24 12
1176

1,200 96

3,056 2,397

= 583

20,067 22,127

942 3,993

2,238 2,649
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33

331

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Investments

Loans and advances
Trade debts

Other receivables

Long term deposits

Financial liabilities

Long term deposits

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances
Investments

Loans and advances
Trade debts

Other receivables

Long term deposits

Financial liabilities
Long term deposits
Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of long term payable
Trade and other payables

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group is exposed to the following risks.

Market risk

June 30, 2025
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Financial Financial Financial Total
assets assets liabilities
at amortized FVOCI at amortized
cost cost
------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ----=======m=mmmmmmemee
464,596 = = 464,596
2,398,745 314,300 = 2,713,045
77,065 = = 77,065
225,798 = = 225,798
100,717 = = 100,717
41,832 = = 41,832
= = 548,086 548,086
- - 2,871 2,871
- - 160,598 160,598
- - 2,121,365 2,121,365
June 30, 2024
Financial Financial Financial Total
assets assets liabilities
at amortized FVOCI at amortized
cost cost
------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----========mmmmmmmemm-
198,221 - - 198,221
2,224,310 194,565 - 2,418,875
86,807 - - 86,807
448,628 - - 448,628
95,699 - - 95,699
41,832 - - 41,832
- - 469,981 469,981
- - 157,601 157,601
- - 1,429 1,429
- - 2,072,615 2,072,615

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. Market risk comprise of interest rate risk, equity price risk and currency risk. The Group is exposed to
market risk as a result of mismatches or gaps in the amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that mature or
reprice in a given period. The Group manages this risk by matching the repricing of financial assets and liabilities

through risk management strategies.
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33.1.1

33.1.2

248

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily
to the Group's short term investments and bank deposits in saving accounts. At the statement of financial position
date, the interest rate profile of the ‘s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

June 30, 2025
Interest / mark-up bearing

Effective Upto six More than Total
yield / months  six months
mark-up rate
%

Financialassets (Rupees in '000) -----------

Market Treasury Bills 1195 2,398,745 - 2,398,745

Bank Balances 12.86 464,352 - 464,352
2,863,097 - 2,863,097

June 30, 2024
Interest / mark-up bearing

Effective Upto six More than Total
yield / months  six months
mark-up rate

Financial assets

Market Treasury Bills 2053 2,224,310 - 2,224,310
Bank Balances 20.5-20.75 198,006 - 198,006
2,422,316 - 2,422,316

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of Group's income for the year to a reasonably possible change

in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.
Effect on profit
June 30, June 30,
2025 2024

----- (Rupees in '000) -----

Change in basis point

+100 28,631 24,223
- 100 (28,631) (24,223)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group's exposure to the risk of change in foreign exchange
rates mainly relates to long term payable to Shenzhen Stock Exchange amounting to Rs. 160.357 million (US
dollars 0.565 million) and the bank balance in saving accounts maintained in US dollars amounting to Rs. 140.735
million (US dollars 0.496 million) (2024: Rs 33.355 million) (US dollars 0.118 million).
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33.2.1

33.2.2

333

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar exchange rate,
with all other variables held constant, of the Group's income before tax and reserves.

Change in Effect on Effect on
US dollar profit before reserves

rate tax
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Assets as at June 30, 2025 +10% 7,927 7,927
-10% (7,927) (7,927)
Liabilities as at June 30, 2025 +10% 38,369 38,369
-10% (38,369) (38,369)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk:
June 30, June 30,

2025 2024
----- (Rupees in '000) -----
Bank balances 464,511 198,163
Trade debts 225,798 448,628
Loans and advances 63,914 86,807
Short term investments 2,398,745 2,224,310
Long term deposits 41,832 41,832
Other receivables 100,717 95,915

3,295,517 3,095,655

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors affect the group of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Group's total credit exposure. The
Group's portfolio of financial assets is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit
worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentration of credit risk. The table below analyses

the long term credit quality of the Group'’s exposure with respect to cash at bank only:
June 30, June 30,

2025 2024

------- (%) --=----
Ratings * 94.75 78.66
AAA 341 21.09
AA+ 1.84 -
AA - 0.25
AA- 100.00 100.00

* Ratings are performed by PACRA and VIS Credit Rating Co.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulties in releasing funds to meet commitments
associated with financial liabilities. Liquidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an
amount close to its fair value.
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33.5

250

The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring losses or
risking damage to the Group's reputation. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of Group's financial
liability:

June 30, 2025

On Upto Upto More than Total
demand three 12 one year
months months

-------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------=-====-==cnu--
Long term deposits 544,626 = = 3,460 548,086
Trade and other liabilities 2,121,365 = = = 2,121,365
Long term payable = = 160,598 = 160,598
Total 2,665,991 = 160,598 3,460 2,830,049

June 30, 2024

On Upto Upto More than Total
demand three 12 one year
months months

-------------------- (Rupees in '000) -----=========zuuu--
Long term deposits 466,521 - - 3,460 469,981
Trade and other liabilities 2,072,615 - - - 2,072,615
Long term payable - - 157,601 - 157,601
Total 2,539,136 - 157,601 3460 2,700,197

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Fair value hierarchy

The Group uses the following hierarchy for disclosure of the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:

Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets.

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are
observable, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based
on observable market data.

The table analyses financial and non-financial assets measured at the end of the reporting period by the level in
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorized:
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34.1

34.2

35

35.1

June 30, 2025
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial and non-financial assets
measured at fair value

Financial assets at - = 314,300 314,300
fair value through OCI'

Property and equipment - - 3,921,056 3,921,056
Investment property - - 649,876 649,876

June 30, 2024
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial and non-financial assets
measured at fair value

Financial assets at - - 194,565 194,565
fair value through OCI'

Property and equipment - - 4,029,019 4,029,019
Investment property - - 596,086 596,086

As at June 30, 2025, the Group's long term investments are in unquoted securities (see note 10), which are carried
at fair value. The fair value of such investments is determined by using level 3 techniques. The Group has used
income approach (i.e. a present value technique) to value its investment in (PMEX). For this purpose, the financial
projections have been derived from the business plans prepared by the management and duly approved by PMEX
Board of Directors. The fair value of investment in VIS Credit Rating Company has been determined based on the
net asset value due to limited financial information available.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The number of employees as at June 30, 2025 were 215 (June 30, 2024: 224).

Average number of employee during the year as at June 30, 2025 were 225 (June 30, 2024: 228).

GENERAL

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 15, 2025 proposed a final cash dividend at the rate
of 17% (2024: 10%) i.e. 1.70 (2024: Re 1 per share), for the year ended 30 June 2025 amounting to 1.362 Billion

(2024: Rs 801.48) million for the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting to be held on
October 28, 2025.
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35.2  The figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand Rupees unless otherwise stated.

35.3 Corresponding figures have been re-arranged and re-classified for the purpose of better presentation. However,
there are no material reclassification to report.

36 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorized for issue on September 15, 2025 by the Board of Directors of

the Group.
o
| L vl
-] o
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Chairperson
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Number of
Shareholders

843
710
528
983
319
141
102
95
65
25
23
18
50
11

Shareholdings

1to 100
101 to 500
501 to 1000
1001 to 5000
5001 to 10000
10001 to 15000
15001 to 20000
20001 to 25000
25001 to 30000
30001 to 35000
35001 to 40000
40001 to 45000
45001 to 50000
50001 to 55000
55001 to 60000
60001 to 65000
65001 to 70000
70001 to 75000
75001 to 80000
80001 to 85000
85001 to 90000
90001 to 95000
95001 to 100000
100001 to 105000
105001 to 110000
110001 to 115000
115001 to 120000
120001 to 125000
125001 to 130000
130001 to 135000
140001 to 145000
145001 to 150000
150001 to 155000
155001 to 160000
160001 to 165000
165001 to 170000
175001 to 180000
180001 to 185000
185001 to 190000
195001 to 200000
200001 to 205000
205001 to 210000
210001 to 215000
215001 to 220000
220001 to 225000

Total
Shares Held

26,279
261,253
484,455

2,819,034
2,592,491
1,818,981
1,909,988
2,269,144
1,867,879
827,263
899,345
780,607
2,482,050
582,703
649,882
444,370
680,727
659,426
714,359
333,425
266,500
94,267
4,284,053
715,547
1,294,863
791,495
590,646
749,749
896,872
667,814
142,000
2,089,534
461,000
319,400
486,300
167,000
711,994
366,000
377,500
3,196,000
608,335
622,908
427,000
439,767
888,869

Number of
Shareholders

W

MNP PRPPRPPORPPOFRPPPDMDFPFAEPFPNDNRPPRPRPPORNPPOORPDMANDMEFEFNDMNFRPONMEFE®REWEERE

Shareholdings

230001 to 235000
240001 to 245000
250001 to 255000
260001 to 265000
275001 to 280000
280001 to 285000
285001 to 290000
300001 to 305000
310001 to 315000
325001 to 330000
330001 to 335000
340001 to 345000
345001 to 350000
350001 to 355000
360001 to 365000
375001 to 380000
390001 to 395000
400001 to 405000
420001 to 425000
440001 to 445000
445001 to 450000
485001 to 490000
495001 to 500000
500001 to 505000
510001 to 515000
520001 to 525000
525001 to 530000
550001 to 555000
580001 to 585000
600001 to 605000
610001 to 615000
620001 to 625000
635001 to 640000
650001 to 655000
675001 to 680000
700001 to 705000
750001 to 755000
775001 to 780000
800001 to 805000
805001 to 810000
815001 to 820000
855001 to 860000
875001 to 880000
915001 to 920000
950001 to 955000

Total
Shares Held

702,528
240,418
752,432
263,591
830,000
280,934
579,539
1,800,000
313,000
650,000
330,058
685,000
1,396,908
704,465
361,000
1,134,083
1,172,520
2,403,000
423,000
444,000
1,796,000
487,870
2,991,166
504,000
513,000
523,681
527,199
1,102,953
581,194
1,803,140
610,000
1,245,000
636,705
650,000
675,000
3,500,758
750,000
775,000
6,402,993
806,000
817,000
856,195
879,953
1,838,906
1,901,000
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Shareholdings

1000001 to 1005000
1050001 to 1055000
1075001 to 1080000
1080001 to 1085000
1100001 to 1105000
1105001 to 1110000
1110001 to 1115000
1125001 to 1130000
1150001 to 1155000
1160001 to 1165000
1200001 to 1205000
1230001 to 1235000
1250001 to 1255000
1270001 to 1275000
1285001 to 1290000
1325001 to 1330000
1335001 to 1340000
1350001 to 1355000
1375001 to 1380000
1380001 to 1385000
1395001 to 1400000
1400001 to 1405000
1415001 to 1420000
1445001 to 1450000
1485001 to 1490000
1550001 to 1555000
1585001 to 1590000
1595001 to 1600000
1600001 to 1605000
1610001 to 1615000
1625001 to 1630000
1635001 to 1640000
1675001 to 1680000
1700001 to 1705000
1800001 to 1805000
1825001 to 1830000
1875001 to 1880000
1885001 to 1890000
1900001 to 1905000
2000001 to 2005000
2055001 to 2060000
2060001 to 2065000
2200001 to 2205000
2225001 to 2230000
2335001 to 2340000

Total
Shares Held

8,000,416
1,052,953
1,077,000
3,243,850
2,202,953
1,109,500
1,114,000
1,129,683
1,152,953
1,164,000
1,202,953
1,233,773
1,250,000
2,546,000
1,285,000
2,656,010
1,335,741
1,352,953
1,375,961
1,381,194
2,797,000
1,402,953
1,415,800
1,446,000
1,486,500
1,550,000
9,539,718
1,598,000
36,867,419
1,610,000
1,625,000
1,639,853
1,678,500
3,404,403
5,402,953
1,825,920
1,876,000
1,889,360
20,932,483
2,000,000
4,112,613
2,061,500
2,202,953
4,457,359
2,335,500

Number of
Shareholders

Shareholdings

2500001 to 2505000
2530001 to 2535000
2665001 to 2670000
2710001 to 2715000
2800001 to 2805000
2825001 to 2830000
2850001 to 2855000
2890001 to 2895000
3100001 to 3105000
3160001 to 3165000
3200001 to 3205000
3390001 to 3395000
3560001 to 3565000
3600001 to 3605000
4105001 to 4110000
5000001 to 5005000
5230001 to 5235000
5755001 to 5760000
5940001 to 5945000
6400001 to 6405000
6670001 to 6675000
7000001 to 7005000
7995001 to 8000000
8010001 to 8015000
9400001 to 9405000
9600001 to 9605000
11780001 to 11785000
13890001 to 13895000
16810001 to 16815000

28240001 to 28245000

39805001 to 39810000

40070001 to 40075000

64115001 to 64120000

Total
Shares Held

2,500,000
2,532,278
2,667,500
2,710,458
2,802,535
2,825,000
2,850,000
2,893,541
3,100,000
3,162,541
3,200,000
3,390,000
3,563,777
3,600,000
4,105,906
5,000,000
5,232,011
5,758,355
5,943,934
6,403,521
6,672,846
7,000,500
7,999,906
8,014,721
9,400,000
9,600,000
11,782,223
13,890,000
16,813,446
28,241,000
39,805,018
120,221,490

64,118,128

136250001 to 136255000 136,251,022

801,476,600




Categories of Shareholders

As at June 30, 2025

Categories of Shareholders

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouse(s)
and minor children(s)

Mr. Nihal Cassim

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

Mr. Nadeem Naqgvi

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties
Ubiquity Trading Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Askari Bank Limited

NIT and ICP

Banks, Development Financial Institutions, Non-Banking
Financial Institutions

Insurance Companies
Modarabas and Mutual Funds
General Public

Local

Foreign

Others

Joint Stock Companies & Trusts
Foreign Companies

Total

Shareholders holding 10% or more
China Financial Futures Exchange Company Limited

Annual Report 2025

No. of Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
/Folios

1 817,000 0.10%

1 1,500 0.00%

1 1,000 0.00%

1 200,000 0.03%

1 40,073,830 5.00%

1 3,600,000 0.45%

- - 0.00%

2 23,486,292 2.93%

2 2,264,521 0.28%

13 21,221,058 2.65%

4153 145,540,710 18.16%

161 199,405,501 24.88%

17 364,865,188 45.52%

4354 801,476,600 100.00%

136,251,022 17.00%

136,251,022 17.00%

Total
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Auditors’ Report on Operations and IT Systems

KPMG

KPMEG Teseer Hadi & Co.

Charored Accouniants

Shpikdy Sultan Trusl Bulding Mo. 3, Beauwmnont Foad
Karachi 75530 Pakivlan

#82 (21) 37131000, Fax +82 (21) 35635005

Indepondent Limited Assurance Roport to Pakisian Stock Exchange Limited on the
Operations and [T Systems

Infreduciion

W, KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co, (KPMGTH, we. us, our) were ongaged by Pakistan Stock Exchangn
Limitad (the Exchange) in scoondance with the requissmen) of reguiation 98 [7) of the Seconibes
Exchingits (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 (e Regllations) o cary el enniaal
Regulatory Compsance Review foe the period beginning 1 July 2024 and ending 30 June 2025 (the
e panicd) under 1SAE 3402 “Assurance Reports on Conlrols &1 & Service Oeganizafion”,
reapect of Opsrations and Enformatan Technessay (IT) Sylems of the Exchangs lor e year ended

Jung 30, 2025.

Vie ane pleased W submil our reasconadie RESUrENCE Meport under |SAE 3402, This neport describas
thie design and opeating efeciivirass of thr inkema! conirols placed on Excnangs s Speraions and
InhImT#Hﬂ:lgﬂlﬂ Sysboms for the year ondpd Juna 30, 2038 in pocordance with tha
ciitena stpuilabed in the Regulations.

Setpe

Char scope of Bervice wias 1o neport on the design and oparating efectiveness of contrals nalabed ba
caitraly obeclives sialed in Hie ‘desciptions of e Oparabicns and IT Systems of the Exchange for
efectionic trading sennces throughoud the pencd” (the Description) {anmesed haneasth in Seclion 2)
The Dremoription indicates that cerfain control objectves specified thenpin ane only b pchived d
compiamantary Pafcipont Confrols, contemplated in the design of the cantrois of the Exchange, am
Butably oesgned and opsrating sffackyvely, alorg wilh related conbrols a1 Bha Exchanga.

Wa hiave not evalumbed the suiisbiity of P design andior operatng effeciveness of such Paricgand

Management's Besponsibilities
Tha managemaril of e Exchangs s responsiis to ensure that the Exchange complies with &l
mﬂuﬂhmqummmmﬂhEﬂmum

for prevanting detecting
olgs responsible for snswing that Be s1af nvolved n managing Lha compiance of the apphcatie
slabulory requirements ang prapedy irained and sysiems are propsdly updaled,
Owr indopendones and Guality Control

¥i'e have complied with he independence and other ethical reguirsmenis of the Code of Ethics for
Chartered Accountants issued by the instiute of Chafered Accoomiznts of Pakistion, which s founded
on fundamaniad principles of integrity, objechvity, professional competance and dus cale,
confidentiality and professional behaviour

i
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KPMG!

KPMG Tazoar Hadi & Co.

The Frm apples internatanal Standard oo Cualty Management (ISOM 1) “Gualty Manageman! it
Firrs that Pedorm Audits or Feviews of Financial Stabements, ar Olber Assirance o Felabed
Sarvices Engagements” ard acoondingdy mainlains a comprohensin syslem of guality conthal
incluging documansed policies and procedures regarding compiianoe wilh ethical raquindrmisnts,
prefessional standards and applicable logal and rogulalory requiraments

Dur Ao porsilities

(Char responaibality is 1o axpress @n cpinion on th descriphon, providing manlgament stalemants an
trwp dasign, oparating efficacy of coningls and the conlrol objectrees stabed in the descipton and
accompanying Management asserions, based on ot procedunss

‘Wi conduched our review N accoidance with the Inlsrmabonal Standard on Assurance Engagement
{150 3402 “Assuranon Reports on conbrods ol @ Servioe Organtzation”, This skandard requines thar
vew plan and perform our procedunes (o obiain reasonable assurancs aboul whether, in afl mabenial
mmmﬁm preganded, ord the conbrols are suitably designed and opafaling

A Type N assurance engagement as defined in FSAE 3402, reparts on the descrplion, design. and

tha assessmint of the risks tha the descrigbon is nok fairky presenied, and tha conlrols are nol
suitobly deakprod o operading offectively.

Dur procedures ncluded lesling the operatng effecivensss of Bhose conirgls, on a semple basis
which 'wa conslid NECEsEary 10 privide Masonatk sssurancs thal the conirel objectves stated in
s derseripBon wers achisved Wa evaluated tha ovarall peesentation of the desciption, the sultnbity
ol the obgecthees staled therein, and thi sutability of ihe eitens specified by tha Exchange.

W Bekewe thik e evidance wé hinie obtained s suffician] and appropriale 1o provide B Basis fof our
conchunion

This e ks ot limited prirmariy 10 enquines of employecs and review of minutes of meetings bul
a0 inciides inspection of reconds, and other evidence gathéting procedures. &F approprabs

b paetcular, we coreid oul the Tollewng Mrals procadun:

»  Review ol the destriplion and accomparying dsseriens for complebensds, socuracy snd mathsd ol
prosantalion as prepared by manspement of ihe Exchangs,

+  Review ol conirol cbeactives and control aclivities as prepared by managernen! of the auchangs for
ihee design, implementabion, and operating efecivoness

¢ Wakthrough of the procetess whess the deaign was comples and idenlifed the confrols b b
stnd for ofeciveness

#  Tha fest of controls on the bases of tha test of one for the technical, Automated, and govermancs
lwed conints. and

= Review of the axcoplons ilentfied, decussed ha exceptions wilh tha managemeand, and finalized
the exoephions for roporing
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KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.

inheseni Emitations

Ber-francial information s subgect b mome inharent imiations. than inancial informaticn, ghen ha
characiensbcs of e selecied information and e methods used hof dedsmining and asceriining
tuch mnformadion, Cusitath intorprotations of relvance, malerality @ the accuwasy of data are
saibisel 1o individual attumpbions and judgements. Furtharmane, the nature and mathods used to
delsrmme such mianrmation, as wel the evaleation cabeia and the precsion thereod, may changs ower
A,

Canclasion

Bosed on the procedunes perfonmed as menboned in “Ouwr Responsibiibes® and ovidenoe obtamed
nothing has come 1o owr atbenbion that causes us o baleve hat the Exchangs i not in complianca
with applcable stabuiony and fequisiony requinsments during the mvew poriod, in a8 maderial

respects.
Dale: 11 Seplember 2025 HPMG Taseor Hadi & Co.
Karpchi Chartersd Accountanis

Partner: Syed Ahson Al Shah
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LEAME 101000022 Faor 22410835
Wishale: ware piel o pll el mhollipes com.pi

] PAKISTAN STOCK EXCHAMGE LIMITED
U (Formery Karacti Siock Lirmited)
,k Enchange Buiiding, Sk Phecaed, Karnchi - TA000, Pakistan.

Fol. Mo, PSXY

Syed Alson Ali Shah,
KEPMG Taseer Hadi & Ca,,
Shvaith St Trvoy Bwileiiee Mo,
Sraumont Koo,

Kook, Prkivan

pae 15- Lep = 2026

Dhear Sir,

Operationsl and Regulatory IT Systems Review of the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Linited umder Securities Exchanges (Licensing and Operations) Regaltioas, 2016.

This represeniation betior i provided to KPMG Teseer Hadi & Co. (KPMGTH, you) in
commeciion with the mandaiory annual Regulaiory Compliance Review o b conducted as
required vide Regulatson 16 (T} of Securitics Exchanges (Licensing and Cpeaisens )
Regulationd, 2016 (e Regelatioas) for the financisl year 2024-202% beginning from | July
204 b 30 Jues 2025 (e review period), for the purposs of expressing an opiniom ns 13 whother
Pakistan Stock Exchange Linsiicd (PSX, the Exchange, we, us, our) is in compliance with the
relevaiil |aws, stetutes, rules, regulations, directivesipeidelines fssued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakisan (SECP, ihe Commission).
W conlflem, to the best of our knowledge and belicf, thaiy
1. The deseripiicn firly presents the system made svailsble 1o sser entities of the systom
during some or all of the period under review for processing their transacticas and
managemest of their scrvice. The eriteria we used in making this assertbon wers that the
sccompanyng deseription;
* Presents how the systzms made available 10 woer entitics wore desigmed and
insplemented fo process ~elevam] iransactives, inghuding

s The types of services provided and classes of iransact lons processed;

b. The procedures, within both mulomated and manial systema, by which those
teansacticas are iniiabed, authorzed, reconded, processed, comecied as mecesiary,
s transfiomed bo the reports presented to user entities of the systom.

¢, The relased records, supporting isformation, and specific scoounts that ars wed o
initiate, ssthorize, record, process, amd roport irasssctions; this imcludes the
correction of incorrect imformsation and Bow information & transferred (o the
neports prosentod (0 user entities of the system,

d. How the system capheres significast cvents and conditice:s, other tham tramanciions
e, The process used bo prepare reporls provided Bo user entities of the system,

Page 1 of &
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f, Speecified conbrol objectives and controls apart from where identificd mthis reporn
are designed bo ackiove ihose ohjectives.

g The proccss mscd 1o prepare roponts or otber information provided 82 e wser
cntites;

h. anfnwﬂﬂmimﬂwﬂmhfwﬁlhm
communication systems ({incleding ihe related business processes), comirol
Bctivitios, and mon iioreg eonirods ofer than those requiring ferther im provemest
based an the observations identified i this repoet that are relevant 6 processing
snd repording rsdactions of user entities of the system,

. mum«umamhumlnumdhsmm
deseribed, whils scknowledging that the controls refated 1o the canired objectives were
suitably designed amd operated effectively throughout the pericd under review 1o
nchieve hose contral chjectives excepl For those matiers within the service sudisor's
ESSUTRNGS PEpor.

2, The deseription of Operations snd 1T Systems inchudes relevant details of chanpes o the

Exchange’s sysiem during e mudil period covered.

3. The controls relased 10 the eontrol objectives stated in the accompanying description win
sudinbly designed and operated efféctively throiughout (b2 period ander review 1o achieve
those control objectives.!

Criteria used ln making mssertomss

v The risks that threaiensd schirvement of (he conirol abjectives sited in the description
have been identificd by the Exehange,

®  The controls identified im the desoription would, if operaling as describec, provide
reasomable asiurance thal Bwes risks would nof prevent the comtrol shjectives sated i the
doscription from belng schived; sed

*  The controls were consisteutly applied as designed, inchoding whether manual controls
were applhed By individuals who have the appropriaie competence and authority.

Description of Operations sud IT Systems of Pakistan Sleck Exchamge Llmited (the
Exchange)

The controd envirenment within which the Exchinge operates ks nol restricted to fhe conirol
whiectives snd procedures outlined in this deseription,

The Exchange maintains a kigh standand of good governance snd has implemensed govemance
arrangements which are consistent with the Code of Corporate Governance, 2019, An overviow
of those components of the Exchsnpe's Code of corparmte goversance which are relevant s the
operation of securiies exchange is set out below.

The Exchangs was incorporated in 1949 s a company Limited by Guarastee. As 2 resull of
demnutzbization, the Exchange was corporatized and demstunlived as o public company limited

ha:-;i__h@
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by shares snder the tiame of "Farschi Stock Exchange Limbed, with effect from August 37,
012, Subssquently, the three stock exchanpes of ihe country - Kamchi Stock Exclaisge, Lahore
Sinck Exchange and |slamahad Stock Kxchange - were integrated info Pakisinn Siock Fxchange
Limited {ihw Exchange) on fanuary 11, 2006

The Exchangs provides a relinble, orderly, liquid and effichens digitized market p ace where
inwestors cam buy and sell lissed companies” common stocks and ather securities. For over 60
years, the Exchange has facilitated capital formation, seeving 8 wide spectrum of participasts,
including individeal and instittional imvessars, the irading commemnity and listed companies.
Internial Audit, co-sourced wish am nudit firm, reports 1o the Audit Committee, Internal audiss
of all operstional srees of the Exchange are individunlly scoped with due conssdemtion af the
relevamt risks for that arcs, ansd approved by the Audit Commiitee, The Board reies on the
inputs and recommendalions of the [stemal Audin function through its Awdit Commitios on the
ndequacy and effectivonessy af imtemal controls bn he crganEmiion amd take sppropriale
IS ASUNTS,

The Exchaugs is abso required by SECP o go through a negulstory audit by independent
and ilars.

(peratiomal Gaveraasoe

The primary departencnieidivinions that have direct comtral over the operstivns snd gystems of
weuriies cxchange e Trading & TREC Affais Depariment, Listing Diepartment, and
Informaiion Technalogy Divisien, The Operslons ane led by Chief Markot Operathss Officer
ACMIOD) wiio heads the Trading & TREC Affairs Deparinscat asd Chief Listing Cifficer {TLO)
whis heads the Listing deparimerit. Both CMOC snd CLO report to the Chiel Executive Orficer
(CED,

Infoensmiion Tecknology Division is hesded by Chiol |nlormstion Officer (CI0) whos reposs io
Cliied Executive (HTicer (CEQ and s resposnible for application development, sofiware quality
nssunes, netwerk, mfmshncione managensent, system management, detehases, TT Suppost &
Services and IT Andit coondination & complissee, T also provides suppat tis bolh business
teams and external market participants for operational activities relaled to tradieg, post rde
reporting. management infiwmation sysoms, risk mansgensent of rading. data disscmination,
indices calculation, publication of datn snd comnectivity.

Orperatinnnl Resilie e

The Exchasge operates using n dus] site modal for key functions, with main operaticnal e (s
inesied wi the Exchange Bukldings in Kemchl, Disavier recavery site m madntaimed for its
techaalbogy systems where disasier recovery plans are iested pestadically in aocordamce with a
centrally managed 1esting schedule.

Page 3 of 6
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Coaatrol Objectives
B¢t cal fm this document are the control objectives implemented over Opertions of the

Hmwmtm:pnﬁftmdmhlh“lﬂﬂdhwbmtmh

Exchamge by

achéeve each af the comiml chjedives.

Managensent has preparcd a design of contreds comprising of the control ehbjectives supported
by el nctivities which provides reasomalbide assamnce thal:

[mdtfmtives are Eaken bo msininin sdequabe sirocture of IT departmont. Emphasks i given bo
maintsin [T strategy, & forem [s maintained for supporting key IT decisions and rogquired
documentation is maintnined for efficient and effective funciioning of mfomation systems.
informaison securicy office has been established, messures Bave been ken lo srenhen
security of informalion systoms and underlined policies & procedsncs have been deve loped
sdequaie documentation is ssaimained for IT departmend, informalion systems, nformation
sysiems management and acchitecture,

measures rebated o servics dellvery have been takien which iscludes establishment of
helpdesk, implememtation of helpdesk application, Darmarcumd time of services,
implementation of problem management processes and messures for Gontinuoes
improvemeni of Eformation systenns & relabed services.

adequale meassres are i place to review and monitor the IT systems on timely basis,
mmhmmﬁm“m-ﬁ!ﬁmm t
individuals and adequabe nssasures kave been taken 1o maintain cybersecurity.

changes to informalion systems sre swhject §o0 n controlled process including formal
requests, approvals, suthoeizations, smalysis, developmiot in sepregated enviromments by
developers (ol involved in sdmisistration of systoms), 1esting for Quality Asmermsce (QA),
Liser Acceptance Testing [UAT) inm testing envirenment, changes to production and
logging.

changes o sccess are logged, spproved and suthorized for creation, modification . privilege
wssignmsemt and revocation of esers along with periodic review of ugers’ secess rights.
operalimg sysbenns, databases, vimual machimes, metwork doviees, seeurity devices are
coifigared to restrict mecess, provade required services and secarity pammiiins anc
gonfigured to maintxin confdentiality, integriry snd wvailability of information sysiems.
physical access is restricted to prevent usauthorized access to the Exchange data centres
#nd envirommental conbrols fecilitate confinued operation af information sysiems.
poricdic testing and resltime data roplication 1o sepport the business continuity sed
recavery from disaster durmeg adverse ovents.

in case of Braker's defasll, i |8 restricted from taking new peaition in sy markes,

Page 4 of 6
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ihe irades are tagged with relevant clients and that the trades ane not processed ia excess of
baying capasiy of the Broker.

thve brading few i charged homogenously,

ke bransactioes taking place via trading sysiom cannol be cancellied onge processed excep
under the provision of P3X Regalatios £.18.7.

the cwders cannot be executed ! modified feancelled durimg the pre-open Hﬂl:ll'l...ﬂﬂ'iﬂl
day chosing prices are utilized when orders are mot processed during the trading session and
that the tick siee will be | {ome) paisa for orders.

the trading limits and broker exposures are controfled,
the secoritics cannol be traded in negative ticks.

bisnk sales canmot be made unloss marked & the time of onder placement and thal ke blank
salle amounis are allowed im 8 specified threshold.

ihe closing price of securilics i determined as volume weighted average.
wetivity bogs of brokers are maintised.

Participant Cenirals
Achievement of cach of the control objectives sel cul above is also dependent on participants
meistaining s cffective conlrol eavironment and implementing controls such as

Descsmenting policies and procedures (Incheding mnsaction processing procedures, risk
masagement Policles such as conditions and restrictions for system use, good passwond
practices, software copyvight, Restrictions and visus progection, lcensed Oypseraling Syslem
& Anti-virus and jts latest paschesfupdates, firewall, two faclor token security and
coimanuniention [Enk)

Restricting access 0o operzling systems, spplications, databases and underlying reconds
{inchading robe Based sccurity msechanizms)

Documenting cyber security sraicgy that incledes appropriats tools and techaiques 1o
prevent, detect, respondisg to sl recover from security incidents

Transaction prooessiieg, miiibaring snd reporting meshanisma

Reconci liation of mnsadions and heldings

Physical secumity of system infrastrecoan:
ﬁmmﬂmmwmﬂmwm-m

Business contirmuity amd disaster necovery plannisg

Complying with and control compliance with the Exchange s ferms and comditions af
.uﬂwiih.th‘nuiﬂmlﬂﬂ:dhll}uuh‘ﬂi:ﬁ'ﬂ in compliance with the coalracts for
rendering services, as well as with other costraciual abligations between the Exchampe and
the user enlities,

Pege Sof 6
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Properly comtrol the process of sendimg and receiving of messages by electronic
communication chansels, cesuring appropriate protection of the informaticn and the
systewns from any usauthosized nccess or intervesdion.

Reporting o0 services rendered by ihe Exchange, are reviewed by i user ealilses in a
iinsely manner, Upon detection of any discropansies, the User Crganizsticns are expecied
io duly inform the Exchasge 1o this effeet in written form

Understanding and complying with their eontractual obligations to the Exchange.
Chenging password.

Immsedistely notifying the Exchange of any information security bresches they beooms
awan ol

Pericdically review of aceess penmissions om applications 1o ensure sysiom potess ©
appropristely resiricied.

Reviewing transactions and communicatisg inaccurscies or discrepancies 1o the Exchange
in a tisvely manner,

Determining the user profiles necessary to support thear business processes, Imcluding the
sesian of L 4 matingal S of

Establishing palicies and procédunes for ensating that pood practice in relation bc passwond
mirhmhﬂnﬂ.mhmmmhmﬂﬁhﬁ-ﬂ!mﬁ#
passvwords, and eduating users on their imformation sccurity related respomsibilithes:
Maintaiming and communicating changes to user sccess privileges on their managed
systems, inchading the timely removal of sermsingied users,

W oara truly

[Managing [hirecior]

Ko s

Page 6 of 6
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Auditors’ Report on Regulatory Functions

Kb

KPMG Tosear Hod & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Shedkh Sultan Trust Bulding No. 2, Baaumon! Road
Karchi 75530 Pakistan

+82 (21) 37131900, Fax +52 (21) 3505008

ndependent Limited Assurance Repor o Pakisian Stock Exchangs Limited on the
Rogulatory Compliance Review

Intreduction

Wi, KPS Tosear Hadl & Qo (KPMGTH, wa, 15, o) wene engsged by Paicatan Sleck Exchangs
Limiberd {tha Exchange) in accordancs with ihe requitemsant of requilation 16 (T) of the Sasuriias
Exchanges (Liconsing and Cparatioss) Regulatons, 2016 (the Regulations) 16 cary oul ansusl
Fegulslery Compliance Review for the perod beginning 1 July 2024 and ending 30 June 2025 (e
Pl padicd) i compiance with the applicobls slatulery and reguiatory (equinements s slipuiated in
Fara T of Annewurg [0 of 1he RegulaSsng.

Management's Rosponsibilities

Ther mznagement of tha Exchanga is responsSin o onsure Tk the Exchango comples sith 2l
appicobie statuiory and requialody raquinements Tha management of the Exchangs & ais
reapansible for preventing idetecting fraud 2nd for identifying and ensuring that the Exchange
comphes with lnws and regulations appicable 1o fis activities. The managemend of the Exchangs is
abgg responsite for anguring it the staff irvoled in menaging the compliance of the spplicabis
siahsdfony quirnments fre proparly irained and sysiems ane proporly updated

Ciur Independencs and Quality Control

W have coimsplesd wilhs 1he indspencancs and other elhical requingments of the Cods I:I_El:l'unhr
Charered Accouniants ssued by the insbivle of Chartensd Accountants of Fakistan, which is lounded

on fundamantal principlies of imegrity, chiectvity, professional compebence and due care,
pondvinniabny AR poANSSIoREl Bahanioir.

Tha fem applies Indgmational Standard cn Cuality Manageenant (15081 1) "Cuality Manageman for
Flems thad Pedform Auits or Faviews of Financiat Slatements, of Other Assiurance of Relabed
Services Engagemaents” and accordingly maimiaing a cormprshingig Sy stem of guality contal
including documented policies and procedures egarding compliance with elhacal requirements,
professional standards and applicabis tegal and regulabony requiremiongs,

Qur Reapamsibilites

O redponaibdity s (o Shiry 00 procedunes 45 fevew The Exchange’s compllanca with fha applcadia
statitody @i reguiatony requinsments ard Lo repoit theseon in the form of an indepancant krmned
BesUrENGE Sanclusion

W conducted our review in accondance with the Enlemational Standard on Assurance Engagement
(ISAE 30000 “Assurance Engagements plhar tham sudits or nenvierss. of hisiorical financial informasion”,
This standard requires thal we comply wh Independence requirements and plan and perform o
POoROLEES i Oobtain limibed agsurance. A Emiled assumance engagement ncudes examining, on a
fest bass, evidences supporting the compiance with and dsciosure of the applcable statulory and
ieguiatony requinements. The procedunes splectsd depend on our judgment, including the sssassment
iof the rigics of maseral non-compliance of the aoplicable slatuiory end reguistony requinements due i
amiasions. miarspresantation snd enes. In makdng theesn sk stsesomants, wo corsidored nliinal

s T frg b e edrering b npesa o P ww §
R T B G A BB A o TR Rl B AR T
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EPMG Tasonr Hadl & Co,

mmmmmﬁmﬁndmﬁmhdﬂw.mﬂmu
the apploabls reguireTenia in arder to design appropriate assirince procodunes, but not
for the purpose of expressing & conclhusion on the affectivensss of the Exchange's intemal contral
Ty ST

W bafieve that the ovidence we hie cbitaéned i suficient and appropriate o provide a basis lor our

This review i not lmiled peimarly to enquinies of amployees and review of minkles of meatings but
alyo includes imspection of mecords, and athar evidence gathering procedures, a8 appiopiate.

In paricular we Garred out the Ialiowing reves procedunes’

= Perdormed enquiny, waldhroughs and test of controls on sample B 1o enduse exisancs of and
compliance with Pakistan Stack Exchange Limited Regulaticn:s {the Rubsbook) retating 1o all majce
activition’ procedures;

» Performed procedures to ensure syslems and related functions operats in comsdance with the
requeaments slipulated in e Rulebook i approved by the Securities and Exchange Commession
of Pakistan [SECP, the Commission];

»  Pedormed procndures o identify devetona wesknesses and non-compliance of relsvand
reguistory frameserics, Acies and Mamorandum of Association, codens and ditectives E=und by
The Conremission; and

= Favinwod polies and proceifures 1o ensure hal peiickes Gnd procedures ane fomukabed (o identfy
ang presvent conflict of interest of direcions with the inferest of capeal merket, immestions and ihe

Inhonent Bmitaticns

Conclasin

Basid on the procedures pedomed as menhiored in "Our Responsibiiies” and svidencs chiared,
nathing hal come bo our atlention thal causes us 1o believe 1hat the Exchangs is not in complance,
with applicable statulory and regulabory requiremonis duing the roview period, in all maberiad
FEADECt

Emphasis of Mattar

Without qualifying our concluson, we drmw aflenton of $he Bosed of Dimctors (the BOD) of the
Exchange o the govemance shucture of the compliance funcicn. Secticn 113} of tha Securibes
Exchanges {Loensing ard Operations) Regulations reguires thal the Cheed Regulatory Officer (CRO),
05 head of the Requiaiory Aftairs Diviaion, shal be a dedicated poshion with responaibilities limited b
reguiatany oversighl
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KkPMG

KPMG Tassas Hadi & Co.,

A5 neded i the Exchange’s own submissions 1o SECP and rederated in reguistony guidance, the
CROU's robe &5 & regulatory and monioring unclion must remain segregated from the Exchange's
irfernad compdance activiies. Cambining thess responsibilies sk crpating 8 SaH-review Maal and
undermines the independance and efectivensess of both Fanctions. In lne with the Exchange's
proposal the Enfity Level Complance (ELC) funclion currently ambedded within Ihie Regulaioey
Affars Division should remain crganizationally dstingt ard be placed under o separabe Chiel Fisk
Managoment Officer (CRRACH, reporting io the CEO with ovarsight from the Board Audit Commithes:

Wi theredore emphasiee that the Exchangs must ensure that compllance acthvibes embodied in the
CROE rﬁ&mwﬂuﬁnﬂhﬂﬂumhmmhmmm This
segreghlion is essentinl to presarve the abjectivity of the CRO posiion, maintan compliance with the
Reguiationg, and mitghbs he risk of self-review, 88 consistantly highsgated in priar aud observabons
and in tna EXCharge’s own propoiale b the egulster.

Date: 3 Saptember 2025 “KPMG Tanesr Hadi & Go.
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Form of Proxy

78™ Annual General Meeting

[/We, of holding Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC)/Passport No and being a member of Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited (the Company), hereby appoint

of holding CNIC/Passport No , or failing
him/her hereby appoint

of holding CNIC/Passport No as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and

on my/our behalf at the 78" Annual General Meeting of the Company, to be held on the 28" day of October, 2025
and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand/sealthis____ dayof____ 2025.

Witnesses:

1 Signature
Name

Address
CNIC/Passport No.

2. Signature
Name
Address
CNIC/Passport No.

CDC Account No.

Revenue Stamp of
PKR 5/-

To be signed by the above named shareholder

Notes:

1. This Proxy Form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office of the Company, not
less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

2. The Proxy Form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be

mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC of the appointer and the proxy-holder shall be furnished with the Proxy Form.

The proxy-holder shall produce his/her original CNIC at the time of the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signature shall

be submitted along with Proxy Form.

bW
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